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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Superland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
the 2023 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 were approximately HK$1,008,101,000 and approximately
HK$819,302,000, respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 23.0%. The net profit of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022 were approximately HK$22,168,000 and
approximately HK$28,065,000 respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 21.0%. Excluding the exceptional item under the period of
pandemic for the year ended 31 December 2022, i.e., the subsidy granted
under the Employment Support Scheme of approximately HK$12,178,000,
the net profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 would be adjusted to
approximately HK$15,887,000. Taking into account of the exceptional item
mentioned above, the net profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 of
approximately HK$22,168,000, as compared to the adjusted one of
approximately HK$15,887,000, represented an increase of approximately
39.5%.

Details of the Group's results and prospects will be discussed under
the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this 2023
annual report of the Group.

Business diversification

The Group’s technology and technical solutions, including the
"Oodles Smart Solution”, for previewing interior designs and making
online modifications on a real time basis by artificial intelligence, has
been officially launched in March this year. The patented and user-
oriented “Cubicles and Smart Washroom Solution” for offering smart
washroom experience and the “Oodles Transformer” for users’
space planning through transformable furniture, were also
successfully launched in the market. The realisation of opportunities
arising from these technologies and technical solutions will add value
to the Group and diversify the business of the Group in the future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere appreciation to our Shareholders, customers, suppliers,
sub-contractors, bankers and professional parties for their
continuous support, as well as our management team and staff for
their hard work and contributions during the year.

Ng Chi Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 were approximately HK$1,008,101,000 and approximately
HK$819,302,000, respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 23.0%.

The increase in revenue was mainly due to the acceleration of the
progress of some projects carried out by the Group as requested by
the customers in the post-pandemic era.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 were approximately HK$129,565,000 and approximately
HK$114,023,000, respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 13.6%, while the gross profit margin of the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were approximately
12.9% and approximately 13.9%, respectively, and remained
relatively stable.

The increase in gross profit was mainly due to the increase in
revenue as mentioned above.

Other income

The other income of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 were approximately HK$2,295,000 and approximately
HK$12,405,000, respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 81.5%.

The decrease in other income was mainly due to the absence of the
subsidy granted under the Employment Support Scheme (the
"Employment Support Scheme”) under the Anti-Epidemic Fund
for the current year, which was launched in 2022 by the Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong" or
“"HKSAR") of the People’s Republic of China.

Other losses, net

The net other losses of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 mainly represented the changes in value of the
investments in insurance contracts.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 were approximately HK$71,023,000 and
approximately HK$74,602,000, respectively, and remained stable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 were approximately HK$31,417,000 and
approximately HK$16,473,000, respectively, representing an increase
of approximately 90.7%.

The increase in finance costs was primarily due to () the increase in
overall usage of the bank borrowings and other banking facilities;
and (ii) the increase in the overall interest rates of the bank
borrowings.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the abovementioned, the profit and total
comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were approximately
HK$22,168,000 and approximately HK$28,065,000, respectively,
representing a decrease of approximately 21.0%.

Excluding the exceptional item under the period of pandemic for the
year ended 31 December 2022, i.e., the subsidy granted under the
Employment Support Scheme of approximately HK$12,178,000, the
profit and total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 would be adjusted
to approximately HK$15,887,000. Taking into account of the
exceptional item mentioned above, the profit and total
comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023 of approximately HK$22,168,000,
as compared to the adjusted one of approximately HK$15,887,000,
represented an increase of approximately 39.5%.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Businesses

The Group is an established contractor based in Hong Kong with over
20 years of operating history providing fitting-out services and repair
and maintenance services with the qualifications as a registered
electrical contractor, registered subcontractor and registered minor
works contractor in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group is principally
engaged in the provision of fitting-out services and repair and
maintenance services to residential and commercial properties in
Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 51 (31 December
2022: 46) fitting-out projects on hand, which included fitting-out
projects that have commenced but not yet completed and fitting-out
projects that have been awarded to the Group but not yet
commenced, with an aggregate total contract sum of approximately
HK$4,129 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$3,822
million). Among these projects on hand, 30 projects were with total
contract sum of approximately HK$50 million or above. As at 31
December 2023, the aggregate total contract sum of these 30
projects amounted to approximately HK$3,663 million (31 December
2022: 28 projects: approximately HK$3,451 million).

Future prospects and strategies

During the post-pandemic era, it is expected that Hong Kong
continues to struggle with slow post-pandemic economic recovery
due to the persistent high interest rate, inflation and talent shortage.
As such, the Group expects that 2024 would be a challenging year
for its business.

However, as supported by the 2023 Policy Address of Hong Kong,
the Government of HKSAR will develop land resources in a persistent
manner to satisfy the housing demand. Therefore, the Group expects
that the business of the Group will remain stable in the fitting-out
industry in Hong Kong in the long term. The Group will devote
necessary resources to further increase its market share if
appropriate.

The Group has successfully demonstrated its innovation competence
and leading position by the integration of its technologies and
technical solutions with big data and artificial intelligence which was
fully recognised by the market over the past few years. The Group
will continue to develop and apply its technologies and technical
solutions in a diversified manner for further improving project
management efficiency and assisting industry development so as to
create long-term value for our stakeholders.

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudent and optimistic about the
prospects of the Group’s business in the long term. The Group will
continue to adopt a very cautious approach to ensure corporate
sustainability in 2024. The Group will consider monitoring its working
capital management closely. The Group will also closely and carefully
monitor the latest development in its core business and the potential
realisation and commercialisation of its technologies and technical
solutions; and adjust its business strategies from time to time if
required.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, total debts of the Group, including bank
borrowings and lease liabilities, was approximately HK$444,341,000
(31 December 2022: approximately HK$413,396,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's banking facilities were
secured/guaranteed by:

(i) Personal guarantee provided by a Director, Mr. Ng Chi Chiu
(“Mr. Ng");

(i) Corporate guarantee provided by the Company;

(i) Properties held by two Directors, Mr. Ng and Ms. Zhao Haiyan
Chloe ("Ms. Zhao"), and related companies;

(iv) Investments in insurance contracts of approximately
HK$49,812,000 (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$35,429,000); and

(v) Pledged time deposits of approximately HK$3,127,000 (31
December 2022: approximately HK$3,127,000).

In addition, as at 31 December 2023, the Group provided corporate
guarantee to surety bonds and a personal guarantee was provided
by a Director, Ms. Zhao, in relation to a lease agreement.

The bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating rates that
are market dependent. The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy while the Group pays vigilant attention to
and monitors interest rate risk continuously and cautiously.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 17 July 2020, the shares (the “Shares”) of the Company were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and there has been no change in
capital structure of the Group since then.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s issued capital was
HK$8,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
800,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

The principal liquidity and working capital requirements of the Group
primarily related to the Group’s operating expenses. The Group
expects to fund its working capital and other liquidity requirements
with a combination of various sources, including but not limited to
cash generated from the Group’s operations and bank borrowings as
well as other external equity and debt financings as and when
appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged time deposits of
approximately HK$3,127,000 (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$3,127,000). Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged time deposits. Total capital is calculated as “total equity” as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt. As at 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 66.5% (31 December 2022: approximately 66.8%). AS
at 31 December 2023, the current ratio of the Group was
approximately 1.2 (31 December 2022: approximately 1.2).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the income, expenditures, assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, being the functional currency
of the Group, and hence, the Group does not have any material
foreign exchange risk exposure. With the insignificant portion of
monetary transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group being
denominated in foreign currencies, for the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group did not employ any financial instruments for hedging
purpose. The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider adopting hedging policy should the need arises.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 238 (31
December 2022: 272) employees. The remuneration package the
Group offered to its employees includes salary, discretionary year-
end bonus and other cash subsidies. The Group provides a defined
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund (the "MPF") as
required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for all eligible employees.
The Group determines the salary of its employees mainly based on
their qualifications, experiences and performance. The Group carries
out regular review on the performance of employees to determine
any salary adjustments, bonuses and promotions.

The Group participates in a MPF scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme participated by the
Group in Hong Kong is registered under and complies with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
laws of Hong Kong). The assets of the MPF Scheme are held in
separate trustee-administered funds. The Group and its employees
are each required to make contributions pursuant to the MPF
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant income and
capped at HK$1,500 per month. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
are vested immediately.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contributions to the MPF Scheme charged to the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the year
ended 31 December 2023 were approximately HK$5,831,000 (2022:
approximately HK$3,821,000). There was no contribution forfeited by
the Group on behalf of its employees who left the MPF Scheme prior
to vesting fully in such contribution, which may be used by the Group
to reduce the existing level of contributions during the two years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. As at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022, there was no forfeited contribution available to
reduce the level of contributions in future years.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the employee benefit
expenses (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
approximately HK$119,216,000 (2022: approximately
HK$116,827,000).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, for the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals.

There was no formal plan authorised by the Board for any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals as at 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other future plans for material investments
or capital assets for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, as at 31 December
2023, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no other material events occurring after the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

To create a long term value for the interests of the Shareholders is
the Board’s main objective. As such, the Board is highly committed
to achieving a high standard of corporate governance and striving to
maintain the management practices in a transparent and responsible
way. The Board reviews and improves the Group’s corporate
governance practices and business ethics on an ongoing basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, the Company complied with all the code provisions, where
applicable, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") contained in Appendix C1 (previously numbered as Appendix
14) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange except for the deviation mentioned
in the section of “Chairman and Chief Executive”.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 (previously numbered as Appendix 10) to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in securities of
the Company by the Directors. All the Directors confirmed, following
specific enquiry by the Company, their compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2023.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategic planning, business development, risk
management, material acquisitions and disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management, such as the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for the Board’s final approval before its publication,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the
Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and
risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations. The Board has also
delegated to the relevant senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the
Group with clear directions as to their powers in particular with
respect to the circumstances under which they should report back
to the Board before making certain key decisions on behalf of the
Company. The Board reviews the existing arrangements periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.
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The Board also has established Board committees and has delegated
to these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties of the Group and will assign relevant functions to other board
committees, namely the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) collectively, the “Board Committees”) as and when
appropriate.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials, and the advice and services provided by the company
secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Company, and has the
liberty to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense if so reasonably required. The Directors will be continuously
provided by the updates on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors” and officers' liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently comprises
five members, consisting of two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Details of the composition of
the Board and biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 2 to
4 of this annual report in the section of “Corporate Information” and
on pages 86 to 89 of this annual report in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management”, respectively. An updated list of
the Directors with their respective roles and functions is available on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
Independent non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company with key terms and conditions of their respective
appointment set out for a term of three years and subject to
termination as provided therein.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company with key terms and conditions of
their respective appointment set out for a term of three years and
subject to termination as provided therein.
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The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the business of
the Group which brings a good balance of relevant skills and
experience to the Company. The Company has established
mechanisms whereby independent non-executive Directors can
express their views in an open and candid manner and provide their
independent professional judgments on the assessment of the
development, performance and risk management of the Group.
These include dedicated meeting sessions with the Chairman and
interaction with management and other Board members outside the
boardroom. The Board will review the implementation and
effectiveness of the abovementioned mechanisms on an annual
basis to ensure that independent views and input are available to the
Board.

Meetings and Attendance

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2023, as well as the
number of such meetings held, are set out below:

i% 2EBA—TEREEEAREEHHBX

B KBRREEAND - BARAIRHEEREERE
%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%fﬂﬁéoﬁ@ﬂ RILHH] - B IE

HITESRURHARBBN T ARERSFNER -
WHFF A AR E 2 B R - R]E R AR EEMmEH
BB ERAE - ZF5RHBRETFNHERM
R UREERENAEEENEMBEFTEN
ENEE BEFEHESFRE EAKHNERK
B URRESSRESBEUNERLER -

ERRHERER
BE_T_=-"F+_A=tT—"BLLFE EE
%'E%EXEEATHE@Z&F“I nREHeERZR

TEBEIIT

Number of meetings attended/held

HE /BT 8EA
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting"" Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
E=g ENEES REZES FMzES
gam = 23 83 RREAFAS®
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu @ REBEENW 5/5 N/AT 8 A 3/3 NATER 11
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chlog wasTL 474 N/AT 4 F N/AT i F N/AT i F 1N
Non-executive Director EHTES
Mr. Chan Ming Yim® BREEBR LD 111 N/AT i F N/AT i F N/AT i F 1N
Independent non-executive By FEHITES
Directors
Mr. Ip Sze Ching © Etigkg 3/3 2/2 N/ATEF 11 N/AT
Mr. Yip Kit Chau @@ EXMEER© 1/1 1/1 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A N/ANE
Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA ©.71 BABRE CPAOD N/ATEF N/ATNEF N/ATER N/ATNEF N/ATNE A
Dr. Ho Chung TaiRaymond @ (/g% fE L@ 111 11 N/AT i F 111 1n
Mr. Yip Chun On 2. Rkt o 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2 1N
Prof. Chau Kwong Wing @ ZEZ&8 R @ 00 5/5 3/3 3/3 3/3 111
1. Chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company. 1. ARAEERERRITHAAR -
2. Chairman of the Audit Committee. 2. BEERZAEIR-
3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. 3. HZ f 'ER -
4. Chairman of the Nomination Committee. 4. REZ E@I’f :
5. Appointment with effect from 17 July 2023. 5. ZEE-_F_=5t] THEHEBER -
6. Appointment with effect from 17 October 2023. 6. ZEA_FT_=F+ATLRBER -
7. Appointment with effect from 17 January 2024. 7. ZER-_F_NF—7 THEHEBER -
8. Resignation with effect from 17 July 2023. 8. BB =% _:E—tﬂ TERBES -
9. Resignation with effect from 17 October 2023. 9. BEA_T_=F+A+EREEN-
10.  Resignation with effect from 17 January 2024. 0. BWEB-F-MFE-AFLARES-
11, Including one meeting held by the chairman of the Board with the independent ~ 11.  BREEFEFFEBVIFRTEERITH—NEHE (X
non-executive Directors (without the presence of other executive Directors). MERITEBWELE) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the chairman of the Board
and the independent non-executive Directors met at least once
without the presence of other executive Directors and non-executive
Director.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times annually and
additional Board meetings are held when the Board considers
appropriate. Schedules for regular Board meetings are normally
agreed with the Directors in advance in order to facilitate them to
attend. Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to the Directors
in order to give them an opportunity to include any other matters in
the agenda for discussion in the meeting, and the chairman of the
Board approves the final agenda before each Board meeting. Notice
of regular Board meetings is served to all the Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

In respect of regular Board meetings or committee meetings and so
far as practicable in all other cases, meeting papers are sent to the
Directors or respective committee members in a timely manner and
at least 3 days before the intended date of the respective meetings
to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Group and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management where necessary.

Whenever a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interests which is considered by the Board as material, the matter
will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written
resolution.

Relevant senior management would attend regular Board meetings
and where necessary, other Board meetings and committee
meetings, to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Group.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of
all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

ERELRS

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HILFE £5g
TREMB FFRTESEEMANITEETNIENT
EETESNBERATETTEL—REM@E -

THEFEEREBFELBTHARNEZER
RBEENRERBTRIESTESE THEFS
ERLBRR-REBLNGESZTFAE - UERK
FebFEez BREFESeHcERERETS
BRRESE WERSAREKEMSERIIAG
EETHEZLE REFEIRNEES
CERNMERKRER THESTSERZAS
TREHRBINRIDUREETHREESR - E10
HthEZ2eRLRE08R —ReBLAE
A e

EHEHZES e BN R XXt (&
FIBEMBERATRIEAITR) @ERFARES
ABRREBENE YD EBBEHHR] BN
IRFIZEL  NBAMESTAEB 2 & ER LY
BN BRESUMMELABEZRE - EFE N
REENARAREFEN B RESRER
o

WEBRRAEETFENGERMEEERRE
BANEERBEN REMEEKNERES=S
GRMIFAETHRBARNOTAERE -

HEEAEEEe R EHEFES®E YAR

FERFHFHEMEEERRRZEESE I
AEBZEBRR MBERGFHEE JEENE
METEE CXEAMEMEAFRERES

RAMEBRBFHRRFMEESEEEZREER
EERLERCH TRLBER—BNERE
BRREAEREARRESBHUNEERER
HERAKESFER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 ® 2023 £F £ 5} 15



Corporate Governance Report
EEERESE

Relationship

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management — Directors”, none of the members of the
Board has any relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships) between each other.

Independent Non-executive Directors
The Company complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors confirming his independence from the Company,
and considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by the Shareholders at the first annual general
meeting after appointment. Any further appointment of an
independent non-executive Director, who has served the Board for
more than nine years, shall be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the Shareholders.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board’s
composition, structure and size, developing and formulating the
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of the
Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of
the Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

Directors’ Induction and Development

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company arranged
seminars provided by an independent third party for its Directors as
continuing professional trainings for corporate governance and
compliance purposes. Some Directors also participated in other
seminars according to their own preferences to develop and refresh
their knowledge, skills and understanding of the Group and its
business or to update their skills and knowledge on the latest
development or changes in the relevant regulations, the Listing Rules
and corporate governance practices.
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The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars, & « T{Ed - RBRERAMBEM B R EFHELR 2
conferences, workshops, in-house briefings and reading materials E#FEBXER IR LEFNBESHOME LR
and updates to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. g ©

Type of continuous professional development

Name of Director and in-house briefings updates
HEWMNE 8%
ISR ABREHR MEMEREHER
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu REBEE v/ v
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe fi:NEE- g v/ v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Chan Ming Yim PR &% 87 55 A N/A T A N/ATiE A
(Resignation with effect (BEE-—Z-_=%F
from 17 July 2023) +tAt+EREBER
Independent non-executive BAKFHTES
Directors
Mr. Ip Sze Ching EIEEE v v
(Appointment with effect (EEg=-_2 =%
from 17 July 2023) +tAt+EREBER
Mr. Yip Kit Chau BERMESE 4 4
(Appointment with effect (ZEE =2 ==%
from 17 October 2023) +A+EHRBER
Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA ERERE  CPA N/A T A N/A i A
(Appointment with effect (EEE-Z_mE
from 17 January 2024) —A+tHBER
Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond feEFRE L N/A A~ 38 N/A 3 R
(Resignation with effect (Bra=—==_=%
from 17 July 2023) tATERBER
Mr. Yip Chun On BRLhE N/A T A N/ATiE A
(Resignation with effect (BfEE =%
from 17 October 2023) +A+tEBBER
Prof. Chau Kwong Wing B = SRR 4 4
(Resignation with effect (BHfE == —_mF
from 17 January 2024) —A+tBBER

BEEXERER
Attending seminars,

conferences, workshops Reading materials and
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, in respect of code provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, having considered the nature and extent
of the Group's operations, and Mr. Ng Chi Chiu’s in-depth knowledge
and experience in the industry and familiarity with the operations of
the Group, that all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and relevant Board Committees, and that
there are three independent non-executive Directors on the Board
offering independent perspectives, the Board is therefore of the view
that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient
balance of powers and authorities between the Board and the
management of the Group and that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Ng Chi Chiu taking up both roles. As such, the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Group are
not being separated pursuant to the requirement under the code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
of the Board. The Company is committed to having a Board with
appropriate balance of expertise, skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives.

The Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry experience.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidate will bring to the Board.

The Company values gender diversity. As at the date of this annual
report, the Board has one female executive Director out of five
Directors. The Board is committed to improving gender diversity as
and when suitable candidates are identified and shall continue to
maintain at least one female Director on the Board. The Company is
of the view that gender diversity in respect of the Board has been
achieved.
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To further enhance gender diversity, the Board and the Nomination
Committee will stay vigilant in identifying a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board. The Group constantly implement
recruitment and promotion policies which encourage and attract
qualified incumbents to take up senior managerial and Board roles.
The Company will continue to embrace gender diversity when
making future Board appointments but no specific targets or
timelines to further enhance gender diversity have been set as it is
of the view that all aspects of diversity should be considered as a
whole in the selection of suitable candidates for appointment to the
Board.

Traditionally, the Hong Kong fitting-out industry has been short of
females, however, the Group still managed to attract female talents
and maintained a workforce of which approximately 76% were male
and approximately 24% were female as at 31 December 2023.
Although the senior management members are all male, the
Company does recognise the value of gender diversity to promote a
diverse and inclusive working environment and shall explore in
leveraging more channels to increase the female proportion in its
workforce in the future. While the Group welcomes increased female
representation at all levels, it does not consider appropriate to set
any specific gender target for its entire workforce. Being an equal
opportunity employer, the Group also considers other relevant
factors in making its decision on fitting the right person to the right
position.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy by conducting review of the Board's
composition at least once annually taking into account the benefits
of all relevant diversity aspects, and adhering to the Board Diversity
Policy when making recommendation on any Board appointments.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the diversity
of the Board is sufficient.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs and help it in the execution of its
responsibilities. Specific written terms of reference of these
committees clearly outline each committee’s authority and duty.

Each committee is required to report back on its decisions or
recommendations to the Board on a timely basis, unless there are
any legal or regulatory restrictions imposed on it.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) maintaining the
relationship with the Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing the
Company'’s financial information; (c) reviewing the Company’s
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems; and (d) reviewing the relationships with the employees of
the Group. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
adopted on 16 June 2020. The full version of the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee is available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

As at the date of this annual report, pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the Audit Committee is made up of three independent
non-executive Directors, including Mr. Yip Kit Chau (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Ip Sze Ching and Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA.
Mr. Yip Kit Chau (chairman of the Audit Committee) possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required.

The Audit Committee held three committee meetings for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

summary of work of the Audit Committee for the year
ended 31 December 2023

The Audit Committee held three committee meetings with the
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, to (a) discuss and review the
Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval; (b) review and
consider the existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee; (C)
discuss and review the Group’s results for the six months ended 30
June 2023 and recommended the same to the Board for approval,
and (d) discuss and review the audit plan of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience required) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become the Directors and selecting
or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; (c) implementing and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, making any recommendations
on it to the Board and monitoring its achievements annually; (d)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors, and succession planning for Directors
in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive of the
Company; and (e) assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and any proposed independent non-
executive Directors. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee was adopted on 16 June 2020. The full version of the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee is
made up of three members including Mr. Ng Chi Chiu (executive
Director and chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Law Hung
Wai, CPA (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Yip Kit Chau
(independent non-executive Director).

The Nomination Committee held three committee meetings for the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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Director Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy (the
"Director Nomination Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to
identify and evaluate a suitable candidate for nomination to (i) the
Board for appointment; or (ii) the Shareholders for election, as
Directors, at general meetings.

Where a vacancy arises under any circumstances, or where it is
considered that the Board would benefit from the services of a new
Director with particular skills, the Nomination Committee shall adopt
the Director Nomination Policy, which sets out a number of factors in
making nomination, including but not limited to the following:

o Skills, experience and professional expertise which are relevant
to the operations of the Group;

o Diversity in all aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy;,

o commitment in respect of sufficient time and participation to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s),

o Character, experience and integrity, and is able to demonstrate
a standard of competence commensurate with the relevant
position as a Director; and

o Requirements of independence of the proposed independent
non-executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Upon the Nomination Committee’s recommendation, the Board will
review and if appropriate, approve the nomination of such Director
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Nomination Committee will also review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Summary of work of the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2023

The Nomination Committee held three committee meetings to (a)
review and consider the composition of the Board, the Director
Nomination Policy, the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, the re-appointment of retiring Directors and the
existing terms of reference of the Nomination Committee; (b)
recommend the nomination of an appointment of Mr. Ip Sze Ching
as an independent non-executive Director; and (c) recommend the
nomination of an appointment of Mr. YIp Kit Chau as an independent
non-executive Director.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and the
structure for all the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b) reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board'’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) considering salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and any of its subsidiaries; (d) determining, making
recommendations to the Board, considering and approving the
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management
of the Group and the compensation arrangements relating to 10ss or
termination of office and dismissal or removal of the Directors; (e)
deciding the remunerations of the Directors with independence; (f)
reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; (g) advising the Shareholders on how
to vote with respect to any service contracts of Directors that require
Shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules; (h)
consulting the chairman of the Board and/or the chief executive
officer of the Company about their proposals relating to the
remuneration of other executive Directors; (i) evaluating and making
recommendations on any share schemes that may be adopted by
the Company from time to time and ensuring its compliance with the
Listing Rules; (j) ensuring proper disclosure of the Director’s
remuneration in the annual report of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles and the Listing Rules; and (k) reviewing
its own performance, constitution and terms of reference to ensure
its effectiveness and making recommendations on any necessary
changes for the Board’s approval at least annually. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee was adopted on 16 June
2020 and amended on 30 December 2022. The full version of the
amended terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, the time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee is
made up of three independent non-executive Directors including Mr.
Law Hung Wai, CPA (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Yip Kit Chau and Mr. Ip Sze Ching.
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The Remuneration Committee held three committee meetings for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Summary of work of the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2023

The Remuneration Committee held three committee meetings to (a)
review and approve the remuneration package and structure of all
the Directors and senior management independently and the existing
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee; (b) review and
approve the remuneration package of Mr. Ip Sze Ching as an
independent non-executive Director; and (c) review and approve the
remuneration package of Mr. YIp Kit Chau as an independent non-
executive Director. Each of the remuneration package of Mr. Ip Sze
Ching and Mr. YIp Kit Chau was determined by reference to his
qualifications, experience and responsibilities in the Company and
the prevailing market conditions and is subject to annual review.

During the period under review, there are no material matters
relating to the Share Option Scheme under the Listing Rules that
were reviewed and/or approved by the Remuneration Committee
and the Company did not have any matters relating to any grants of
options to the Directors or the senior management of the Company
as set out in rule 17.03F and rules 17.06B(7) and (8) of the Listing
Rules.

Details of the five highest paid individuals in the Group and the
Directors’ emoluments are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Senior management’s remuneration

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board, with the assistance of other Board Committees, is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions, and
it accordingly reviews and monitors the training and continuing
professional development of Directors and the senior management,
and ensures its policies and practices in compliance with relevant
laws and regulatory requirements. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the Board reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance. The Board is responsible for performing the
functions set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, received HK$1,449,000 for provision of
audit service. No non-audit services was provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ended 31 December 2023.

There were no disagreements between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the re-appointment of the auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, for the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparation of
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs as at 31 December 2023 and of the
Group's results and cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2023. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, and
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the management has
provided the Board with monthly updates so as to give the Directors
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 102 to 108 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
include a management structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and limits of authority. It primarily aims to provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are properly
safeguarded against misappropriations, transactions are executed in
accordance with the management’s authorisation, and accounting
records are reliable and proper for preparing financial information
and are not materially misstated. The procedure is designed to
identify, evaluate and manage risks effectively rather than to
eliminate all risks of failure.

Policies and procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations. The policies
and procedures provide a reasonable assurance that material
misstatements or losses are prevented, potential interruption of the
Group’s management system is detected, and risks existing in the
course of arriving at the Group's objectives are properly managed.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing system, which is
intended to enable employees and those who deal with the Group to
report serious concerns about possible improprieties to the Audit
Committee in confidence and anonymity. The Company has also
established systems to promote and support anti-corruption laws
and regulations. The employee handbook sets out principles and
code of conduct for acting responsibly in a professional manner in
daily operations, including issues related to business ethics, conflicts
of interest and bribery. Employees are also encouraged to express
their concerns on suspected case of corruption.

Same as last year, the Company conducted a review and assessment
of risk management and has engaged an independent internal
control consulting firm to perform an overall assessment on the
Group's internal control system including the areas of financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
with the aims of, among other matters, improving the Group’s
corporate governance and ensuring compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. Based on its internal control review, the
independent internal control consulting firm recommended certain
internal control improvement measures to the Group and the Group
has adopted them.
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The Board, with the assistance of other Board committees, is
responsible for maintaining adequate procedures of risk
management and internal control for the Group and the Board had
conducted an annual review of its effectiveness for the year ended
31 December 2023. The Company engaged an independent internal
control consulting firm to conduct a review and perform an overall
assessment of the Group’s internal control system. The review
covered material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The findings from the review have been
communicated to and addressed by the Board. It has not been
revealed to the Board that the Group requires significant
improvement in its risk management and internal control
procedures. The Board considers that the nature and extent of
management risks remains the same since the last annual review.

As such, the Board is satisfied that the Group's internal control
procedures including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions as appropriate to the Group have
been put in place and considers that the Group’s internal control
procedures and risk management functions are both effective and
adequate. The Board and other Board Committees reviews the
Group's risk management and internal control procedures annually.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group's relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFOQ") and the Listing Rules and is
required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any inside
information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public;

o has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group'’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company'’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
reports to the chairman of the Board and the chief executive. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary are subject to
the approval of the Board. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board
procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
Secretary undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. His
biography is set out on page 89 of this annual report in the section of
"Profile of Directors and Senior Management”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business, performance and
strategies, the Company endeavors to maintain an ongoing dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meeting and extraordinary general meeting. In respect of each
matter to be considered at the annual general meetings and
extraordinary general meetings, including the re-election of
Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the chairman of
the Board. The chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the Board
Ccommittees will be available at the annual general meeting and
extraordinary general meeting to meet with the Shareholders and
answer their enquiries. The Company will also invite representatives
of the auditor to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
to answer Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains the
website of www.superland-group.com; where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access. Latest information of the Group
including annual and interim reports, announcements and other
corporate communications which will be published on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website in a timely fashion
and despatched to the Shareholders (if requested).
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The annual general meeting of the Company (the “2023 AGM") for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is scheduled to be held on
21 June 2024. The notice of the 2023 AGM, setting out details of each
proposed resolutions and other relevant information, will be
published on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website and despatched to the Shareholders (if requested) not less
than 21 clear days before to the date of the 2023 AGM.

Based on the above, the Board considers that the Company’s
communication with Shareholders is effective for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Amendments to the Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2023, amendments had been
made to the memorandum of association of the Company and the
Articles (the “Amended M&A") with the approval from the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting held on 19 June 2023 in
order to conform to the core shareholders protection standards as
set out in Appendix A1 (previously numbered as Appendix 3) to the
Listing Rules effective from 1 January 2022 and the applicable laws of
the Cayman Islands as well as for house-keeping purposes. Details of
the amendments were set out in the circular of the Company dated
28 April 2023.

The latest version of the Amended M&A is available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate
in the Company's profits and for the Company to retain adequate
reserves for future growth.

The Dividend Policy would be in the best interests of the Group and
the Shareholders. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting the Shareholders' expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable Dividend Policy.
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The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the
Group when considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
inter alia:

(@ the actual and expected financial performance and the
financial results;

(b)  the actual and available surplus and working capital,

(c) the expected working capital requirements and cash flow
required for the future expansion plans;

(d)  the debt to equity ratios and the debt level,

(e) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the lenders;

(f)  the general economic conditions, business cycle and other
internal and external factors that may have an impact on the
business conditions or financial performance, the strategies
and the financial position of the Company;

(@ the future operations and earnings; and
(h)  any other conditions or factors that the Board deems relevant.

Any final or special dividends must be approved by the Shareholders
at a general meeting and must not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The Board may from time to time pay
to the Shareholders any interim dividends as appear to the Directors
to be justified by the profits of the Group.

The form, frequency and amount of dividend payment by the
Company are subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act (as
revised), of the Cayman Islands, Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules, the Articles, any other
applicable laws and regulations and any other financial covenants
imposed by financial institutions. The Company does not have any
pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The Company's dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a reference or
basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve the
rights in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy shall in
no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company in
respect of future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1.

The way in which the Shareholders can convene
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM")

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, EGMs shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, on a one vote per share
basis, shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business or resolution specified in such
requisition and to add resolutions to the meeting agenda of
such meeting; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
convene a physical meeting at only one location which will be
the principal meeting place, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and lodged to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong with the address at Flat A&B, 3/F, Yin
Da Commercial Building, 181 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the requirements under the Articles to all the
registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is
invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome, and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.

The notice period to be given to all Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an EGM must be at least 14 clear days' notice in
writing.
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2. The procedures the Shareholders can use to

propose a person for election as a Director
Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director
at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a Shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected including that person’s biographical details, shall have
been lodged to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong with the address at
Flat A&B, 3/F, Yin Da Commercial Building, 181 Wai Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, at least seven days and that
(if the notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting. The lodgement of notice should
also be in compliance with the other requirements of the
Listing Rules and the Articles.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Any Shareholder(s) who wish to raise his/their enquiries
concerning the Company to the Board may deliver his/their
written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at the address at Flat A&B, 3/F, Yin Da
Commercial Building, 181 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, or at any address notified by the Company from
time to time and for the attention of the chairman of the Board
and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Company would reply as soon as possible.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, voting by poll is mandatory on all
resolutions put forward at general meetings, and the poll voting
results will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website after the relevant general meeting.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BOARD STATEMENT

Superland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries, hereinafter referred to as the “Group”, “Superland”,
“We" or "Us”) is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report for the year end 31 December 2023. The Group
puts the sustainable development of its business as the top priority
of its long-term development goals, and incorporate climate-related
issues and environmental, social and governance elements into its
long-term business strategic planning. As the most important party
of the Group, the Board has the sole responsibility to oversee,
manage and monitor the Group’s environmental, social and
governance issues and progress directly.

In response to climate change, the Group has set clear short-term
and long-term sustainable development vision and goals to achieve
ongoing emission reduction according to governmental requirements
of different countries and regions progressively. Relevant emission
reduction targets and corresponding strategies are established, and
sustainable development factors have been incorporated into the
Group's strategic planning, business model and other decision-
making processes. The Board regularly monitors and reviews the
effectiveness of management approach, including reviewing the
Group's environmental, social and governance performance and
adjusting corresponding action plans. Effective implementation of
environmental, social and governance policies relies on the
collaboration of different departments. Following the
recommendations given by the Stock Exchange, in order to
endeavour to achieve the objective of sustainable development, the
Group has established an inter-departmental Environmental, Social
and Governance Working Group to coordinate different departments
and enhance their mutual co-operation, for ensuring consistent work
performance which could be aligned with the stakeholders’
expectations.

Our brand, Oodles, has also integrated smart technologies and mega
data to foster innovation, digitalisation and raise competitiveness of
the industry. We aim to develop sustainably by means of fusing
traditions and innovations.

The Group strives to ensure the establishment of appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for work
safety, and supervision of the identification and assessment of
environmental, social and governance and climate-related risks and
opportunities, and to response to the challenges and impacts of
different times.
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BOARD STATEMENT (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group has achieved a number of
ESG awards, such as “Happy Company 5+ Certificate” and "5+ years
Caring Company”, demonstrating our commitment in this area and
that our contribution to sustainable development has been
recognised.

In the early 2023, the COVID-19 epidemic situation is gradually
stabilising, and the society has fully resumed normalcy. However, the
declined macroeconomics have left a negative impact on the Hong
Kong economy. During the Reporting Period, the Group faced
numerous severe challenges, including but not limited to delays and
disruptions to ongoing projects, logistics and supply chain, an
upsurge in raw material costs and a shortage in the workforce. The
Group still expects to encounter great challenges for a while.

Looking ahead, the Board will continue reviewing and monitoring the
environmental, social and corporate governance performance of the
Group and provide material, reliable, consistent and comparable
environmental, social and corporate governance information to its
stakeholders for contributing to the creation of a better environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is delighted to publish the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to summarise the Group's
policies, measures and performance on the key environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) issues. The Group’s ESG Working
Group members are responsible for communicating and
collaborating with external consultants (Acclime Consulting (Hong
Kong) Limited) to compile this Report.

Reporting Period

The Report illustrates the overall performance of the Group regarding
the environmental and social aspects from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023 (“2023", the "Reporting Period”).

Reporting Scope

The Report discloses related policies and initiatives for the core and
material businesses namely provision of (i) fitting-out services; and (ii)
repair and maintenance services with the qualifications as a
registered electrical contractor, registered subcontractor and
registered minor works contractor in Hong Kong.

The Report discloses key performance indicators ("KPIs”) of the
corporate office ("office”) and the representative project(s)
("project(s)”) in Hong Kong, where the relevant disclosed
environmental data primarily include the emission data of the office.
The Group’s awareness on issues such as greenhouse gas (‘GHG")
emissions and climate change is ever increasing, we focus on
improving our data collection system and expanding our disclosure
scope. Office areas covered by the Report are the same as that of
2022. The scope of the Report covers all the Group’s operations in
the Reporting Period.

Reporting Basis and Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and based on the four reporting principles —
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency:

J "Materiality” Principle:
The Group determines material ESG issues by stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. Details are explained
in the section headed “Materiality Assessment”.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Basis and Principles (continued)

o "Quantitative” Principle:
Information is presented with quantitative measure, whenever
feasible, including information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions used and provision of
comparative data.

o “Balance” Principle:
The Report identifies the achievements and challenges faced
by the Group.

o “Consistency” Principle:
The Report uses consistent methodologies as the previous
reports for meaningful comparisons, descriptions are provided
if they are affected by any changes

The Report has complied with all “comply or explain” provisions
outlined in the ESG Guide.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal
documents and statistics of the Group, as well as the combined
control, management and operations information provided by the
subsidiaries in accordance with the Group's internal management
systems. A complete content index is appended to the last
section hereof for quick reference. The Report is prepared and
published in both Chinese and English at the Stock Exchange's
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(https.//www.superland-group.com). In the event of contradiction or
inconsistency between the Chinese version and the English version,
the English version shall prevail.

Review and Approval

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) acknowledges
their responsibility for ensuring the integrity of the Report and to the
best of their knowledge, this Report addresses all relevant material
issues and fairly presents the ESG performance of the Company. The
Board confirms that it has reviewed and approved the Report. The
Report was reviewed and approved by the Board of the Company on
27 March 2024.

Feedback

The Group respects your view on the Report. Should you have any
opinions or suggestions, you are welcome to share with the Group at
info@superland-group.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board supports the Group’s commitment to fulfilling its
environmental and social responsibility and has the overall
responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting.
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Board of Directors
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e Oversees the ESG strategies, policies, objectives and
targets
e Manages and implements our core value on our business
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Senior Management
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o Advise and supports the Board on ESG matters, strategies
and policies

¢ Qverall management and monitoring of ESG performance
and targets
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Environment, Social and Governance Working Group
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e Composes of department heads, including Report project
department, human resources department, safety depart-
ment, finance department, marketing department, etc.

o Provides supports to ESG action plans and formulate
relevant internal ESG policies

e Discusses and provides feedbacks regarding ESG related
risks and opportunities within departments

e Meets at least once every half year, and reports to the
Board and top management regarding relevant KPIs and
target progress, and the ESG Working Group has carried
out 2 meetings during the Reporting Period

AIENE

o HIFEPFIEEAMN - BETZE - ASEL
REED - MIBES - THEE

o BRE - HERERTHAEMRHEZE - K
RHEBHMERE e RERABER
o BLESPIAARVELIRIE - & MEVAIRRIRIE KR

FIHBHETT af S SR BE
o BRAOBFFRITRGHE  ALEIETE
RE - AERERSREIEEERIAEENE
%%féiﬂaf“ﬂﬁ*“iﬁ)? MERE - $i‘%&%
ME J\ﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁq%ﬁi‘éﬁTZM = n

Department Heads and Other Employees

BMAEERAMER

¢ |Implement ESG policies and related initiatives

e Collecting environmental performance data on the
projects we build and manage

¢ Refining our data collection methodology and system

e Improving the communication of KPIs and targets to
better track and monitor the sustainability

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s ESG performance and
examines and approves the Group's annual ESG report. We strike for
the balance between the company growth, community interest and
environmental protection, and committed to achieving sustainability
both strategically and operationally.

o EIHRE - HERERBRRRAAMEE
. J&E*ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁﬂaﬁg&ﬁfilﬁﬁ MERIE -~ 4L
RETARBABIR
. :ﬁﬁﬁ’]%@)*%%ﬁif&%%
o HEMRBAERNERNER UEF
Rt ER MR B Al R AR M RO 1B

EZEEEPRAAKENERE  HERERRR
VigERMERKENFERE HERERR
FoHMARAARR HRAMNERREREL
RMEGFE UBOERBREELERAR
BRRE-
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BR HEREIHRS

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (continued)

Board of Directors

The Board recognises that corporate social responsibility is essential
for implementing decisions related to the improvement of company.
We aim at creating a lasting and positive impact company aligning
with four guiding principles, including (i) Trust and Integrity; (ii)
Conscientiousness; (iii) Shared Value Creation; and (iv) Togetherness.
Throughout the year, we strive to go beyond compliance and the
Company was not subjected to any significant fines or non-monetary
sanctions for non-compliance with laws and regulations in 2023.

EREE &)

Exg

EEeRACEH RN EERASEER
HEANRAREEREE - RARTEH LSS
RERIEFE  RRTAENETERANGE -
BREOABERE : ()& FER: (iBEHRER:
RivFEXRE - BAZFRNBEARZHKE
ZR - WARRR ZZEZ=FUAEAREREM
ERERMPEABATIRA TR -EF
EHNERAUFEER  UTIHRMAHE TR

JE T PTERER A B 3 SRS

Our Core Value
e Managing to balance good corporate governance
and accountability to stakeholders by relevant
business blueprint

BMEME
o BB X E
RETFERFHBEER
SR ERE

Stakeholder
Communication
e Synchronising and
developing strong
partnerships to improve

>

Product
Sustainabiltiy
e Combining technology and
environmentally-considerate
design for a better

business and sustainability performance
performance ER TS EM
KO ERE Board of » AR LRI
o R IE R A i SR T H)RI
AMEBEME - LB Directors
E75 R AT FHE R RAEN E $§
Prosperous Staff Wellbeing

Communities
e Providing both investment and
supports to our community in a
lasting and meaningful way

ERHE
s U ARBEEN T A
HAIROAE R R IR E B SR

38 Superland Group Holdings Limited e 124 £ EZ A R A 7

e Creating exciting and long-term
opportunities for all employees, including
family values and innovative thinking to
drive excellence across the team

BEITFE
s AREE TAIEMEI ALK
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholders’ opinions are the solid foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development and success. The stakeholder engagement
helps the Group to develop a business strategy that meets the needs
and expectations of stakeholders, enhances the ability to identify risk
and strengthens important relationships. The Group communicates

with its stakeholders through various channels, as shown below, to
understand their needs and expectations.

Stakeholders Communication Channel
BHaE BERE

BR HEREIHRS

KhESHR

BNENBERRAKEAKEZRININNEE
Ef - BHE2EBPAEENENTAHNER
ROVEENOE T A N S D G- e
EERFR - AEERBETEMROBRRERR
EBE UBEBERFOHEBLLBPEL -

Needs and Expectations

Government and Regulatory e
Agencies
BRREE#HE U

Shareholders and Investors
BRREEEE

Employees .
== .

Annual reports, interim reports, ESG
reports and other public information
Fi - PHRE BE - -HEkER
HBEREMARER

Supervision and inspection
EERRE

Company's annual general meetings
and other general meetings of
shareholders

AREIRRBAFRG REMKRRRS
Company website

NGIEER

Press releases/announcements
MER RE

Annual reports, interim reports, ESG
reports and other public information
Fi - PHRE BRE HERER
HEREMARER

Training

=3I

Meetings

&

Performance evaluation
FIAE

Survey

ERAE

Staff engagement and voluntary
activities
BIZ2ERRTED
Company'’s internal portal
NGk

FEREME

Compliance with laws and regulations
BEEH

Timely tax payment

1R R AN TR IR

Contribution to the local economy
and employment

R BB R Rt %

Return on investments

&% & [Bl 7

Risk management

[Eg =g

Information disclosure and
transparency

BMERERERE

Protection on shareholders' rights
and fair treatment
REEMR s A FE 45

Employees’ remuneration and benefits
B A2 A

Employees’ rights

BT#a

Training and development

15 51| B B e

Occupational health and safety
BERERERZS
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BR MMEREIERS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholders
BHE

Customers
5F

Suppliers/Subcontractors/
Business Partners

HEs, 2EE,
EBEERH

Community and
Non-governmental
Organisations (NGOs)

#HERIFEFES
(EBFAH &)

Media
(=30

Communication Channel

Fax, email and customer services
telephone hotline

BE BEHREFRBIARES
Meetings

S

Feedback on products and services
Em &R R &

Meetings
Site visit
B AR 52
Survey
BERASL
Training

=l

Corporate social responsibility
programmes and voluntary activities
rEMSEEFEREIED
Sponsorship and Donation

=S L

ESG reports

R g RERRS

Social media platforms e.g. Facebook
page and LinkedIn page

HREET S - fiFacebook BE M
Linkedin 2 &

Enquiry mailbox
EHEH
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BFoESH®)

Needs and Expectations
EREAHIEE

Product and service quality assurance
B8 & mm B AR 75

Health and safety

fEERE %2 &

Information disclosure and
transparency

BERERERE

Business ethics

[BE3EK

Fair procurement
DT

Long-term cooperation
REIG1E

Win-win cooperation
EEEHF

Business ethics
EEIEL

community environment improvement
= EIRIE

Social responsibilities

DENmEE

Information transparency

B A RSB

Information transparency
A AFSEH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

When preparing the ESG Report, the Group directly engaged with
various stakeholders as part of the materiality assessment process
to identify and prioritise the issues to be included in the ESG Report
which the Board believes would have significant impact on the
Group's business and its stakeholders.

Process

BIE ERELIHRS

EEMMME

RREARE HEREAMER  FRAEEN
FHEREN R AREERENA TR ERE
B NREEAREP S RAARE X RE
RNEBERTZENZBEL MATF o

ik

Stage 1 Identification

REER1 5B

A selection of ESG issues that may reasonably be considered
important for the Group and its stakeholders from various
sources, including listing rules requirement, industry trends
and internal policies. 28 issues were identified and grouped
into 4 categories: Environment, Employment and Labour
Practices, Operating Practices and Community.

fesEdR (R LETMRARE  TRBER
MEBERER) BHAKEREFNEAIBESIER
REBREZMNRE B RERHE - HfIE
A28 Ez A
BREIER

Stage 2 Prioritisation
PEEX2 BEFF

Conducted online surveys to rate the importance of each
issue from the perspective of a stakeholder and the Group
using a scale of 1to 5.

Developed the materiality matrix based on the scores of the
surveys, set the threshold for materiality (i.e. at a score of
average) and prioritised a list of sustainability issues.

ETRLEBRRE  WFHERAKRENAE
HEERENEREETHD  FoRER

257 °

BEERAEN SRR EENEE  RESE
BUNEE (ITHE)  CHTHERRS
B -

Stage 3 Validation

FEER3 B

Management reviewed the materiality matrix and the
threshold for materiality. ESG issues, with a score of average
or above from the perspective of a stakeholder and the
Group, were prioritised as the most important sustainability
issues for the Group to address and report on.

ERERES AR RESERNE © 150
ERARBOAREHE - SRATHAR b
MR - B REARERS AR EER LR
Rt e E R AEE TR AR RS -
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BRE HNERELRE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued) BEEMFTML @)
Materiality Matrix BEEMEE

Based on the materiality matrix, the Board believes that the most HERWEZHEME  EE@RAHANEENEEH
pertinent sustainability issues which are material to both the Group HZZARBEEEMNHEREZEAIEUTS
and its stakeholders include the following: 18 :

Materiality Matrix
EEMEE

i ENEEN

Impcat on the Stakeholders

Impact on the Group
HASEMNESEM
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BE HEREIESE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continuea) EEMFAMA @
Materiality Matrix (continued) BEEMEMEE)
In 2023, the identified material topics are as follows: ZE=F  BMFEMNEHEESEZENT
Topics of High Importance 5 Energy efficiency
SEEEZE 588 R a
8 Environmental regulations compliance
B FIRIEEM
11 Employment practices
1M EEEE
12 Diversity and equal opportunities
REIZTIRTFERKS
13 Anti-discrimination
13RIER
14 Staff occupational health and safety
MVEIMHXEREEZS

15 Staff development and training

15 8 TR M5

19 Compliance with regulations on marketing, product and
service labelling

19 B <P 5 HE B R E M RS IR & A AR

20 Customers’ privacy and confidentiality

0EEMERERRE

21 Customer satisfaction

IR MERE

24 Quality of projects/services/products

20788 RIS/ EREER

25 Business ethics

25 EER

26 Anti-corruption training for management and employees

26BEEMEBE THREET

Topics of Medium Importance 6 Water efficiency
FEEEEA 6 K =

16 Prohibition of child labour and forced labour

167 L1 FA 2 T Fnse ) & 8h

17 Responsible supply chain management

17EEENHERER

18 Environmental friendliness on products or service
purchased

18 BR B 5 b AN AR 745 9 3R 35 R A 1

23 Safety of projects/services/products

BEE /R ERLE
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BRE MEREIEE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continuea) EEMFAML @
Materiality Matrix (continued) BEEMEMEE)
Topics of Lower Importance 1 Air Emissions
REEEZE 1 RR5 BN

2 Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions

BEREBYEM

3 Effluents management

3KER

4 Waste management

AREEYE R

7 Use of raw materials and packaging materials

7RME R BEDEER

9 Land use, pollution and restoration

9+ My A - ST ARMIKIE

10 Climate change

105/ (= # L

22 Intellectual property

22 FHEERE

27 Contributions to the society

27 #t = 'R/

28 Communication and connection with local community
28 BB M At [ B R AN B B
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Our Environment

The Group recognises the construction industry may generate
significant environmental impacts and uses a huge amount of
resources. We aim to reduce the environmental pressures that are
put on the already stressed natural systems, as well as play our part
in reducing contributions to global warming. We must also adapt and
be resilient to climate change and the impacts of inevitable increases
in extreme weather events.

We, therefore, do our utmost to engage our stakeholders and the
communities together with our colleagues via many different
approaches, through education, training and green volunteer
services. Through holding classes on environment, participating
actively in local community events, conducting environmental-
related emergency drills, visiting advanced green technology,
installing new environmental devices, etc., green concept of our
colleagues are strengthened and know-how in regulations
compliance, energy savings both in workplace and at home, waste
reduction and separation, green shopping, enhancing awareness in
caring the community or public and helping in sustainable
development are acquired.

In addition, the Group advocates energy saving and carbon
reduction, and is committed to achieving sustainable operations.
Therefore, we set clear emission reduction targets, aiming to reduce
all our emissions (including air pollutants, GHG, hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes, and sewage), energy consumption (including
electricity), consumption of resources (including water and paper) by
3% in terms of intensity, compared to corresponding intensities of
the Reporting Period in 2021, before 2026. Moreover, we are
investing more resources in recycling to support the development of
circular economy.

Policies

o Environmental Policy
Our Environmental Policy sets out our commitment to
controlling and maintaining a high standard of environmental
protection. We make sure that our projects are in compliance
with all relevant environmental regulations and other
environmental requirements stated in the contract, and will
seek rooms for improvement by introducing advanced
technology or new production method.

BR HEREIHRS

REEBE

BEMHRE
AEEMBREEVRERFEREATE I
FAAEER -RANBRERLEEATES
BB RRGIEINRIRE S - BB IE 23K
1t o AP I a4 28 38 e A o SR iR S L S B TN ]
BRAOEmRREMFIBINAHRAOZE o

At - RIBEEHRE - BIIRFETRERESE
ZRIAANGTN  BRAZHBRMANFNHE
HEKEE—L2E  AEEEBRPRRBLE -
BR2EMEEEY ETRRESFHEE 2
BRENRRMEERMNLZEFNRREES
e RENRERERE - AEJELEES @
HIRRAE WY AKEBERAFESRR B
ETARO ETEMEHRREAEERR - RDRE
BYRETERYIE KBy  RREEL
BHRARNBHS

AN - REBEIREE BRI - BN EBUOKEKE -
RERMEFTEABBERE  SHE_FT X
FRIZFMEHFRY (BRERSEY RER
B BENEZTEEYSK) BERER (B
BN  BRER(BEAKEAR) OBEAL
“ECFWNEERA3% - B BHATER
BREWTERARZER  RERREENE
&’ o

BUR

e  RREE
T APT B IR AR BRSR AT AR 2 PI BN #2 61 % o 55
SARFHNRERE - LAEEREMNIEE
NERKNMBNMAERBREEZRLE M
RFEER WHEEBIASRERMIHE
ETERSRKBERN TR -
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BRE MEREIEE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

our Environment (continued)
Policies (continued)

46

Waste Management Policy
Our Waste Management Policy sets out our commitment to
controlling both hazardous and non-hazardous waste
production. We provide clear guideline for our workers to
follow and ensure the compliance of the laws and regulations
concerning waste disposal.

GHG Management Policy

Our GHG Management Policy outlines our management
approaches to reducing carbon dioxides and other GHG
emissions in our daily operations. We will annually estimate
and review our carbon emission to monitor progress towards
our related target and set advanced targets if appropriate.

Energy Management Policy

Our Energy Management Policy outlines our dedication to
improving the performance on reducing electricity
consumption. We adopt an array of energy saving measures in
our offices and educate our employee with the eco-friendly
tips and ideas.

Climate Change Risk Management Policy

Our Climate Change Risk Management Policy sets out our
commitment to identifying and managing climate change-
related risks and impacts, and to formulate relevant climate
strategies based on business needs. The policy is updated
annually based on the actual circumstances.

Environmental Management Systems

Our environmental management system is stated in our
internal guideline. We make sure that the management system
is understood by each employee, relevant subcontractors and
their workers in order to continuously reducing the negative
impact on the site surrounding environment by controlling and
mitigation measure.

Environmental Impact Management Policy

We are concerned about the impact of our business operations
on the environment and natural resources. The policy lists the
management strategies we have adopted to deal with the
impacts from different aspects, which are summarised as
follows:

Superland Group Holdings Limited e & & £ EZ i H R A 7

RIZEEME &)
RIHBE ()
W ()

. BEYEEHE

HAIERERDE R BRRETHR B IES
BENREENERY HMAR/TARHER
HaEsl NHERLERETERESR
VB IR YRR ROEM

R E B
HPMRERBEERRSML T HRMER
BRERLS AR RkEMREEREHER
ME IR TR - B B F A E MR ET ik
MME - LAEHEARR B R e E X E E
RATSLEREBR -

BENR BRI

AR EEBRR T HRMBNIES
HAORENER - RAAERLAZTHRR—K
FIEiRetE b - WA 8 TERRREERMER

RIRZCIRR R B & HEIBOR

B RRERECEERREEBRTAR
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BE HEREIESE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued) RIEBEEME®)

our Environment (continued) RMWERE (&)

Policies (continued) BR (&)

e Environmental Impact Management Policy (continued) o IREZEEENE(E)

Environmental Impact Management Policy

REYEERIR

Comply with Relevant Environmental e
Laws and Regulations

BTRANRRAERE AR

Work on Environmentally Friendly

Implement practices and measures to ensure compliance with
environmental laws and regulations
HETHRANRRAERE ARG AETOIEN RIEE
Promote business that helps the development of circular society
Projects o HRBEMARBRAMENERS
HEHRBRIFNIER e Promote other business that reduces environmental burden
o EREMBERREBENER

Manage and Reduce o Monitor and reduce electricity consumption and waste production in all
Environmental Burden construction sites
B NRIKIREAE J RITERLISHERITRDE N EREREEMNESE

o Monitor and reduce the burden and impact of business activities on the
environment

s ERUVRIEBEHUHRENEBELTE

o Evaluate environmental impacts in the supply chains and projects

e GIAMEEKEERHNREXE

Promote Environmental Education o Promote efficient environmental management system
and Communication e HITEAMENREBTERS
HITRRHERED e Expand the disclosure of non-financial information

o BEARIMBEHNKERE

RESH
REFBEPIRMAH - RANEEATEETIR
BRE  BRETRER :

Environmental Compliance
Our projects are subject to certain environmental requirements
pursuant to the laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including but not

limited to:

e Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311); o ZERSREHIEH(EINE)

e Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400); o IREEHIEMI(FE400E)

e Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132); o NBEHERMEUEN (F132F)
e Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354); and s FEYEEBEBROI(EIBLIE): Rk

e Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358). o IKSHEEFIEH (FI8E) o

During the Reporting Period, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge,
the Group was not aware of significant non-compliance issues in this
regard.

RIBEHE  BEFRA - NEBEL FHER
RENEAGFEERNEREH -
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BR HEREIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions

Environmental Impacts from Operations and Mitigation
Measures

We have held regular on-site meeting overseen by the project
environmental management team to check if there is significant
environmental impact, risk and non-compliance in order to manage
and control on-site environmental impacts. Besides, some of our
projects also follow the requirement of the Building Environmental
Assessment Method (BEAM Plus) for New Buildings, which is a green
building initiative introduced by the Hong Kong Green Building
Council.

Air Emissions

Dust is generated from construction activities and material
transportation. We introduce mitigation measures in our construction
process. For example, demolition works areas are sprayed with
water or dust suppression chemicals, open burning is prohibited,
regularly maintained for equipment and vehicles. We conduct regular
dust concentration monitoring during the construction period for
required projects. Besides, the use of mobile vehicle is another
source of air emissions. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s air
pollutant emissions are as follows:

Air Pollutant Emissions’

RIZEEME &)

B
EEELNRESERERIER

B EHRTHEE  AEEREEEENRE
1 RERCAERREFE EMRLESR X
EETREMERER  AEERES THIRRR
& o ptoh - I D IR B TRE B AR IRFT (BEAM
Plus) i i SEMMTE - ERBBERCRERGHE
TTRRR B IR E(EH -

ZRHEH

BEZPHLYERSELER - ROIEZEBE
RRETREER - BOIME - £k TRREE
KRR - ZIFBARE - W EMEERE
FEE o MM T RS AR IR BETEN
ERREER - Us - ERRBEREE RN
5 —RR - RNBEME - AEERELENZER
ERMBERIT

ERTRYBER

Nitrogen Oxides(NOy) kilograms
RAEYINO) T
Sulphur Oxides(SOx) kilograms
HE(LY(S0) T3
Particle Matter(PM) kilograms
FEKLY) (PM) T

Compared with data in 2022, air pollutant emissions remained at a
stable level.

! The data covers emissions from diesel consumption of the Group's vehicles. It is
estimated based on "How to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange.

2 The data has been restated.
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705.30 762.26?
0.61 0.68
47.36 50.722

HE-T- FOBE  REDHENERSEY
PE B RIF BT M KTE o

! BIRREAEB TETEREZ M PTE LT - R
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

GHG Emissions

Climate change and global warming topics have made increasing
concerns in recent years. We strive to reduce carbon dioxides and
other GHG emissions in our daily operations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group’s GHG emissions are as follows:

GHG Emissions?

BR HEREIHRS

RIZEEME &)

B (&)

BERBIER

LEX RIRE L AEIREEMER =X EIRE -
ﬁﬁﬁéﬁzﬁﬁaﬁéz@qﬂmb*%{tﬁm& LR =
REMPEM - N EHHE AEENBEEREE
G/ N

BERBHER

Scope 14 tonnes CO.-equivalent 99.86 112.32
FHE— AP —EiRE 2

Scope 2° tonnes CO.-equivalent 114.71 175.91
EE S AP —EiRE 2

Total tonnes CO,-equivalent 214.57 288.23
@et AW -FHEE

Intensity tonnes CO,-equivalent per square meters 0.061 0.082
BE BEARAM_ELREES

GHG emissions declined compared to data in 2022. This was because
the Group reduced the opening hours of the exhibition halls,
resulting in decreased electricity consumption. However, our primary
source of GHG emissions for the Group continues being the indirect
energy emissions arising from internal purchased electricity
consumption (Scope 2). These emissions accounted for 53% of our
total GHG emissions.

The following GHG management measures are implemented:

o Seek and explore operating measures that can efficiently
reduce GHG emissions;

o Adopt sustainable technologies to offset inevitable emissions;
and

o Encourage and educate employees to participate in
environmental protection activities and related eco-friendly
practices.

3 The figures covered the direct and indirect GHG emissions from the Group. The
calculation method of the corresponding GHG emission figures and the emission
factors used in the calculation are based on “How to Prepare an ESG Reports”
and its annex “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by
the Stock Exchange, “Fifth Assessment Report” issued by The Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC") and the “2020 Sustainability Report” published
by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited.

2 Scope 1: The direct emission from the business operations owned or controlled
by the Group, such as emissions from the use of vehicle.

5 Scope 2: The indirect energy emissions from the internal purchased electricity
consumption by the Group.

6 The Group's total floor area of the reported boundaries were 3,534.03 square

meters in both 2022 and 2023.

B —Z - —FWE RERBRINEAM
T - ERAASSEERSHIREE T REMNF
E&E%FEJ RmEETENNERE - AT - SN

HREEENBZEEEREER(BE D
ﬁﬁ{Fﬁﬁ’JIKHFEK}QE HHMEHTFRED
53%

AEECERNATREERBEELE

o BRIUKRRALABAIRD R =R
LEEM

o RMARERMREE T ERABEN
K

U]]

s ZFEEHREBT2HERRFREHLBEBERR
MO

: BRREASENERNHZREREBHR - HatE2
IR B S B KR ERIR - LB REAME) T
B2 RIRERARIEEERIES)  BRRR
REMCEFMIZERIPCOERRTERERTEENE
RABHME 2020 FAIFEHERRE ©

3 HE—: BAEEREERERNEBEEEENEEH
TR+ BA{E R VIR R R A T AR BV BRI o

g #E_ : BAEENIDEEINEE JEEE LN BB
TRHERR

6 AEER T —FER-F_—FHREERALEER
TEE B3,534.03F 5K o
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BR HEREIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

GHG Emissions (continued)

The Group will continue assessing, recording and disclosing our GHG
emissions annually, and hope to establish clear responsibilities
bearing system for fulfilling the emission policies and goals. We will
review goals and policies regularly and refine the data collection
system and develop reduction strategy, if appropriate, based on
projection of data in the coming years.

Waste and Wastewater Management

The Group acknowledges possible environmental impacts of waste
generated during its operations such as site clearance, excavation
works, and construction and fitting out works. The Group is
committed to reducing its impact on the environment by managing
its waste in an efficient and sustainable manner as stated in the
Waste Management Policy. Each member of the Group, as well as
subcontractors, should take reasonable steps to avoid the generation
of waste by well planning of the works. The following hierarchy of
options should be considered on waste management:

Reduce — Avoid generation of waste to reduce total waste
production;

o Reuse — Encourage reusing the construction materials and
tools before disposal;

J Recycle — Segregate waste and mixed construction waste for
effective recycling;

o Disposal — Avoid unorganised random disposal of waste and
dispose of waste to comply with statutory and regulatory
regulations; and

o Goals — Set suitable goals and targets in the coming financial
years to ensure continuous improvement of waste
management.

50 Superland Group Holdings Limited e {4 =B i A R A 7

RIZEEME &)

BEE (&)

BEREHER(E)

AEBRBEESFIE CTHELABRERMANEE
REBHNE UHEETRENEEAESE
NERFERBREBE - B EHRTBERER
KR WRBHRRFENBEREN - =EHE
Uit S 22408 I ) TE 4 MO OB PR SR

BRYNEKER

AEBNMTBEHLERRET (MITHFE - ZHT
BAMBZERKETR) EXNERY YR
BEKTE - ARERINIEREEDELRR
ARTE WERRAIFEN T EREREY /W
DHERENTE AREZKENARDBEY
ERMAEER BRZERI T REBRELRE
BY - BEVEERERZEENTNERZER:

o RS —BRELABREWARLERMEE

=

=

s ER—-ZRERENEMAREMHLIA:

o m —BERWERSEEREEYHENU
BREY

s RE-EREBHEMSMBERERRERY K

REBEVMATAZEREEER K

s BE -—ERKNMBFETRETEZNHE
BREH  URRSESCERZDER -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Waste Management by Recycling

We use resources according to needs and try our best to practice
the three principles of “reduce”, “reuse” and “recycle”. We are
committed to encouraging enterprises and employees to come up
with more innovative solutions for waste recycling in order to make
good use of resources. With the support of customers and project
teams along the value chain, we believe this collaborative approach
is moving towards a greener future, benefiting the industry and
society, and showing results.

In our office work, we pay great attention to the recycle and reuse of
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE). For instance, we
donate computers, printers, photocopiers, kettles or microwave
ovens to recyclers for processing. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue refining its waste reduction measures and disclose relevant
results where appropriate. The Group will seek continuous
improvement in waste management performance by setting
appropriate goals and objectives throughout the organisation.

During the Reporting Period, wastes generation from the Group'’s
offices are as follows:
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7 The figure covers the paper consumption in the Group's offices.
8 The Group's total floor area of the reported boundaries were 3,534.03 square

meters in both 2022 and 2023.
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BR HEREIHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Waste Management by Recycling (continued)

Since all the wastes are treated and settled by fixed monthly
payment by our subcontractors for the projects, we do not engage in
the waste management process of the project and do not obtain
related data for the project site. To the best of our Directors’
knowledge, the Group was not aware of any significant amount of
hazardous wastes generated in our projects and offices. During the
Reporting Period, there were 87 toner cartridges used in our record,
and were all collected by qualified suppliers for recycling. Since our
business nature does not consume much water, we were not aware
of any significant amount of wastewater generated. The water supply
in our office is also managed by the landlord, so we have no related
consumption data on freshwater. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue monitoring any significant hazardous waste and wastewater
generated from our business, and review our current wastage and
wastewater management system coverage when appropriate.

Use of Resources

Energy Efficiency

As stated in our Energy Management Policy, we aim to improve
energy efficiency as a continuous improvement process. We strive to
conserve energy through the following measures in our office:

o Maintain a reasonable indoor temperature between 24-26
degree Celsius while turning on air-conditioners;

o Electrical appliances shall be turned off if not in use;

o Turn off lighting and air-conditioners in rooms that are not in
use or during non-office hours;

. Select energy-efficient electrical appliances with “Grade1”
energy label,

o Promote the use of energy-saving light sources instead of
using incandescent lightbulbs; and

. Computers are set to auto idle mode.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Energy Consumption and Intensity

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s energy consumption data
are as follows:

Energy Consumption®
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RIZEEME &)
EREM (2
EREERBE
R EART » AN M R AL RS BRI T

RETREFE®
Direct Energy Consumption KWh in '000s 403 453
HEERER TETRE
Diesel litres 37,624 42,309
e A
Indirect Energy Consumption KWh in '000s 310 475
R RH 3 TETRE
Electricity Kwh in '000s 310 475
ES FEF & i
Total KWh in '000s 713 928
wt TETRE
Intensity Kwh in ‘000s per square meter 0.20 0.26
nE BYHRTEFRE™?

Compared to data in 2022, there was a decrease in total energy
consumption, both in terms of direct and indirect energy
consumption. The primary reason for the decrease in the total
energy consumption was that the Group shortened the opening
hours of the exhibition halls during the Reporting Period, thereby
reducing electricity consumption from the indirect energy
consumption.

Water Efficiency

Under the effect of global warming, we understand that water
resources are precious, and particularly concern about the water
scarcity pressures in different regions. Our Group's fresh water is
supplied by the Water Supplies Department and managed by the
landlord of our office. Therefore, there is no issue in sourcing water
resources and no related consumption data. Looking ahead, the
Group will continue refining measures and evaluating the related
results achieved.

? The figures covered the direct and indirect energy consumption in the Group, the
calculation of GHG emissions is referenced from the “How to Prepare an ESG
Reports” and its annex “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
published by the Stock Exchange.

® The Group's total floor area of the reported boundaries were 3,534.03 square
meters in both 2022 and 2023.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Material Consumption

In our office, paper is one of the major materials consumed. We aim
to maintain a paperless office unless it is necessary. To mitigate the
environmental impacts of material consumptions, we implement the
following practices in office:

. Set up recycling boxes near the photocopiers to collect single-
sided paper for reuse and both-sided used paper for recycling;

o Strictly control the use and order of materials, such as
concrete, steel, solvent, paint to avoid surplus waste;

. Use of double-sided photocopies and emails to reduce the
consumption of paper; and

o Encourage staff to reuse stationeries and materials such as
used envelopes, document folders and binding materials.

During the Reporting Period, the data of the Group’s paper
consumption and recycle amount in the offices are as follows:
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Paper Consumption tonnes
RE NI
Paper Recycled tonnes
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Our paper consumption significantly increased compared to data in
2022. This increase was primarily due to the commencement of
more construction sites in 2023, which typically required higher
paper usage during the initial stages of sites.

Packaging Materials
Given the Group’s nature of business, our operations do not involve
any significant consumption of packaging materials.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change

Climate change is one of the biggest global challenges faced by the
society nowadays, and we must act now for protecting our climate
and our communities. In recent years, extreme weather, such as
strong winds, heavy rainfall, tides and floods, have become the focus
of news. Logistics and supply chains are particularly vulnerable.
Heavy rainfall, rising tides, and floods may cause serious damage to
assets such as buildings, warehouses, and goods in storage,
resulting in financial losses. Although such incidents are beyond
everyone's control, the Group believes that all stakeholders should
work together to address climate change.

As part of the group-level measures, our preliminary study of climate
forecast planning has revised the extreme weather section of the
group’s emergency response plan to identify relevant physical risks
and areas for improvement, for example, upgrading the current
facility management model to prepare for extreme wind and flood
events more effectively. In the coming years, our ESG Working Group
will further explore and conduct climate-related studies on business
operations.

In response to the “Paris Agreement”, the Hong Kong Government
issued the “"Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan”, and formulated
various plans and actions, setting out the vision of “Zero-carbon
Emissions e Liveable City e Sustainable Development”. The
Government has determined to set medium-term goal as halving
Hong Kong's total carbon emissions from 2005 levels before 2035.
The Hong Kong Government has also announced that they will strive
to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050, and mainland China will strive
to achieve carbon neutrality by 2060. In the context of the global
transition to a low-carbon economy, the Group has also identified
potential risks associated with regulatory, technological, market and
reputational aspects specific to the location in which we operate. We
will integrate these identified risks into our business strategy,
integrate assessment and its results into the business risk
management framework, and continuously and regularly update and
identify, assess and manage various risks.
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BRE MEREIEE

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change (continued)

We formulated the “Climate Change Risk Management Policy”, to
outline that the Group understood climate-related risks and
opportunities relevant to our business operations. We are committed
to identifying and managing climate-related risks and impacts, and
formulating relevant climate strategies based on business needs. We
strive to work with stakeholders along the value chain and a practical
action plan includes:

Establish and continue updating carbon emission inventory, as
a benchmark to set up carbon reduction strategies and
emission reduction targets;

Provide professional construction services from the
perspective of environmental protection, and committed to
reducing its related pollutions;

Set GHG reduction target, achieved by measures such as
controlling paper consumption, office temperature, vehicles
emissions, etc.,

Ensure that all subcontractors abide by the “Climate Change
Risk Management Policy” during works, and implement
measures to ensure employees strictly follow the policy;,

Whenever feasible, encourage employees, suppliers and
contractors to reduce their carbon footprints in daily
operations; and

Ensure that at least 80% of the raw materials of wood products
used in our operations come from high-quality wood certified
by the Forest Stewardship Council.

The “Climate Change Risk Management Policy” sets a framework for
the Group's climate change strategy, which will be updated every
year based on the actual situation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change (continued)

Apart from the potential additional costs arising from the
requirements or expectations of relevant laws and regulations, Hong
Kong currently does not have a carbon tax or carbon emission cap,
while in mainland China, carbon tax and the carbon emission limit
only cover the energy and industrial industries. Currently, there is no
direct impact due to GHG emissions. However, since the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority announced that the Hong Kong Government is
studying the possibility of Hong Kong as a regional carbon trading
centre, and the scope of carbon tax and carbon emission restrictions
in the mainland China will continue to expand, it may eventually
affect the upstream supply chain (such as raw material suppliers)
and indirectly affect other costs. The table below summarises the
key transitional risks identified based on the inherent risk assessment
and the associated responses. The risk assessments use a short to
medium-term expected time scope.

Identified Major Transitional Risks
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Responsive Measures
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Policies .
12§

In response to the “Paris Agreement”, e
the Hong Kong Government issued
the "Hong Kong's Climate Action e
Plan”, and formulated various plans e
and actions, setting out the vision of
"Zero-carbon Emissions e Liveable
City e Sustainable Development”. The e
Government has determined to set
medium-term goal as halving Hong
Kong's total carbon emissions from
2005 levels before 2035. The Hong
Kong Government has also
announced that they will strive to
achieve carbon neutrality by 2050
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Formulated the “Climate Change Risk
Management Policy”
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Consider purchasing electric vehicles, and
gradually replace vehicles using fossil fuels
combustion (e.g. diesel)
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change (continued)

RIZEEME &)
RIEB(2)

Use new methods and technology in construction

Identified Major Transitional Risks Responsive Measures
ERANEERELER PE¥ e

Construction . With the commitment of the Hong e

FREE Kong Government to adopting green e

buildings in the public sector, we e
need to prepare resources and
expertise in response to changing e
customer expectations and market e
demands, to respond to new trends
in the construction industry
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Insurance . Regulatory disclosure requirements e
Rbg for climate change are getting stricter

o RIEE HEE IR ERMBESE

° Require financial management of
climate change through stress tests e

o EXFBENAAHRIREET
MsER J

Head Office Regulatory disclosure requirements e
B EE for climate change are getting stricter
J Rz S HBEE HE R 2K E BEIE

Over the years, we have been expanding our business through
different opportunities, accelerating transformation and making the
Group smarter and greener, safer for employees and users. We are
using more digital platforms such as video conferencing instead of
in-person meetings to reduce carbon emissions from transportation.
The transformation has made our operation and facilities more
sustainable, which also demonstrates our commitment to resources
and environmental protection.
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Strategically use new construction technology, to
fulfil customers’ expectation
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The market continues to invent new technologies,
utilise advanced construction technologies where
feasible, to communicate more effectively and
make accurate decisions during construction,
thereby reducing redo, waste and dangers
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Some projects have passed the BEAM and/or
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design
(LEED) or green projects that meet equivalent
standards
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The Group will closely monitor the prudent
financial management related to climate change
and disclose relevant laws and regulations
development
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Establish ESG Working Group to discuss and
identify various risks and promote various
measures
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Closely monitor the regulatory disclosure
requirements and formulate plans to regularly
carry out relevant risk assessments
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

Our People

Employment

The Group understands that employees are one of the most
important factors for our success and they are our key assets to hold
a leading and reputable position in the industry. Our success hinges
on our employees’ provision of consistent, quality and reliable
services, and this holds true for both technical and support staff of
all levels. We consider human resources as the most important asset
and we put staff development on top of the list while fulfilling our
Company's sustainability journey. To meet the needs of our
sustainable growth and business development, we regularly assess
our colleague’s developmental needs to ensure everyone, including
the top management, is receiving support to achieve their top
potential and self-actualisation. We strive to provide work-life
balance with a variety of different activities for our employees whom
we regard as family.

Policies

Our Employee Handbook sets out the details on remuneration,
dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hours, rest periods,
diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination, and formulates
corresponding policies on the above aspects to standardise various
human resources management measures and practices.

Employment Management

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group generally recruits our employees from the open market
and by referrals. We are committed to attracting and retaining
employees to provide service for us. Based on sustainable
benchmark, department heads evaluate human resources and
decide whether recruitment is needed for our business development.
The Group has formulated specific evaluation benchmark, for making
an objective and fair selection of each applicant, in order to select
talents who are suitable for the needs of the job, so as to avoid any
possible employment disputes. In order to attract and retain
employees, the Group emphasises the importance of development
and growth of employees. The promotion of employee is based on
their performance and capability. Performance appraisal is
conducted regularly to evaluate employees’ performance regarding
working attitude, technical skills, interpersonal skills, etc. We also
develop incentive programs to reward staff for excellent
performance and attitude. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Staff development and training”.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continuead)

Employment Management (continued)

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal (continued)

The dismissal or voluntary termination of employee’s contracts shall
be enforced according to the employment laws and regulations in
Hong Kong. Relevant procedures of voluntary termination of
employment contract are clearly stated in the Employee Handbook.
If an employee has any serious misconduct, such as serious violation
of the content of the employment contract, occupational misconduct
or misbehaviour, frequent neglect of duty, etc., the Group will not
tolerate once it is verified, and the employee involved may face
immediate dismissal or disciplinary action. Moreover, the Group will
arrange exit interview for exit employees, hoping to provide an
opportunity to understand the employee’s past experience working
with the company. Information is thus collected for future reference
in functional and welfare benefit establishment and system
improvements.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group is committed to investing resources to create a safe and
harmonious, fair and equal working environment, ensuring that
employees are treated equally in every aspect of their jobs. We are
actively developing various skills of employees and granting different
forms of job opportunities to enable employees to accumulate
relevant work experience in the Group. We hold a respectful attitude
towards employees, customers and applicants and adopt an
employee diversity policy to create a work environment that is
capable and culturally diverse. Moreover, we are committed to
providing a discrimination-free working environment. We will never
tolerate any form of discrimination or harassment.

We will never tolerate any discrimination or harassment based on
gender, physical fitness, intelligence, race, age, sexual orientation,
nationality, religion, family status, etc. It applies to all aspects in
employment, including but not limited to recruitment, promotion,
transfer, job assignment, rewards and welfare benefits, training and
development, suspension, etc. We provide channels to promote
open and transparent multi-directional communications within the
Company. We have established a whistle-blowing policy for
employee to report any unethical behaviour and other misconduct in
workplace.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued) HtEEm e

Employment Management (continuead) EREEE (&)

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination FTERE SRLRRER(E)

(continued)

Employment profile during the Reporting Period is as follow: HwEPENEBEROT

Employment Profile EESR
Workforce Distribution BT oM
As at 31 December 2023" R-BE-_=%t+=-H=+-—-HA"
By Gender =Bl
Male B 180 204
Female % 58 68
By Age Group RE R
Below 30 305 AT 52 71
30-50 30-50 146 151
Over 50 50B% A £ 40 50
By Employment Type RERER
Permanent 2B 235 269
Part-time i 3 3
By Geographical Region & i1
Hong Kong BE 238 272
Mainland China A A 0 0
Other Ef 0 0
Total et 238 272

il It includes the employees of the Group only. Workers of the subcontractors are m EEEAEEEE  HPBEEHIATARN -

not included.
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BR HEREIHRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continuead)

Employment Management (continued)

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination
(continued)

The Group strictly abides by related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to:

Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57);

. Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282);

o Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485);
o Construction Workers Registration Ordinance (Cap. 583);

. Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608),

. Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480y,

o Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487),

o Family Status Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527); and

o Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
significant non-compliance case on employment practices.

Employee Retention

Remuneration, Welfare and Compensation

We establish labour contracts with each of our employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws. The remuneration
package which we offer to employees includes salary, discretionary
year-end bonuses, discretionary incentive bonuses, and other cash
subsidies. Moreover, to attract and retain talents, the Group offers
competitive remuneration package with a variety of welfare benefits,
including performance-based bonus, Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes, medical insurance, overtime compensation, business
travel allowance for long business trips and night-shift allowance.

We determine the salary of our employees mainly based on their
qualifications, experiences and performance. The performance of
our employees is reviewed regularly for numerous purposes such as
salary adjustments, bonuses and promotions. We intend to maintain
our remuneration packages competitive to attract talented labour in
the construction industry and retain existing staff members for
consistent, quality and reliable services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employment Retention (continued)

Rest Period and Working Hours

The Group provides reasonable working hours and rest periods to
employees. All employees are entitled to Public or Statutory Holidays
as announced in The Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Gazette each year. In addition to those
Holidays, employees are entitled to annual leave, sick leave,
compensation leave, paternity leave, maternity leave, marriage
leave, compassionate leave, birthday leave, etc.

Employee activities

To cultivate self-confidence and enhance the sense of belonging and
team spirit of the staff, the Company organises recreational activities
which are beneficial to the body and mind and encourages active
participation of all employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group organised Chinese New Year Fai Chun making, team building
activities, Nine-Square Division competition, Mid-Autumn Festival
lantern making, Halloween and Christmas activities, etc.

Employee turnover rate during the Reporting Period is as follow:

BR HEREIHRS

HEEm®)

AT EEE)

KEBRREITH
AEBREERHAENTIRERASKE - A
BEHVZFEEEFRTHRBRFEERESF M
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1EEZE
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FIARBREG2E - NIEMHE  AEEAKT
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REHMEERALENOT

Turnover Rate™ Tk

By Gender R R

Male Xl 1.48% 2.94%
Female peg i 14.22% 5.15%
By Age Group BER

Below 30 30 AT 4.17% 4.58%
30-50 30-50 7% 4.74% 2.98%
Over 50 50m A £ 4.58% 3.50%
By Geographical Region 2 35

Hong Kong A 4.59% 3.49%
Mainland China FE R 0.00% 0.00%
Other Hb 0.00% 0.00%
Overall st 4.59% 3.49%

12 Turnover rate = average number of monthly departures in the Reporting Period/ 12 TR -—MEMARNAETFEREAZS REHARNERA

headcount at the end of the Reporting Period. The Group had a total of 131
employees turnover during the Reporting Period.

o AREIAF 131858 TS BREBER -
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continuead)

Employment Retention (continued)

Health and Safety

Health and Safety policy is developed for safeguarding our
employees and is also one of the core values of the Company. We
uphold a strict practical standard and management system on health
and safety issues. Trainings and safety measures are promoted in all
levels of employees to ensure job site safety. The senior project
management staff shall have the responsibility on the
implementation of the safety measures and its operational
effectiveness.

Policies

We develop internal regulations and policies on Industrial Safety
Management, including chapters in Safety Control on Employees,
Safety Control on Workplace, Safety Risks and Responses, Corporate
Safety Plan, and Emergency Response Instructions.

1. Safety and Health Policy
We are committed to developing and achieving a safe working
environment. Safety and Health (S&H) at work is our first
priority over other matters. Our Safety and Health Policy sets
out our commitments and our safety performance goal with
the accident frequency rate not higher than 0.55 per 100,000
man-hours worked.

2. Employee Handbook
We have clearly stated the contingency measures that need to
be implemented in case of work accidents of different severity
in our Employee Handbook, and require employees to strictly
abide by the rules of no smoking in the workplace to reduce
the risk of work safety hazards and maintain healthy and
comfortable work environment.

Occupational Health and Safety Measures

Owing to the wide variety of our Projects, each Project is required to
develop a Project-specific Safety Plan, overseen by the related
management team and the main contractors. The Corporate Safety
Plan outlines the approaches to coordinate, manage and control the
works in order to protect the safety, health and welfare of all
personnel and the public engaged on the Project or affected by the
operations. It is also established to ensure that all legislation and
contractual requirements are observed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employment Retention (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)
Our Progress

1.

Enhancing on-site inspections

In order to enhance the on-site inspections, we establish an
internal safety organisation specialising in managing the
occupational safety issues in Project sites. Our Safety
Supervisors and Officers are responsible for conducting regular
inspections on the Project Safety Plan and safety performance
of each Project site. Safety meetings are held regularly for
reporting any special findings and progresses on the safety
monitoring, and the process is monitored by the Project
Director and Senior Manager.

Emergency preparedness

Emergency Plans are prepared for adverse situation such as
extreme weather and fire event. We encourage the formation
of emergency response unit for projects by main contractors.
Emergency contacts shall be provided by the main contractors
to make sure an effective communication between the
emergency response unit and the workers. In addition, in order
to ensure the effectiveness of the Group's Fire Emergency
Procedures, we have carried out fire emergency drills during
the Reporting Period to simulate whether employees can make
timely and appropriate response in accordance with the fire
emergency procedures in the event of a fire in the Group's
offices. We have reviewed its effectiveness after the drill and
recorded the specific information in the “Corporate Fire Drill
Report”.

Safety training and education

We offered safety training to our employees and encouraged
them to participate in various activities relating to health and
safety in pursuit of enhancing our employees’ safety
awareness and knowledge in accident prevention and handling
process. We ensure that all our employees shall hold a valid
mandatory safety training identification (Green Card) and
receive site safety induction training prior the commencement
of works. Moreover, we also encourage job specific training for
workers engaged in jobs which require necessary safety
knowledge.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continuead)

Employment Retention (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)
Our Progress (continued)

4.

66

Health assurance

Health protection and control are necessary for the prevention
of the occupational diseases and accidents. We display the
physical properties, chemical properties, hazards, safe
handling and storage instructions, and precautionary measures
for all hazardous substances through “Material Safety Data
Sheets”. Protection and mitigation measures are implemented
for common occupational problems related to dust, vigorous
vibration and noise. Moreover, first aid facilities and welfare
facilities are maintained in a hygienic condition and are
applicable under the local legislation.

Accident and incident investigation and reporting

We attach great importance to the safety and health of
frontline workers. After the occurrence of a site accident, a
detailed report shall be completed and submitted to the head
office no later than 2 working days. Senior management and
Safety Officers shall bear the responsibility to investigate all the
occurred accidents and provide corrective action plans and
recommendations as preventive measures to avoid
recurrence.

Epidemic control management

In early March 2023, the society has fully resumed normalcy
after Hong Kong Government lifted the mandatory mask-
wearing requirement and all anti-epidemic measures applicable
to the public. COVID-19 is now managed as per general upper
respiratory tract illness, while the focus of anti-epidemic
measures is the protection of the high-risk groups. Our
business has fully resumed on the premise of safeguarding the
safety and healthy of our employees. Sick leave arrangement
for the infected colleagues is the same as for other illnesses.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employment Retention (continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Safety Performance

Our Projects are subject to certain safety and health requirements
pursuant to the laws in Hong Kong, including but not limited to The
Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59) and The
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509). During the
Reporting Period, there was no confirmed case of non-compliance
with the regulations. Among all the reported occupational accidents
to the Labour Department, two of them were serious. We will
continue our efforts to raise safety awareness among our
stakeholders and ensure that we learn from these events to prevent
any recurrence. As at the 31 December 2023, the data of the Group's
work-related injuries and fatalities of the past three reporting years
are listed as below:
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Number of Reportable Accidents™ AE2EREHEHED 2 4 6
Number of Fatalities T AER 0 0 0
Fatalities Rate per 1,000 Employees BTZEERT AT EM

and Workers™ 0 0 0
Lost Days Due to Injuries’ ATEEAXTIERES 1,067 243 589.5

Looking ahead, we strive to improve our safety management system.
The Group will continue updating and reviewing our Safety and
Health Policy and our safety targets to strengthen the safety
incentive of our frontline workers and enhance their awareness of
safety in work environment. Effective safety trainings and
communications will be upheld by holding more meetings and
discussions on the inspections and evaluation for improvements.

1S The data disclosure represents the number of serious occupational accidents
among all reported accidents.

o Fatality rate per 1,000 employees and workers = (Number of fatality/Daily average
employees and workers) x 1,000.

B The data includes the total number of lost workdays due to occupational

accidents in the Group’s Hong Kong office and the projects.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continuead)

Employment Retention (continued)

Staff Development and Training

The Group believes that employees are our most important assets to
our prosperity. The Group has formulated staff development and
training policies, and consolidate the variety of trainings provided to
staff into the following categories:

Induction training for new employees

The new induction training provided by the Group aims to help
new employees understand the company, including general
human resources policies, salary payment procedures, welfare
benefits, office safety regulations, etc. Moreover, all new
employees will receive annual training on anti-harassment,
anti-discrimination, anti-corruption and data security on the
first day of work commencement.

Internal trainings

In order to meet the training and business needs of employees,
the Group has organised various internal training programs
related to their work. The programs aim to promote the
personal development of employees in different positions in
the Group, and to help enhance and develop the skills and
potentials of employees.

External trainings
The Group actively encourages employees to take external
courses that meet job requirements and service needs. Related
programs include functional enhancement training courses,
outdoor team training camps, various seminars and
conferences, etc.

Besides the above work-related trainings, sense of belongings and
cohesion are also highly valued. We strive to maintain a good
working relationship with our employees, and we provide a peaceful
and harmonic working environment for them. During the Reporting
Period, no strike, labour dispute, discrimination and harassment case
occurred.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employment Retention (continued)

Staff Development and Training (continued)

Learning and Career Development

In order to be consistent with our sustainable development and
business needs, we highly valued training and employee
development. The Group has provided the following types of training
to employees of all levels and categories:

. Induction training for new employees,

o Technical training;

o Occupational health and safety training;

o Managerial and professional skills training;

o Team building techniques and activities; and

o External training.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had offered a total of 546
training hours. The details are as follows:

Percentage of Employee
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o RBERERZEEI:
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ST -

Receiving Training' ZIEEE DL

By Gender MR

Male LS 73.89% 30.88%
Female peg 68.97% 35.29%
By Employment Categories RERER

Manager or above LI A 27.27% 7.69%
Supervisor or above FEUAE 54.17% 18.18%
Operator/Support Level BIEE IR 80.45% 36.41%
Overall B 72.69% 31.99%

L The current data are based on the number of attendance of people. Percentage ' HEUAZIANRGE - BB B St = mE BRI Z

of trained employee = Total number of employees received training during the
Reporting Period/Total number of employees.

EERY EERH-
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BRE MEREIEE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued) HEEm e
Employment Retention (continued) AT BE &)
Staff Development and Training (continued) EIRERIEIE)
Learning and Career Development (continued) BT ETRE (&)
2023 2022
Hours per Hours per
employee employee
Average Training Hours" 153 I R B 7 RHE &S Y EE
By Gender =Bl
Male B 2.39 1.63
Female gegiid 2.00 1.80
By Employment Categories RERER
Manager or above LB LA E 0.52 0.27
Supervisor or above FESA L 177 0.77
Operator/Support Level BIEE YR 2.54 1.97
Overall b4 ] 2.29 1.68

Compared to data in 2022, the overall percentage of employee $HR T - - FMEE  HEHBWZIESL
receiving training and the overall average training hours increased I &2 F9 35 IS B39 A i - ER- AR H &K
during the Reporting Period. This was because the society has fully E2HEEE @ FITBIHEEEES - Fit8
resumed normalcy and the training programs are no longer limited TEHE ZHEIIKE -

by anti-epidemic measures. Therefore, the staffs get more

opportunities to participate in training activities.

7 Average training hours = Total training hours during the Reporting Period/Total 7 FHEZIE S = mE BRI S AR RE A -
number of employees.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employment Retention (continued)

Labour Standards

Prohibition of Child and Forced Labour

As a conscience employer, the Group prohibits any form of
discrimination and forced labour and has formulated relevant
policies to avoid hiring child labour and prevent forced labour. We
have taken all practicable steps to prevent having illegal immigrants
from being on site and prevent illegal workers who are not lawfully
employable from taking employment on site. Our Human Resources
Officers inspect, take record and check the original identification
document of workers and check if workers are registered
construction workers under the Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance. The Group firmly refuses to employ any child below the
legal age and will never tolerate any behaviour that exploits the
rights of children. We also require our subcontractors to hire
employees who are lawfully employable to work on sites. Moreover,
the Group will only establish an employment relationship under the
consent of both employers and employees, and will never allow any
coercion or violence to force employees to work. The Group will
regularly review relevant employment policies and regulations to
reduce the possibility of hiring child labour or forced labour. If child
labour or forced labour is found in the working area of the Group,
including our sites, we must take relevant measures to follow up
seriously.

The Group strictly abides by, including but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance and the Immigration Ordinance (Cap. 115),
Convention Concerning Forced or Compulsory Labour. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any significant non-
compliance case relating to child labour and forced labour.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continuead)

Operating Practices

Our Supply Chain

Responsible Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to building lasting and constructive
relationships with partners in its supply chain. The Group’s supply
management policies and internal guidelines specify our dedication
to a fair, transparent and competitive procurement process which
requires all employees to observe the highest standards of business
integrity and to comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Supplier and Subcontractor Engagement

72

Supplier

The suppliers of goods and services to the Group mainly
include (i) raw materials; (ii) furniture; and (iii) tailor-made
accessories. The materials we purchased mainly include wood,
stone and metal. We will conduct supplier evaluation for new
suppliers when the customers nominate a particular supplier
for certain materials, and we also have an internal list of
approved suppliers for the selection of suppliers when
purchasing materials. The list is reviewed and updated annually
according to the performance of the material suppliers. At
least three suppliers’ quotations are obtained if no exclusive
supplier is suggested by the customer. When selecting
suppliers, we will fully consider the relevant environmental and
social risks, and with reference to criteria including, (i) quality
of materials provided; (i) punctuality in delivery; (iii) price; and
(iv) service quality; the Group will also prioritise suppliers that
provide environmentally friendly materials or services.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)
Oour Supply Chain (continued)
Supplier and Subcontractor Engagement (continued)

Subcontractor

We may delegate part of our installation or other technical
works to our subcontractors; we are then responsible for the
site supervision, management of subcontractors and overall
project management. Regarding building construction works,
we engage subcontractors on a contract by contract basis and
depending on the types of work required, by trades of work in
the projects such that normally each subcontractor is only
responsible for one trade of work, can then decide if further
subcontracting is necessary. In order to effectively control and
monitor the environmental and social risks along our supply
chain, we clearly asked for strict compliance on safety and
environmental requirements on our contracts to ensure that
the Project is performed in accordance with the relevant
specifications with our customers. Our subcontractors need to
report regularly to our Group about the progress of works.

We approved and shortlisted the qualified subcontractors from
time to time with reference to factors such as (i) quotation; (i)
expertise and performance; (iii) service quality; (iv) defects
liability period; and (v) availability.

We continue monitoring the performance of suppliers and
subcontractors on our internal approved list regularly through project
inspection and compliance of requirement, and update our approved
list according to the evaluation result.

As at the 31 December 2023, we have a total of 396 suppliers and

subcontractors all from Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, all
our suppliers are managed in accordance with the above practices.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continuead)

Oour customers

Product Responsibility

Projects and Services Quality

o Quality Policy
Our Quality Policy sets out our commitment to providing high
quality services to all our customers on time and within budget
to ensure continual improvements on the road to meeting all
reasonable customer needs and expectations.

o Quality management system and safety
To maintain consistent quality and safety of services for
customers, the Group has established a formal quality
management system, which is certified to be in compliance
with the requirements of I1ISO 9001:2015. During the quality
assurance process, we perform sampling, quality verification,
surveying, data analysis and review for improvement on
production stage such as designing and developing, resource
purchasing, product realisation and customer communication.

Our Quality Assurance Managers bear the responsibility to
monitor and supervise the Project Quality Plans for assigned
projects in light of the contract, and actively promote approved
quality concepts and procedure in order to ensure the quality
management system are correctly adopted and implemented
in our business operations. We will conduct management
review with all key management staff on the continuing
suitability, adequacy and effectiveness of the quality policy and
objectives at least once every year.

Products Return and Recall Policy

As the Group is mainly engaged in decoration services, repair and
maintenance services, our business does not involve any product
production and manufacturing, so there is no relevant policy for
product return and recall.

Complaints Handling

We established customer communication channels including mail,
e-mail, fax and telephone meetings to receive service and product
enquiries. Also, we have complaints handling procedures in place to
provide guidelines for our employees on handling customer feedback
including complaints. During the Reporting Period, there was no
complaint received.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

our customers (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

Intellectual Property, Marketing and Labelling

The Group's business does not involve research and development,
product packaging and labelling activities. Besides, the Group does
not rely heavily on marketing and advertising. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any significant impact relating to
intellectual property, advertising and labelling on its operations. We
will continue closely monitoring the business environment to identify
any significant risks in this area.

Customer Information Protection and Privacy

The Group strives to protect the privacy of its customers, business
partners and staff in the collection, processing and use of their
business or personal data. The Group has formulated personal data
privacy policy and confidentiality requirements for company
confidential information in the Employee Handbook, and ensures
company policies strictly follow Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap.486) of the Hong Kong SAR government.

Protection of confidential business information, trade secret and
customers’ privacy is of paramount importance to the Group's
interests and success. The Group requires all employees to maintain
the confidentiality of company information by signing the Non-
Disclosure Agreement. Our employees are required to keep
confidential on information consisting of but not necessarily limited
to (i) technical information; (ii) business development plans; and (i)
investor and customer lists. For all documents and information
belonging to the Group, every employee undertakes to return to the
Group upon termination of the employment with the Group.

The employees who do not comply with the privacy rules may be
subject to immediate dismissal without compensation by the
Company. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any significant non-compliance case in this regard.
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BR HEREIHRS

ASPECTS (continuead)

Our customers (continued)

Business Ethics

The Group is committed to conducting its business with honesty and
zero tolerance on any unethical acts. We will continue disclosing
information openly and transparently in compliance with legal
requirements.

Policies and Preventive Measures

The Group has formulated anti-corruption and bribery policy, which
clearly stated the definition of corruption and bribery and sets out
certain preventive and monitoring measures. Our commitments and
values are guided by the Employee Handbook and supplemented by
different policies. These policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to ensure appropriate ethical business
practices and behaviour as well as compliance with corporate and
regulatory requirements.

o Employee Handbook
Our Employee Handbook sets out principles and code of
conduct for acting responsibly in a professional manner in daily
operations, including issues related to business ethics, conflicts
of interest, bribery, and confidentiality in the workplace.

] Conflict of Interest Procedure
The Conflict of Interest Procedure is established to prevent,
detect or deter inappropriate activity. On the commencement
of the employment, each employee is required to sign the
Company's statement of policy governing “Conflicts of
Interest”. We believe that it could safeguard the interests of the
Company and customers, and maintain a good professional
image and professional ethics.

o Anti-Fraud Procedure
Our Anti-Fraud Procedure includes establishment of
communication channels and reporting system to encourage
employees to express their concerns on suspected case of
corruption. Our management team will investigate the case
fairly and seek help from Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC) and the police if appropriate.

The Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in Hong Kong,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201). During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any significant non-
compliance case or related corruption litigation case in this regard.
The Group carried out anti-corruption trainings for board members
(around 33% of participation) and staff members during the Reporting
Period, with a total of 54 training hours. The themes included
integrity management and ways of avoiding corruption in order to
increase staff's awareness towards anti-corruption.
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OUR SOCIETY

Community Investment

The Group is committed to active participation and support of
initiatives that benefit the communities. It has always been our
mission to contribute to our homeland to fostering harmonious
relationships with people and promote the development of our
society. Therefore, we invest in resources and hope to share our
success with our society. Besides, we donate WEEE products such
as computers, printers, photocopiers, kettles or microwave ovens to
charitable organisations or send them to recyclers for processing.

Our Voluntary Team

Our motto and spirit in volunteerism is — “Responsibility is Vital;
Achievement originates from Giving”. Our volunteer team
participates regularly in community service to serve and help those
who are in need. We provide incentives and facilitation measures to
encourage our employees and their family members, as well as
working partners, to participate in volunteering services, contributing
to the local community.

Our volunteer team has participated in volunteering activities over a
variety of target groups, including but not limited to the elderly,
people living under poverty and patients. We cooperated with
organisations such as the Fong Tam Yuen Leung Health
Enhancement Centre for the Senior, Children’s Heart Foundation,
etc., when doing our community services during the Reporting
Period.

Corporate Giving and Social Responsibilities

We are committed to bearing the social responsibilities and
contributing to society by our strengths and resources. During the
Reporting Period, we made both monetary and supplies donation to
non-profit organisations, such as to World Vision, Action Care, etc.
We also proposed community partnership projects and use our
business expertise to provide voluntary support to non-profit
organisations.

Our Contribution

The Group cares about people in need in society. During the
Reporting Period, "Success Base Love Fund”, the charity team under
the Group distributed lucky bags containing daily necessities, anti-
epidemic materials and Spring Festival fai chun to the elderly. The
Group also collaborated with the Children’s Heart Foundation by
supporting its “Lucky Money Wishes 2023" program and providing
unlimited love and blessings to children with congenital heart
disease. In addition, the Group supported World Vision in providing
food and livelihood assistance to poor children, families and
communities in South Sudan and Somalia in East Africa. The Group
has contributed HKD6,983 in various areas, including community,
education, public welfare, etc. We had a total of 110 volunteers who
contributed 43 hours in participation of the community services as
mentioned above. We hope to set a good example and take the lead
in encouraging more cooperations to offer help and support to those
in need in society.

BR HEREIHRS

ES Ak ok

HERE
AEEHENREHR2E R FHAF R ENFIR
B - REBERNE - REAEANZB B E
AR EBHERE - —EEIMNESD - Bt
BABRAER  HEREEDZRMANMAI - 1l
S - R APIH E 25 E F & an (WEEE) » BIZnE S ~ 7
BTt - EENH - REIOKBEFRBRESAR
A HE X G ORI ETT R IR -

EMETERE
HMETRENELGHMEHRETEHESR
Rt ZER ] RPN E T B ERS HLE
R R REBETEAL - BAERHAE &
EREE SEREERERA TERH28ER
TR - REMLERELER -

BHPNETEZRE2ETRARBERNE TR
BREREMNRREE BRALTMBEA - REEH
B HMIGTBERBREPL  BREORE
TEAEETHEBNETES -

CEEHREEER

BABORAEAELEEE  UBFNEZRER
REEELER - RIREME - BHPIEIEEFE
BIEHSRBREIWEEY INEHE  BE
B$EF - RAMIEHHEEAERE - LHBERM
MEBER  RIFFFABRERSEE -

B

AEBBLEEEEFTEMAL - RIFEHME -
EEETHEZERAEES] mREMRE
—EEZHREAR  BEMEMEFERNESR -
REBTEARELHESSAE THH2023
BELOMEELEIGE  AAB—BHBEHELRE
DEFERRE X FEREFERE - I AEE
THREPEERIENEHARRFE  AERR
ZE REAMEREEREREFIEY - AEEE
TRIEE  BiEdE - #HE AHRENFEM
6,983 L - B I A 1108 E T BB 7 43/ B
28 P ETEE - RIMEEAF1ER] - SE
EZMAE AHE LAFEEMAREBEHME

o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 ® 2023 £F £ 5} 77



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR HEREIHRS

OUR SOCIETY (continued)

Awards and Recognitions

The Group's efforts are recognised by a number of awards during

the Reporting Period. The details are as follows:

Awards and Recognitions

RERRA

RPN HE e

BIER A

RIBEHRT - AEENE LS BEENS T -
ST -

Given by
BFH

Happy Company 5+ Certificate

01 2 5+

Certificate of Participation in “ESG Pledge Scheme”
[ESGHE |2 HmESE

5+ years Caring Company

S+ ARARBERE

Quality Sub-contractor — One Victoria
EEFAPE — B9

3 Years+ EcoPioneer EcoPartner
3FE+RR AT

EcoPartner

IRIRGE IR

5+ Year Caring Certificate
SFE+BELBEERE

Outstanding Fitting-out and Renovation Services of the Year
FERED — WX EERS

Wastewi$e Certificate — “Good Level”
BEEEE [ RTHR

2022-2023 Good MPF Employer

20222023 ¢ ifE

e-Contribution Award

B HRE

MPF Support Award

Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2023
LA RFEMA L2023

The awards we achieved are recognitions of the Group's positive
impacts on society and the industry on ESG development. Looking
ahead, we will continue supporting environmental protection,

Promoting Happiness Index Foundation
BERBRARLIEHRES

The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
ERPEREMaE

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
EET g R e

Hong Kong Professional Building Inspection Academy
EEEERESRe

Federation of Hong Kong Industries

BEL¥ES

Ditto

[l

Hong Kong Commercial Times

BB ERR

Environmental Campaign Committee
REEHEZESY

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
BEMEAERTEEERR

Hong Kong Economic Journal
12 R B 45

BPMESNRARHAKBEARAFEERRDE
MEHERITENEEFZEORA - REKRK
BPBEE R RE BRGEEE &

achieve green management and collaborate with all our stakeholders B M EE(E - HARBABEEENTE -

for the development of a sustainable society.
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BE HEREIESE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX
BRXACRE - EREBBEREDARRT

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

IRER BH - BERERER

Section/Statement
E8: i) 3

A: Environment

A RIE

Aspect A1: Emissions
EBHEA1: HEnY
General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI A1.1
BB UE IR AL
KPIA1.2

B4R AR IR A2

KPI'A1.3

RASEAE WIBIZEA1.3
KPI A1.4
R AE MUEIEAL

KPI'A1.5

FASR A MIE R ALS

KPI'A1.6

FRERARAIRIRAL6

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste

FEBERKEEREYN  MKE TS BERES

EEMEEEEZN

() EE: Rk

(b)) BFHBITABERZENHBEZRRACINE -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data

PR TR R R AR A R B o

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas

emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).

B (BE) keeRHEE (SE2) REREYENE (UWERTE)

R BE (WASESEMN - BIEZMEHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility)

FEEEEREEYEE (UEHE) R (WER)ZE (A E

ESEM - BEREHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

PEABREEEYESE (AEAE) R (WER) BE (e

EEHA - BERETE) °

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them

WA PR E B R R AERE L B IRATREA T -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them

Wil EERETERYN L R FTET AR B
BRREIEELREAERNISR -

Our Environment —
Policies, Environmental
Compliance

I ERE — BOR -

RBREAR

Air Emissions
ERBEW
GHG Emissions

BEREYN

Waste and Wastewater
Management

RERY) K REKE R

Waste and Wastewater
Management
RBEE Y K K E 1B

Our Environment,
Environmental Impacts
from Operations and
Mitigation Measures, Air
Emissions, GHG Emissions
BMMIRE  ZEEEN
R B REREE - =
RBERR - BRERBEM
Our Environment,
Environmental Impacts
from Operations and
Mitigation Measures,
Waste and Wastewater
Management, Waste
Management by Recycling
BMeRR  CEES
BIRIB B KRR
BEEVMREKER &
RERLTABEREEY
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BXM(ERE #H2REARAFEESIDNBRS (2

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

IRER BH BERERER

Section/Statement
E8: i) 3

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials

—BHE BREARER(BIEEIR  KEEMEME) BBEE -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kwh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility)

Bl R 4B B IR A1 REREISMEER SHEEER(NE - f30h) BFEE (M
FEFEREE) REE (WUSESEN - FHERETE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

B AEIBIEA2.2 BREAKEREE(WNAGESSEN BERZEFE) o

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them

Bl B BUEIE A2.3 FALFTE] LWL IRE A G B E R AEDE L B EAERIA

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them

RRE DUEIE A2.4 SR EGE A KR ERT B E R ERE - A RPE] B KRR
EERAEIELEZMARMNTRE -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced

BBEE BIEIRA2.5 B mATAREMENBE (ETE) R (NER) §EES
5= o

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHA3: BERXARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources

—RRIEE BERBITAHRERRAERERNERZENBUE

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them

B4 A AR ST R EBEDEBERRRAERNEAYERERDERS
W RN -
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HAIIRIE — BUR -
RIRER

Energy Consumption and
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BERERELEE
Water Efficiency

FA7K R e
Energy Efficiency

Bl

S

BEIRZK

Water Efficiency

K=

Not applicable to the
Group’s business
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BE HEREIESE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BXM(ERE #HEREARFEESIDNBI RS (2

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

IRER BH - BERERER

Section/Statement
=689

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EBmEA4L - RIZEL
General Disclosure

~RHE

KPI'A4.1

RS AR MR IR AL

B: Social
B:#E

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer
FHRAREHEERAIESHETAEETENEANRIZIEHE
EEMBE

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them
B4 &
&Eﬂﬁ@

REHBRTAEAFENEARGHEBEEE

Aspect B1: Employment

ETEB1: EfE
General Disclosure

—RWE

KPIB1.1

A 52 48 B HZE B

KPI'B1.2

BAR4E I 1EB1.2

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

EEFNRRE BEREM  LERE - B TSR -

Zit s RIERAREMEEREF

(@ BE: Rk

(b)) BFHBETABEATENMBERRBRANER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-

or part-time), age group and geographical region.

IR EEERR (N2 BSGERE) FiRER M EE D

EEEE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical

region.

IR FRAN NSRBI DMEERRKLE -

Climate Change

Climate Change

TR

Our People

HMHET

Employment
Management
EBREER

Employee Retention

AT BT
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BRXACRE - ERERBEREDABRRS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

IRER BH BERERER

Section/Statement
E8: i) 3

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BHEB2: #EHZZ
General Disclosure Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

—MEE EHRELZE2TIHERRRREESEEABELNTEL
(@ EE: &k
b BFHBTAFTERZENHEBEERRRANER
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of
the past three years including the reporting year.
BRI A IR 2 B2.1 BE=F (DEEREE)SFRTTRWARRLE -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
FASE B IE 1R B2.2 ETBERTIERS -
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored
FiR A IE1EB2.3 R PR BB R R B 2 2 18 b - DA RGBT T REER 0% -

Aspect B3: Development and Training
BmB3 : #EREI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—RRIREE FERARERITIEREN S R BE - fEliEil
EE -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g.. senior management, middle management).

8 1 48 B 1S B3 EHAREEEMN (R ERE FAEEES) I-NE
IMEEB DL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.

BASRAA IE1E B3.2 ZERREESEANE D  BREETKRIZIIM TR -
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BXM(ERE #HEREARFEESIDNBI RS (2

Section/Statement

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

IRER BH - BERERER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

;-1

[ETEB4 : £ T#8|
General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child or forced labour.
—MEE BRAMIEE Tekoa 4 TH) T8
(@ BE: R
(b)) BFEHBITABERTENHBEZRACINE -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Labour Standards
avoid child and forced labour.
RS AE B 1R B4 it BEEONEEA RS ET RRHIBT - 4 T AR
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Labour Standards
discovered.
RSB IE 1R BA.2 e TE B3R 2 AR IS SR B FR B BB 1B S P BRER Y 22 B o 45 T AR
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EHEB5 : tEEER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the ~ Our Supply Chain
supply chain.
—MEE ERMEERENRE R GRBBUER - HIR e s
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Our Supply Chain
4R 48 B 1R B5. RME B S HEEREE - P9 O FE 5
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number Our Supply Chain
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
FA SR 4B B 1R B5.2 M EAEREERNEN MERTERENMHENE  BRMOMtERE
B UARBEAEHNMITRERTE-
KPIB5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and Our Supply Chain
social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
BB 4E IE 1R B5.3 M EABAEERTERGNRE RS SRBROEN - LA RMAOHERE
RABREBITREER A -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally  Our Supply Chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
B SR AR B 1R B5.4 MR EREHERFEEZARRERIREHEN - UKk HMAOMHERE

HERITREER X -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE MEREIEE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BRXACRE - ERERBEREDABRRS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)  Section/Statement

IRER BH BERERER ;-1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : ERmEE
General Disclosure Information on: Product Responsibility
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods

of redress.
—RRIEE ERFEREMMRBEONRENEZSE  ES ZRELEBEE EREFT
BEUARBERITER
(@ BEX: Rk
b)) BFHETABERTENHBEZERRBANER
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls Not applicable to the
for safety and health reasons. Group's business
BASR 1A B 1R B6.1 EEdEERAERAEPEL 2 REREAMERKNE S - TEANEAREE T
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received Product Responsibility
and how they are dealt with.
FASRAE B 1E B6.2 BEEANERRREIRFEE UREEFE - EmERE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting  Not applicable to the
intellectual property rights. Group's business
B 4R B 1R B6.3 B RARE AR ERE S AR B - TEARERE R
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Product Responsibility
B4R A B 1R B6.4 HIEERTERERERBBIER - EmBE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Product Responsibility
how they are implemented and monitored.
BASRIA B 1E B6.S BB EERMRERLBEE - UERBERITRERTE - ERER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE HEREIESE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE “ESG GUIDE” CONTENT INDEX (continued)
BXM(ERE #HEREARFEESIDNBI RS (2

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

IRER BH - BERERER

Section/Statement
E8: i) 3

Aspect B7:Anti-corruption

EBEB7 : RES
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B7.1

BB AR IR B7.1
KPIB7.2

BA SR 4B I 1EB7.2
KPI B7.3

BAAE RIS B7.3

Information on

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BN ILRRER - BR - BGFREREN

(@ BE: R

(b)) BFEHBITABERTENHBEZRACINE -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting

Period and the outcomes of the cases.

RBEHAEBETASHEERENEELENE SFLEMY

BB E RFALER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing

procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

R e e M ERIRE T - AT REER X ©

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and

staff.

MtmEERE TIRENREGTHE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS: HERE

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B8.1

FAE 4R XI5 15 B8N

KPI B8.2
FASAE 515 B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of
the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
ERAUME2ERTHEEMTHETENBRREERKED
GEREMENRAOBE -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HXEREE(HE  RESE SIHFR @FE k-
BE) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
EEIHBMBANER (NS ERFFRH) -

Business Ethics

[SESK

EES

There was no such cases
during the Reporting
Period
RERE RS B HE R
s

Business Ethics

mREE
Business Ethics

EESEL:

clat

Our Society

BMWtE
Our Society
Bt E

Our Society
Bt E
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREHEREE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Chi Chiu ( “Mr. Ng”), aged 51, is the chairman of the
Board, the chief executive officer of the Company, an executive
Director and one of our controlling Shareholders. He was appointed
as a Director on 11 July 2019 and was re-designated as an executive
Director and appointed as the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of our Company on 17 December 2019. He is also
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. He acquired Success
Base Engineering Limited (“Success Base Engineering”) in
November 2004 and has been a director of Success Base
Engineering since then. Mr. Ng has been a director of Team World
since its establishment in July 2019. Mr. Ng is responsible for
formulating business plan, engaging in major decision making and
monitoring the overall operation of our Group. Mr. Ng is the spouse
of Ms. Zhao, an executive Director.

Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience in the fitting-out industry and
project management. After finishing his secondary education, he
entered the fitting-out industry by working in B.S.C. Interior Contract
and Engineering Company Limited, a fitting-out contractor, from April
1991 to September 2001, and his last position held was assistant
project manager. Mr. Ng then worked in New Portfolio Design &
Engineering Company Limited, a fitting-out contractor, from June
2002 to December 2003 as a general manager responsible for
managing fitting-out projects.

Mr. Ng completed his secondary education at Maria College in June
1990.

Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe (“Ms. Zhao"), aged 44, was appointed as
a Director and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17
December 2019. She joined the Group in July 2012 as an
administration manager of Success Base Engineering and held such
position till September 2017. Ms. Zhao has been a director of
Success Base Engineering since January 2018. Ms. Zhao is
responsible for overseeing the financial, administrative and
operational matters of our Group. Ms. Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Ng
(the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer of the
Company, an executive Director and one of the Company’s
controlling Shareholders).

Ms. Zhao obtained an adult higher education certificate in art and
design from the Shenzhen University in July 2005. She is a licensed
individual insurance agent in Hong Kong.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ip Sze Ching, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 17 July 2023. He is also a member of each of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ip Sze Ching
is responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board.

Mr. Ip Sze Ching graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
with the Degree of Associate of Science in Facilities Management
and has extensive experience in company management and
business operations. Mr. Ip Sze Ching has also been appointed as
the Honorary President of the Hong Kong and Kowloon Vermicelli
and Noodle Manufacturing Workers Union since March 2023 and as
a committee member of the Hong Kong-Hunan Youth Exchange
Promotion Association since September 2005.

Mr. Yip Kit Chau, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 17 October 2023. He is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Yip Kit Chau is
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board.

Mr. Yip Kit Chau graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration
(Accounting and Finance) and has extensive experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management. Since November
2022, Mr. Yip Kit Chau has been serving as chief financial officer and
company secretary of FSM Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1721). From August
2021 to October 2022, Mr. Yip Kit Chau served as group financial
controller of a non-public multinational apparel manufacturing
company. From April 2020 to July 2021, Mr. Yip Kit Chau has served
as financial controller of a non-public multinational electronics
manufacturing company. From September 2008 to March 2020, Mr.
Yip Kit Chau worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers with his final
position as senior manager in audit and assurance services. Mr. Yip
Kit Chau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREHEREE

Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA, (“Mr. Law"), aged 66, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 17 January 2024. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Law is
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board.

Mr. Law graduated from University of London with a Bachelor Degree
of Laws, Hawaii Pacific University with a Bachelor Degree of Science
(Business Administration and Accounting), University of California,
Berkeley with a Master’s Degree of Business Administration (Finance)
and University of Hawaii with a Bachelor Degree of Science (Civil
Engineering). He has extensive experience in advisory, consulting
and corporate finance work. Since April 2010, Mr. Law has been
serving as director of TIC Associates Limited, a corporate finance
advisory services consulting firm. From 2011 to February 2020, Mr.
Law served as business director of a licensed corporation which
carried out Type 6 regulated activity under the SFO. From April 2005
to March 2010, Mr. Law served as general manager in finance of the
Hong Kong Productivity Council and chairman of its operating units
in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Law is also a Fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
CPA Australia.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Yuk Ming ( “Mr. Choi”), aged 52, is the financial
controller of our Group. He joined the Group in December 2007 and
is mainly responsible for accounting and finance management of the
Group.

Mr. Choi has over 20 years of experience in accounting. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked as a senior accounts clerk in BB
Telecom Limited from August 1996 to July 1997. He was an
accounting officer in C.A. Pacific Forex Limited from August 1997 to
April 1998. From May 1998 to October 2004, Mr. Choi worked in
Philips Electronics Hong Kong Limited and his last position held was
assistant accountant. From October 2005 to November 2007, he
worked in Union Technology International (MCO) Company Limited
and his last position held was accounting manager. He was a director
of Hong Kong Decoration & Engineering Association Limited, a
company limited by guarantee that engages in promoting the fitting-
out industry in Hong Kong, from March 2019 to August 2019.

Mr. Choi obtained a bachelor of science in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong in December 1996. He was admitted as a
member and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in May 2003 and May 2008, respectively, and has been
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since January 2005.

Mr. Shum Hoi Luen (“Mr. Shum”), aged 48, was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 17 December 2019 and is responsible for the
secretarial affairs of the Group.

Mr. Shum has over 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing
and over 10 years of experience in company secretarial affairs. Mr.
Shum is currently the financial controller and company secretary of
Infinity Development Holdings Company Limited (previously known
as Infinity Chemical Holdings Company Limited) (stock code: 640), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
responsible for overseeing its company secretarial affairs, corporate
governance and corporate finance matters.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is a Hong Kong-based investment holding company.
The principal activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group's business, can be found in the section of
"Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 6 to 11 of
this annual report. These discussions form part of the Report of the
Directors. In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk
management are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH
EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to environmental protection.

Environmental policies have been adopted by the Group for
implementation of environmentally friendly measures and practices
in the operation of the Group’s businesses. The Group has also
reviewed its environmental policies and performance from time to
time in order to minimise the environmental impacts from our
business operations.

The Group is committed to providing an equal opportunities, a
harmonious and diversified working environment to our employees.

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers in the
industry to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering premium and quality services to our
customers.

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers (based on their
prices, quality, past performance and capacities).

During the year, there was no material dispute or argument between
the Group and its employees, suppliers and customers.
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Further discussion and review on the environmental policies and
performance and relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on pages 33 to
85 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of
the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to complying with the relevant laws
and regulations, such as the Companies Act (as revised), of the
Cayman Islands, the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the SFO, the Listing Rules and other relevant laws and
regulations. So far as the Board is concerned, there were no material
breaches of or non-compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations by our Group that have significant impacts on the
business and operations of our Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to 32.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2023 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 187.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to
the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
prospectus (the “Prospectus”) of the Company dated 30 June 2020
and the published audited consolidated financial statements, is set
out on page 188 of this annual report. This financial summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

The Group made donation of approximately HK$38,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately HK$59,000).

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was conditionally adopted on 16 June 2020 and shall be valid until 15
June 2030. The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants have had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide
the eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company with the view to achieving the following objectives: (i)
motivating the eligible participants to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (i) attracting and retaining
or otherwise maintaining on-going business relationships with the
eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the long-term growth of the Group.

Participants

Persons eligible to participate in the Share Option Scheme include (i)
any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Group; (ii) any Directors or directors of any of the Company’s
subsidiaries; (ii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Group; and (iv) such other persons who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the
Group.

Maximum number of Shares

As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and the date of this annual
report, the total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 76,000,000, representing 9.5% of the issued
Shares (as 4,000,000 share options were granted during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and subsequently forfeited and cancelled
for the year ended 31 December 2022, which represented 0.5% of
the issued Shares).

No options granted under the Share Option Scheme remained
outstanding as at 31 December 2023.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of Shares issuable under share options to
each participant under the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of such limit will be subject
to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting (with such selected
participant and his associates abstaining from voting).

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive of the Company
or substantial Shareholder, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial Shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the issued share capital of the Company or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period up to
the date of grant, are subject to Shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting (with such grantee, his associates and all core
connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting).

Time of exercise of an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of ten years from that date. The period during which an option may
be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than ten
years after it has been granted. Subject to any vesting period
applicable to share options as determined by the Board, the Share
Option Scheme does not provide for a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Grant of option and acceptance of an offer of options
An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by
the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by the
grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by
the Company on or before the relevant acceptance date. Such
relevant acceptance date shall be determined by the Board and set
out in the relevant offer document.

Basis of determining the exercise price of an option
The exercise price of the share options per Share shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event
shall not be less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily guotations sheet on the business day on
which the share options are granted;
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(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the share options
are granted; and

(i)~ the nominal value of the Shares.

During the period under review, there are no material matters
relating to the Share Option Scheme under the Listing Rules that
were reviewed and/or approved by the Remuneration Committee
and the Company did not have any matters relating to any grants of
options to the Directors or the senior management of the Company
as set out in rule 17.03F and rules 17.06B(7) and (8) of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not grant any share
options under the Share Option Scheme to any other persons during
the period under review that is required to be disclosed under rule
17.07 of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
Companies Act (as revised), of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any other listed
securities of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2023,
calculated under the Companies Act (as revised), of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately HK$49,259,000 (2022:
approximately HK$52,650,000). The share premium account of the
Company is available for distribution or paying dividends to the
Shareholders subject to the provisions of the Articles and provided
that immediately following the distribution or the payment of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts immediately as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 65.8% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 20.1% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2023. The aggregate purchases from the five largest
suppliers and aggregate subcontracting fees paid to the sub-
contractors of the Group accounted for approximately 70.5% of the
Group’s total purchases and approximately 22.6% of the Group’s
total subcontracting fees for the year ended 31 December 2023
respectively. The purchases from the largest supplier and
subcontracting fees paid to the largest sub-contractor of the Group
accounted for approximately 60.8% of the Group's total purchases
and approximately 6.3% subcontracting fees for the year ended 31
December 2023 respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
shares of the Company) had any interests in the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Ming Yim
(Resignation with effect from 17 July 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ip Sze Ching

(Appointment with effect from 17 July 2023)
Mr. Yip Kit Chau

(Appointment with effect from 17 October 2023)
Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA

(Appointment with effect from 17 January 2024)
Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond

(Resignation with effect from 17 July 2023)
Mr. Yip Chun On

(Resignation with effect from 17 October 2023)
Prof. Chau Kwong Wing

(Resignation with effect from 17 January 2024)
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In accordance with Article 84, Mr. Ng Chi Chiu and Ms. Zhao Haiyan
Chloe, being the executive Directors, will retire from office by
rotation at the 2023 AGM. Being eligible, each of them will offer
himself or herself for re-election as an executive Director at the 2023
AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, Mr. Ip Sze Ching, Mr. Yip Kit Chau and Mr. Law Hung
Wai, CPA were appointed as independent non-executive Directors
with effect from 17 July 2023, 17 October 2023 and 17 January 2024,
respectively. Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, each of them
will hold office only until the 2023 AGM and will then be eligible for
re-election as an independent non-executive Director at the 2023
AGM.

The Company received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of its
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement under Rule 13.51B of the
Listing Rules, the changes in information of the Directors since the
disclosure made in the 2023 interim report of the Company are as
follows:

1. Mr. Yip Kit Chau and Mr. Law Hung Wai, CPA were appointed
as independent non-executive Directors with effect from 17
October 2023 and 17 January 2024, respectively.

2. Mr.Yip Chun On and Prof. Chau Kwong Wing resigned as
independent non-executive Directors with effect from 17
October 2023 and 17 January 2024, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there is no change to any information
required to be disclosed in relation to any Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 86 to 89 of the annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) in force for the benefit of the
Directors throughout the year and as at the date of approval of this
Report of the Directors, pursuant to which the Company shall
indemnify any Director against any liability, loss suffered and
expenses incurred by the Director in connection with any legal
proceedings in which he is involved by reason of being a Director,
and in which the judgement is given in his favour or in which he is
acquitted. The Company has maintained insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section of “Related Party Transactions” in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements, no Director nor a
connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party for the year ended 31 December
2023.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the controlling Shareholders or the Directors and their
respective associates is interested in a business apart from the
Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were
as follows:

(i) Long position in the Shares

Name of Director
BEEEE

Capacity
&5

Interest in controlled
corporation

Mr. Ng (Note 1)

REE (M) R EEE R
Ms. Zhao (Note 2) Interest of spouse
L (KisE2) [N
Notes:
1. Mr. Ng is interested in the entire issued share capital of Space Plus

Investment Company Limited (“Space Plus”, formerly known as Fate
Investment Company Limited) and he is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Space Plus by virtue of the SFO.

2. Ms. Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Ng and she is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Ng by virtue of the SFO.
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(ii) Long position in the shares of associated corporation of (i)
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the Company

Number of Percentage of

shares in the shareholding in

Name of associated = Name of associated the associated
corporation Director Capacity corporation Position corporation
P B L B RBEEEH

HEEEEE EENRH &4 R4 & B REB DL
Space Plus Mr. Ng Beneficial owner 1 Long 100%

REAE ERn#AEA S

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, other than those disclosed above in
respect of the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following interests and short positions
of 5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company
were disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO:

Number of
Shares held
R4 & H

Name of Shareholder
BRAR

Capacity

Space Plus Beneficial owner

600,000,000
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RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF DIRECTORS

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of them constitutes a
connected transaction or a continuing connected transaction as
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company
as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (if
applicable) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed for the year ended 31 December 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no other material events occurring after the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2023 AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 21 June 2024. A
notice convening the 2023 AGM will be published on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website and despatched to
the Shareholders (if requested) in due course.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitliement to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 18 June 2024 to Friday, 21 June 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares shall be effected. In order
to qualify for the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 17 June 2024.

References to time and dates in this annual report are to Hong Kong
time and dates.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire at the 2023 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2023 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Ng Chi Chiu
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Shareholders of Superland Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Superland Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 109 to 187, comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,

J the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

J the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the revenue
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recognition on fitting-out contracts.

Key Audit Matter

REEITER

WasER AR o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTNMEERRETSE

Revenue recognition on fitting-out
contracts
HEEHREER

Refer to Note 4(a) and Note 5 of the consolidated
financial statements.

BLHRE VB HMEW 4@ RHFFES -

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue
from fitting-out contracts was approximately
HK$1,006 million (2022: HK$810 million).
ai_ E =+ _A=+—RBLHFEE
GHRELAB106BEBTL(ZE=24 810
BEBIT)

B

Revenue from fitting-out contracts is recognised
over the period of the contract according to the
total contract price and the stage of completion
which is measured by the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation on the basis of the actual costs
incurred by the Group up to the year-end date as
a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract.

REGHREBEBESNEERTIBEREL

HINmR M TRRARE SESEEESF
HEMEENERKAMES A Q[ KAER

MADHL  BRERBEAOEENERTE -

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on fitting-out
contracts included:
BMERREANBEERANEF B

— Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment processes, assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors,
such as subjectivity of assumptions and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

— THREEBEENNIESRTGIER - @BRE RN EE
MEREMEBRREAZNREE (IRENFEEREREESN
R RS EGEFR T aE L) - AV E RS R Rt 6) B B R

— Understood, evaluated and validated key controls over revenue
recognition on fitting-out contracts;
— T SERRBEHEESOWNREREBERIZES

—  Selected projects in progress on a sample basis to review
contracts and correspondence with customers for contract
terms and variations requested by customers and to
understand the respective work nature and contractual
relationship with the customers;

— MEBHETFIEE  UBHEOEREHBEREEP EK
MEEMETPIELNEREKG Y THRSEIELERE
P& RRIE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

53 % BB IR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

REETEE

FAREETTEE &)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTNMEERRETSE

The management’s estimation on the variations
requested by customers and budgeted cost is
primarily based on historical recovery rate on
variations, fitting-out contract budget and actual
cost report prepared by internal quantity
SUrveyors.

EREHEFPERNEE RBEKARNMET
TEERBEFNBRTOKE REENEE
RAEBTEDR SRR BRI ARSE o

We focused on auditing revenue recognition on
fitting-out contracts because the estimation of
total budget cost and contract price from
variations is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to this
area is considered significant due to subjectivity
of significant assumptions used such as
estimation on the variations requested by
customers and budgeted cost primarily based on
historical recovery rate on variations, and
significant judgements involved in the estimation.
HRBEEREREEREHNERNET I RSE
et TMEERER  HBEMEINEAREEHD
B RER -BARAEANEZREABETEH
HHEFPERNEENGT REERES
FHEEOREMRROBERR) ARE
HEtR P REXAAE KR AETEHNESR
R IRAK o

— Discussed with the Group’s management, quantity surveyors
and project managers the status of the projects and enquired
about and assessed management’s assumptions on estimated
costs to complete including future subcontracting and material
costs, and reviewed the quotations from subcontractors and
suppliers;

— H BE5EEEE IMISEMRIEELENHEBEEMNRR
AR EHEE IR B E M ET T TR (BIEARK D B R RBA)
RIRRER - WER D B H RHEEEARE

—  Performed site visit on a sample basis, checked to subsequent
events and financial information available to us, and obtained
explanations for fluctuations in margins to determine whether
there could be other factors affecting the calculation of stage
of completion;

— HTHRGHE  HRESHRBEMUSNIMISERBETZE
UEMEMNBRRSGBE UREESSEEMERFET
IREERRETE

—  Checked the historical recovery rate of the completed projects
by comparing the estimated cost and variations against actual
outcome to assess the reliability and accuracy of the
management’s assumptions;

— BBEBREFHNARBCEHERER  BEC TKRIBENA
FRIE - AL E R E RE A A 51 R ERN

— Tested the total costs incurred as at the end of the reporting
period and performed cut-off testing, on a sample basis, by
checking to the underlying documents supporting these costs
(including invoices of material costs and subcontracting fees
and time cost calculation of the project staff), and

— YWEHNSERRNEANGBRETAS  WHBETE LA
A HERREZEERNBEBERXY (BEMRAR KX
SERENBREAREAEINREKATE) &

—  Tested mathematical accuracy of the calculations of contract
revenue and costs.
— ARENRERKANGTERELERN -

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found that the
judgement and estimates adopted by management in the revenue
recognition of fitting-out contracts based on stage of completion
were supported by the available evidence.
BERMETHESETF BMEREEEABETIRE®ER
RGN ERER B REHFIEFRZS -

104 Superland Group Holdings Limited e & =@ E R A 7



Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi % BEh R

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi % BEh R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Chun Yee Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FeZEBEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE-_FT-_ZF+-_H=+—HIFEZ

2023 2022
—=E_= g
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 FTExT T
Revenue e 5 1,008,101 819,302
Cost of services P 7 B AR 7 (878,536) (705,279)
Gross profit EX 129,565 114,023
Other income E A 6 2,295 12,405
Other losses, net Eh 1558 6 (589) (2,466)
Administrative expenses TERE M 7 (71,023) (74,602)
Impairment loss on trade receivables B o RINFIERE L
and contract assets, net BEREEEFE 3.1(a)i) (2,990) 92)
Profit before finance income and MREBEBARRER
costs and income tax expense FrEBimE AR R 57,258 49,268
Finance income U A 10 92 59
Finance costs YR IO 10 (31,417) (16,473)
Profit before income tax expense  BRFTSH B X BB R 25,933 32,854
Income tax expense FriSfif = 1 (3,765) (4,789)
Profit and total comprehensive EAREBEAEEER
income for the year attributable EARE2ENRARE
to owners of the Company 22,168 28,065
Earnings per share attributable KATEBEAEEEREF
to the owners of the Company
Basic and diluted ERR#E
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AZRBILZS)) 12 2.77 3.57
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ReEMBERAE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
b T — H

2023 2022
—=E_= g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment A K 2% 1 14 886 1,340
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 15 6,165 228
Investments in insurance contracts REELIRE 16 49,812 35,429
Other receivables, deposits Hoh U FRIE -
and prepayments e RIER A 19 35,822 29,715
Deferred income tax assets BEEFTEMEE 17 1,772 1,435
94,457 68,147
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables 2 5 e FIE 19 114,855 187,491
Other receivables, deposits g FRIE -
and prepayments e RIEF A 19 101,707 70,107
contract assets AHEE 20 513,703 419,791
Pledged time deposits B E BER 21 3,127 3,127
Cash and cash equivalents RehkIReEEY 21 42,391 50,463
Tax recoverable AT Uk Bl # IA 82 -
775,865 730,979
Total assets HEE 870,322 799,126
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Equity attributable to owners KATEEABEER
of the Company
Share capital &N 22 8,000 8,000
Reserves et 23 88,506 88,506
Retained earnings REBEF 104,646 82,478
Total equity MR 201,152 178,984
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMBERAE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
R-ZF=Z=F+=-H=+—H

2023 2022
—Eg-= —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liability kRBEE
_leaseliebilites meEas v 213 -
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables g S EMNFIE 24 75,689 52,706
Accruals, retention payables BAER BHREBEK
and other liabilities HEMalE 24 113,968 109,162
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 6,136 237
Contract liabilities AHEE 20 35,172 42,967
Borrowings BR 25 437,992 413,159
Current income tax payable BNEAE S AT 1S 1 = 1,911
668957 620,142
Total liabilities wasE 669,170 620,142
Total equity and liabilities ERRBEHAE 870,322 799,126
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HFeEaEnx

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
B e T — P

Attributable to owners of the Company
NG 2PN 11

Share-

based

Share Share Capital  payments
capital premium reserve reserve Retained

(Note 22) (Note 23) (Note 23) (Note 23) profits
R G A
ERARH
TS R EE -EN i#
(WizE22) (W#5E23) (Wi5E23) (WizE23) REEHF #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT

At 1 January 2022 RZZZ-§—-A—H 8,000 86,006 2,500 530 53,883 150,919

Profit and total comprehensive FRENREZERGEE

income for the year - - - - 28,065 28,065
Transfer upon forfeiture of BRERHEESR

share options - - - (530) 530 -
At 31 December 2022 RZTZZF+ZA=1+—H 8,000 86,006 2,500 = 82,478 178,984

Profit and total comprehensive FREMEZERGEE
income for the year - - - - 22,168 22,168

At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=%+-A=1+—H 8,000 86,006 2,500 = 104,646 201,152
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE-_FT-_ZF+-_H=+—HIFEZ

Cash flows from operating activities & EZEFIEREFRE

2023
———

— ==

HK$'000
FTHERT

2022
= —

=

HK$'000
THTT

Cash generated from/(used in) weEmE /(R HE
operations 26(a) 25,921 (116,094)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNEH (6,095) (4,308)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEEBE, (FTA)ReF5
___Operating activites 19.826 (120,402)
cash flows from investing activities REZEBHFERERE
Purchase of plant and equipment B E e (568) (40)
Purchase of insurance contract BERREEH 16 (15,058) (19,693)
Interest received 2 E 92 59
Proceeds from disposal of plant B e I R P15 BUR
and equipment 36 -
_Netcashused ininvesting activities ~~ BEEBfAReF® (15,498)  (19.674)
Cash flows from financing activities BE EZEFEREFRE
Decrease in pledged time deposits 2R E HEROR D = 3,484
Interest paid =EREAIESN 26(b) (31,417) (16,473)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEARE 26(b) (5,816) (6,762)
Drawdown of borrowings REUE R 26(b) 1,447,915 1,148,075
Repayments of borrowings (S ACE 26(b) (1,423,082) (1,000,102)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEES (A /SRS FHE
___financing activites (12,4000 128,222
Net decrease in cash and RERBSEEURLDFE
cash equivalents (8,072) (11,854)
cash and cash equivalents FUHRESRBRESEEY
at beginning of the year 50,463 62,317
cash and cash equivalents FRESRBRESEEY
at end of the year 21 42,391 50,463
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

114

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11
July 2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act (As revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company's registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, the Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is Flat A&B,
3/F, Yin Da Commercial Building, 181 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) provide fitting-out services and repair and
maintenance services to residential and commercial properties
in Hong Kong. The immediate and ultimate parent company of
the Company is Space Plus Investment Company Limited
(formerly known as Fate Investment Company Limited). The
controlling shareholder of the company is Ng Chi Chiu (“Mr.
Ng").

The Company listed its shares on Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 17 July 2020 (the “Listing").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“"HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for investments in key management
insurance contracts which are measured at cash surrender
value.

Superland Group Holdings Limited e & & £ EZ i H R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

(a)

New and amendments to standards adopted
by the Company

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to standards for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2023:

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting Estimates
HKAS 8

Amendments to Deferred tax related to assets and
HKAS 12 liabilities arising from a single

transaction

Amendments to International Tax Reform — Pillar
HKAS 12 Two Model Rules

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

HKFR 17 Amendments to HKFRS 17

HKFRS 17 and Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9 — Comparative

Information

The adoption of these new and amendments to
standards did not result in any substantial change to the
Group's accounting policies. The amended standards and
conceptual framework listed above did not have any
significant impact on the amounts recognised in prior
years and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future years.
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& MBS R aE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Amendments to standards and interpretation
to existing standards not yet adopted by the

Group

Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ERE 1RHER]
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ERE1REHERT
Amendments to HKFRS 16

BB BMEERNE 169 A1ERT
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

BEARBESH (BFTAX)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
BB G ERE TR REETB
HMEERIE7HMIEE]
Amendments to HKAS 21
BAEGFERE21RAEE]
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BFEMBRELERFE 105 R
TG ERIF 285 HIEFT

Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current
BESBERRBIIERD
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
MHRERNIERBEE
Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback
ERARMEEARE
Classification by the Borrower of

a Term Loan that Contains

a Repayment on Demand Clause
BRAHHEBEREKEERRZ

EHER A
Supplier Finance Arrangements
HERRELH

Lack of Exchangeability

BRZ AT ARt

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or
joint venture

REEHEBENTHEE QT

ZHEMEELESTE

REEERSFTEER®)

(b) REREEZKMNEAETRY
BREANRE

Effective for
accounting
periods

beginning

on or after

RT3 EEH 2%
HENETTFEEN

1 January 2024

—E-NF—H—H
1 January 2024

—E-NF—HA—H
1 January 2024
—E-mFE—A—H

1 January 2024

—E-NF—HA—H

1 January 2024
—E-NE—-A—H

1 January 2025
—E-hRF—H—H
To be determined

N

FIE

AEEERN L EANEF] R HINE %
Bl 8072 12 A SR T LASR AR o

The Group will adopt the above amendments to
standards and interpretation to existing standards when
they become effective.

BH L EANERT R IR B E R 2
BY g U AKEEf SRR RE B
BB RE N RE AT RARNKZ S
BRERTE -

The above amendments to standards and interpretation
to existing standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no hedging
activities are undertaken by management.

(@) Credit risk
() Risk management
The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
contract assets, and included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

Management considers the Group has limited
credit risk with its banks which are leading
and reputable and are assessed as having
low credit risk. Majority of bank balances are
deposited with reputable banks. The Group
has not incurred significant loss from non-
performance by these parties in the past and
management does not expect so in the
future.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The procedures
focus on the evaluations on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer,
such as its financial position, past experience
and other factors, as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customer operates. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
with the result that the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

fReMBERERME

3 M¥ERERE

3.1

Bt %5 L B (R 3=

AEENEGSHEASZ AT RAR :
mEER (BRIMNERR LB ERE
MEmER)  EFERREEBEZRE
o AEBENEERREEFEER
B mmISa A RN - WD
BEHARERBERROEETNZE

BMERIE o

EEETHEREARESRER - H
RASERMHIRE M B A2 EKE
WEIE B EAETTEREIREE) -

(@) FEERRE
() EpEE
AR A MBI RHEI
e RECEEY  DIEF
TEHER E 5 ERK
ERNER O R
B AHNEENKREE"
TEAEERESREE
FENRREERR -

EEERR AKEMNIR
TRIE BERELRE
FEREERBRESIR
T HEHNEERRE
R-RITHEBRTIBERNE
BRENRT AKEB
FEVEAZEETEAQM
ELXEAEE BERE
BHREIT TG RIS
e

AEEERERAMEE
BEENE=ZFETRS -
REB R B R S PTA FA
SEHRARATNETRBH
EFHARBBEENZE
FFeABREFEINY
EPBEIHRMNERLD
BRBERERE NN
B YXEBREPEHEEHR
(IMEFHAMR - BELR
REMEZR) UEEPK
BRTERBERE - LI
AR BB EEREWRN
e HEHNERRER
WHRBERK -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 ® 2023 £F £ 5} 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

3

118

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) credit risk (continued)

()

(ii)

Risk management (continued)

The Group is exposed to concentration of
credit risk on trade receivables from the
Group's five largest customers approximately
amounting to HK$105,055,000 (2022:
HK$148,455,000), and accounted for
approximately 89% (2022: 79%) of the total
trade receivables balance. The major
customers of the Group are reputable
organisations. Management considers that
the credit risk is limited in this regard.

The Group's other financial assets at
amortised cost are considered to be low risk.
Management has closely monitored the credit
qualities and the collectability.

Impairment of assets
The Group has four types of assets that are
subject to the expected credit loss model:

trade receivables;
o contract assets;

o other receivables at amortised cost;
and

. cash and cash equivalents and pledged
time deposits.

While cash and cash equivalents and pledged
time deposits are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Superland Group Holdings Limited e & & £ EZ i H R A 7
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fReMBERERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) credit risk (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

Receivable relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment
allowance. The following table presents the
balances of gross carrying amounts and the
loss allowance in respect of the individually
assessed trade receivables by invoice date as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Past due
At 31 December 2023 Current within 30 days

L] KERER

(6ross carrying amount aEnE

(HK$'000) (Figm) - 2,866
Expected creditlossrates ~ BHEEBER - 100%
Lossalowance (HKS000)  BEEE (TAT) - (2.866)

BEERER &)

31 MHERBERE)
FERR (&)

(@

Past due
31t0 60 days
#5312608

(ii)

&EENE (E)

BHRYGERANEE
AEERRABTENBRSE
RIS 95 B0 1L 5 AT
ERHEEERE  BYM
BEZREFEREGNE
EERENRNEREE -

B35 N7 B 7% IR B ok $ Uk
o] fE Y 3R IB B B oK &R A
EFPAEBENGIES#E
TEBIFEE - et A
B TRIZEZERA B
EHE_E-_=—FK_F
——HF+-_A=+—8K
&l B FF 14 00 2 5 e W5 IE
FEERmEREEBEHLS
ﬁﬁo

Past due Past due

61t0 90 days over 90 days
#8612908 BHRB90A

= = 2,866

= = (2,866)

Net carrying amount (HKS'000) S (E (F%7T) - =

Other than those trade receivables which
were assessed by individual basis, the Group
divided trade receivables and contract assets
into two categories to measure the expected
credit losses. For category 1, it includes those
customers which are reputable organisations
and with good repayment history. The
expected credit loss rate for these trade
receivables and contract assets are
determined according to a provision matrix
where balances that are less than 24 months
overdue are provided for at expected credit
loss rates of 0.016-0.16% and trade
receivables more than 24 months overdue
are 100% provided for.

BiZEREEFEZES
FEWRIAIN - REE G E
HRERBFBERANEED
BB AFEBEHREER
BE-BRENITME A
BREAEERHHERE
RLHERENEF -BH
R IR KRB HEEMNTE
HEEBBRXDRERE
EmERE - HFREH
EEEEE0016£0.16%
FHiRE B R 24 18 A B9 45
B W ARHGEHRE B 24
A ERE 5 RIKFKIA -
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REMBERRME

3

120

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(@

(ii)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

For category 2, it includes customers other
than category 1 above. The expected credit
loss rate for the trade receivables and
contract assets are determined according to
a provision matrix where balances that are
less than 24 months overdue are provided for
at expected credit loss rates of 0.30-0.85%
and trade receivables more than 24 months
overdue are 100% provided for.

Based on the management assessment, the
provision for impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets is HK$2,990,000 (2022:
HK$224,000) for the year ended 31 December
2023.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at end of
each reporting period was determined as
follows for trade receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 MB B RME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HM¥RRERE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuead) 3.1 HKRAKREZE(#E)
(@) credit risk (continued) (@) FERk#E)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) EEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets BSRBABEREGHNEE
(continued) (&)

Past due Past due Past due Past due
At 31 December 2023 Current within 30 days 3110 60 days 6110 90 days over 90 days

Lk RIEREE #4312608 8612908 fHEE0A

Category 1; B

Customers have arelatively — GERRELEEARZED

low credlt risk and DRNEF

10 defaut history

(Gross carmying amount SHAE (TR

(HK$'000) 73871 5228 11,288 6,477 7,630 104,500
Expected creditloss rates BEREEEER 0.016% 0.038% 0.035% 0.11% 0.16%

Lossallowance (KS000)  BSEEME (TiE) (12) @ 0] vl (12) (37)
Net carmying amount (HKS'000) EEFE (Ti#7) 73,865 5226 11,284 6,470 7,618 104,463
Category 2: BH2:

Customers have aretively — SEBBIEHESHES

higher credit risk

(6r0ss carrying amount FEGE(TED)

(HK$'000) 8,424 2,010 - - 99 10,533
Expected creditlossrates ~ BEEEEER 0.30% 0.85% - - 100%

Lossalowance (HKS000)  ESEEE (TATL) (25) (17) = = (99) (141)
Net carrying amount (HKS'000) EES(E (%) 8,399 1993 - - - 10,392

Totaltrade receivables, net B HENGUALEFE
(HK$'000) (F#1) 82,264 7,219 11,284 6,470 7,618 114,855
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBERERE®

122

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WHKRAKREZE#E)
(@) credit risk (continued) (@ =ERKE)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) EEWHEGE)
Trade receivables and contract assets BSRBABEREGHNEE
(continued) (&)
Past due Past due Past due Past due
At 31 December 2022 within 30 days 311060 days 611090 days over 90 days
NERE BHNZ0A BHZ08 BERBNE
Category 1; B
Customers have arelatively  GERRELEEARZED
low credit risk and DRNEF
10 defaut history
(6r0ss carrying amount SHAE(TER)
(HK$'000) 110,844 58,773 4,624 - 1,786 176027
Bxpected creditloss rates  EEFEEEEE 0001% 0001% 0001% - 05%
Lossallowance (KS000)  BSEEME (TiE) Y] [0) - - 0 (12)
Net carrying amount (HKS'000) EES(E (T#7T) 110842 ®mo e - o 176015
Category 2: BH2:
Customers have aretively — SEBBIEHESHES
higher credit risk
(6r0ss carrying amount FEGE(TED)
(HK$'000) 1507 - - - 9 11,606
Expected creditlossrates ~ BHEEBER 0.27% - - - 100%
_losdowretisy  BARE(TRT) o S S S ... %
_ Netcaryigamount (SO0 FEFE(TET) e o o T T 1478
Totaltrade receivables, net B HENGUALEFE
(HK$'000) (F#1) 122,318 58,772 4,624 = 1777 187,491

Superland Group Holdings Limited
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=8 MB B RME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 H¥RARERE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B¥REBREE )
(@) cCredit risk (continued) (@) =ERRE)

(ii)

(ii)

&EENE(E)

Impairment of assets (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

BHRBKERANEE

(continued) (%)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at end of BIEE EHNEERS
each reporting period was determined as WMEHRKRNEBEEREEET
follows for contract assets. W e

Category 1: KR

Customers have a relatively low 1= B /& f& 15 #1 E (K B 2 49

credit risk and no default history — FREEEE P

2023
—g-=

Current
B

2022
=

Current
BN A

Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BRE #2(E (T8 L) 482,391 391,394
Expected credit loss rates JEEEEEEX 0.016% 0.001%
Loss allowance provision (HK$'000) /& 18 # & (T8 1) (79) ©)
_Netcarryingamount (HK$'000) ~ BREVFE(F/E) 482312 391,389
Category 2: ¥R :
Customers have a relatively =B R RIH B E P
higher credit risk
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BRE 42(E (T L) 31,482 28,479
Expected credit loss rates FEHEEBEX 0.29% 0.27%
Loss allowance provision (HK$'000) /& #i & (F7&7T) (91) (77)
_Netcarryingamount (HK$'000) ~ fREFE(FEL) 31,391 ¢ 28,402
Total contract assets, net EREERBETE
(HK$'000) (F%&m) 513,703 419,791
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBERER®W
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WHKRAKREZE#E)
(@) credit risk (continued) (@ =ERKE)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) EEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets BSRBABEREGHNEE
(continued) (%)
The loss allowance provision for trade R—ZZE-_=Z%+=A
receivables and contract assets as at 31 =t+—B Z5EKHRE
December 2023 reconciles to the opening REHNEENEBEEHBR
loss allowance for that provision as follows: EREBRENBYESIERE
HERAT
Trade Contract
Receivables Assets Total
g 5 EWFEIE EHEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FET
As at 1 January 2022 A==
—A—H 113 19 132
Provision for impairment i {& 8 & 29 63 92
As at 31 December 2022 RN=—E = —
+-A=+—8H 142 82 224
Provision for impairment i {& # 36 88 124
As at 31 December 2023 W —ZT - =F
+=-A=+—H 178 170 348
Other receivables at amortised cost RS K R BI) BR B B At fE
I RIR
Other receivables at amortised cost mainly T2 S8 R AN 51 BR A H th E
represents other receivables and deposits in WHIEEZE2EEMER
reputable financial institutions. Management FNEEREERTN SR
considers that its credit risk has not increased BENTFR BEEER
significantly since initial recognition with ROKB2ERSHFNR
reference to the counterparty historical FEHERZAHBAR
default rate and current financial position. B FERRAEEIER
The impairment provision is determined VA 2R 3 R 28 2 58 00 - LA
based on the 12-month expected credit loss BREREBEBTIEKRNI12E
which is immaterial. AfEHEEEBIEET -
124 Superland Group Holdings Limited e & =@ E R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBERERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Market risk

()

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

Most of the income and expenditures of the
Group are denominated in HK$, being the
functional currency of the Group, and hence,
the Group does not have any material foreign
exchange exposure.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
bank deposits and bank borrowings. Bank
borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by the bank deposits.
The interest rate profile of bank borrowings is
disclosed in Note 25. The bank deposits
generate interest at the prevailing market
interest rates.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates had
been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,639,000 (2022:
HK$1,501,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of higher/lower expenses on floating
rate interest bearing assets and bank
borrowings.

3 H¥RARERE®
31 MBREMEZ (&)

(b) THER
) SMNER
AEB R WA KL H

(ii)
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3

126

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets
and liabilities.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to
manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring the Group’s working
capital to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets
and liabilities.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to
manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring the Group’s working
capital to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of
the Group into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interests payments computed
using contractual rates, or if floating, based on the
current rates at the period-end date). Where the
loan agreement contains a repayable on demand
clause which gives the lender the unconditional
right to call the loan at any time, the amounts
repayable are classified in the earliest time bracket
in which the lender could demand repayment. The
maturity analysis for remaining financial liabilities is
prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.

3

=8 MB B RME

MEERER &)

3.1 MBEBEREE)
(0 RBESEM(E)

TRIREBEHAZEEBBRREKA
HIZ= & 45 81 B 00 R 64 B R %
AEENERAEED T AERERE
MBI AR - ERABENE
BARHAMARERE (B
RAGHNES (IMAFEHX)
BHRAMBRTMEGFENH
B - MERBREESRE
KEEEK B TERAERK
RN R ZJFEER
AIEREESERAERATE
REFNREHR -H TR
BENIHBE DT BIER
AR -

Ondemand  Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
REXREE 1FR BB1E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TEx
As at 31 December 2023 RZZE=-=F
+ZA=+-H
Trade payables B HENFIE - 75,689 - 75,689
Accruals, retention payables  JEFTE R - ENREE
and other liabilities REMEE - 98,548 - 98,548
Bank borrowings RITEK 437,992 - - 437,992
Lease payables and interest  FAE & HIB R EMFIE
payables - 6,341 214 6,555
437,992 180,578 214 618,784
Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
RENRER 15K RiB1E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET AT FHET FAT
As at 31 December 2022 N-ZB-—F
+=ZA=+—"H
Trade payables B HENFIE - 52,706 - 52,706
Accruals, retention payables — JERTER - ENREE
and other liabilities REMBE - 90,208 - 90,208
Bank borrowings RITEN 413,159 - - 413,159
Lease payables and interest 7 & BT FB L EMFIS
payables - 238 - 238
413,159 143,152 = 556,311
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

128

(c)

Superland Group Holdings Limited

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis
of bank borrowing with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than
the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time
band in the maturity analysis contained in the
above table.

There were no changes in the Group's approach to
capital management during the year.

3 HM¥ERRERE®)

3.1 MBEBEREE)
() RBEZREM(E)

TREEABRBREEEK
BVER 1T 8 IR R E TR 1% & P 8L
HERBIERLHFNEIHA D
r-EHETEEREAEON
REFEONBMR - Bt - ZF
TEARLRMEBIHA D
P [ 2S8R | B R BT 3R
FEHTEE -

F AR B E R E R R
2B -

Maturity analysis — Bank borrowings and interest payable without
taking into account of repayment on demand clause of
certain bank borrowings, based on scheduled repayments
BB EER R NG AN — BTERREMFE

(FHRAFREREERRNE TRITER)

Within 1year 1to2years 2to5years Over5 years Total
15/ 12257 2557 55 F it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT TET THT

Asat31December2023 R-ZT-=F
+-A=+—-H 428,875 3,027 5,012 2,547 439,461

Asat31December2022 RZE-—F
+-A=+-H 400,785 3,278 6,574 4,265 414,902

Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

o BAEEEZERAR QA

ERIAKENTHMAR B
ERRBRITTIRAELGTER
KRB ERNER - EFHIE
ZERITEF IR BE R H
Pt e AT BIE K A HIEE -
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 H¥RARERE®

3.2 cCapital risk management 3.2 EXEKBER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, sell assets to reduce debt or repay borrowings
when cash received from non-trade receivables. Also,
the Group continues to monitor and maintain the
sufficiency of banking facilities for its operations.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings and lease liabilities
less cash and cash equivalents and pledged time
deposits. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position, plus
net debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2023 and 2022 was as
follows:

AEENERERBRRREHLFFE
REMRESD  URBRERIEHE®RNS
HphES KN m  YHFREE
ARBAR D ESIA - B#ERHH
BEARRE  AREAFHBERMN TR
RHOREESE REEATHER %
T# ki HEBENBR D BB
B FRAGRIRWE RS RERER -
BEAN  REBBEE R R ZE
FIBHERITERERRM

HERNHEMAR K AEENBE
ERBELXERER - W XRFE
BBRIABEARGE - FEBHALMER
FHEABRERERRESFEDR
CEBEHRFTHE - BERAEZA
MBI KR A FIRE [#E a8 | FET

.
ArT&= ©

RZE_=FRk_F-__F+=A1
—t+—HmMEEAEBREWNT :

2023 2022

—E_-= —E-_F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TET T

Borrowings BN 25 437,992 413,159

Add: Lease liabilities m:-EEaRE 15 6,349 237
Less: Cash and cash equivalents  Ji : RE RIRSEEBEBMAR

and pledged time deposits EHEAEHFR 21 (45,518) (53,590)

Net debt (L 398,823 359,806

Total equity BRER 201,152 178,984

Total capital HBEKR 599,975 538,790

Gearing ratio BEEBMELE 66% 67%
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3

130

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group analyses its financial instruments’ fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets and
liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents, pledged
time deposits, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, accruals, retention payables
and other liabilities, borrowings and lease liabilities
approximate their fair values, which either due to their
short-term maturities, or that they are subject to floating
rates.

Superland Group Holdings Limited e & & £ EZ i H R A 7

3

MEERER &)

3.3

AFEIEH
S 12 B A A A R
iR A BB SITEEHT
BENAFE ZERABIBBREANUT
NFERBAN=EBH :

s MHREEXBEAAETS L
HRE (CREHE) (F—4) -

o WIMAB—RHOME KA
B (BMERER) kEE (AR
HER BENEEXAGBNER
ABUR (B -

s YWHEKBEABEMBSHRENE
Es B ER B AR (BT #
KBABE) (F=4) -
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S EYRIR R B E A YRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue according to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation
of the individual contract of fitting-out works. The
progress is determined by the aggregated cost for the
individual performance obligation incurred at the end of
the reporting period compared with the estimated
budgeted cost. Management's estimation of the cost
incurred to date and the budgeted cost is primarily based
on fitting-out contract budget and actual cost report
prepared by internal quantity surveyors, where
applicable. Corresponding revenue from contract work is
also estimated by management based on the progress
and estimated revenue which contains variable
consideration. Because of the nature of the activities
undertaken in the fitting-out contracts, the date at which
the contract activity is entered into and the date when
the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting periods. The Group regularly reviews and
revises the estimation of both transaction price and
contract cost in the budget prepared for each fitting-out
contract as the contract progresses.

fReMBERERME

4 BERETHET R HE

fmEt A SR EETH G YREBHE
RELkEMEAERmMEL  BREERKEMS
FHRSEERBATEAENEY -

REBMEARREH G REBR - REEE -
SEHEFTERROGEBHERER -
BEERRBRERAH T ETBRFENEE
RBENREEEHERNFHENMG LR
G NINS-d FusE

(@) Wzt
AEERBE2EKRBHNEETIRA
HMOBEHNEENEEHRRE - 5 H
EEBURRERIEHE ERREHR
EENBRAEERGFTEEMA -
EREH S EEERARFAEERA
B ET E 2ARIR A B8 TR 2 A0 AR B
MEEANBERERKARS (fd
ERA) MEH - ERERRERE R4
s (BRI ERE) a0 TEN
MR SRR - BERERESGONR
T TRBSMEEER  FILA
MEAMET T BT RN TR
SEHHIRE - ARBER A LETHER
HREREANRAENTBEARSE
& R A KR Al 5HE O BT &
CHIE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

132

(@)

(b)

(c)

Superland Group Holdings Limited

Revenue recognition (continued)

Significant judgement is required in estimating the
progress of performance, total contract costs and value
of variation work which may have an impact on
percentage of completion of the fitting-out contracts and
the contract revenue and profit to be recognised in an
accounting period. In addition, actual outcome in terms
of total revenue or costs may be higher or lower than
estimation at the end of the reporting period, which
would affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Impairment loss of trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to determine
when trade receivables and contract assets are impaired.
Significant judgement is exercised on the assessment of
the risk of default and expected credit losses from each
customer. In making the judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results of
follow-up procedures, customer payment trends
including subsequent payments, customers’ financial
positions and expected future change of credit risks,
including consideration of factors such as general
economy measure, changes in macro-economic
indicators, etc. Details of assumptions and inputs used
are discussed in Note 3.1(a)(ii).

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

aEEERARAR

4 EBEREFEFTRAE 2

(@) WzmsE (&)

RIEFTEROEE BEORARER
TRREEREFLRERNHE 3
KEAHWNTIADHARBRIE—
St MR A AU ek Mo R E R
A AR UL 5 SR AN T AY
ERERTEESNAERREHRR
e ATREE R ERNAREEER
Wik s FIERE 25 B AREEN

B

rE

R

(b) EZEUNRERSHNEERERS

=}

AEBERB BV HRELERIF W
MIESINETESREGRARGHNE
EMEHENE RFGEsEPMNE
MR EEREEBEBEFAFLEXN
EEEEEZ
BRE JIMRERFOHER TP
NRBE (BRERENK) EPWNH
AR A B {5 B B 9 TE HA R 3R
(BREE—REEBRERNEE
BERELERR) -MABRKEHA
R R B M3 1(a)) & & ©

SR o R BT

() FrEH

AEEBEZ ERDEERBMFIEH -
BEMGHBRESZIELERHE -
ERREBBRES EHFZRH NG
B9 % AR RERE E RSV ISIRE
AEBEREBEREHEHNBEINETE
HE - BRARENBETEENEE -
ERZSFEENRRUBEREEHERA
ENEBETRNERT - 258
1 R TE B A 9 B HA A 18 SR AE B TR
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management expects it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available to
utilise the temporary differences or tax losses.
Management reassesses its expectation at the end of
each reporting period based on the latest business plan
and forecasts.

REVENUE

The chairman is identified as the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM") of the Group who reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.

As substantial business operations of the Group relate to the
provision of fitting-out services and repair and maintenance
services, the CODM makes decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment based on the entity-
wide consolidated financial information. Accordingly, there is
only one single operating segment for the Group qualified as
reportable segment under HKFRS 8. No separate segmental
analysis is presented in the report.

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

=8 MB B RME

4 EBEREFEFTRAE 2

(c) FrESi(E)
HEREZALREEREHREN
REE WERERHARKA
BRERVSFNAFEREZSERZ
BABBEBERER - EEERER
MEBFERBAREREMRERN
BREESEVK

iz

ITRERERAEETIELERKE (X
EREREE]) AEBERAEBEANI®
EUFHEEREDEER

HRAEENEZXHKLERREHEER
BREEREERTER REBLE)
REREEAER W BERELBEBER
PREERBFEZIRK - Bt - REFE
MBmEEEH  ARERAE —[HE—
REDHHNERAZLMOM - WEANLE
2B D FEDH

(@ WAZHF

2023 2022

—E_= —E-

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Fitting-out services EER® 1,005,607 810,147
Repair and maintenance services B R R TS 2,494 9,155
1,008,101 819,302

The Group's revenue is recognised over time for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: same).

RBE_T_=F+_A=+—Hit
FE - AEBKETIBERERER (Z
TZZF MR e
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5 REVENUE (continued) 5 W& @)

(b) Geographical information (b) HEEH
All the revenue and assets of the Group are based in BHE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILHF
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: E AEEMERRREEHTERB
same). (Z2ZZ—F :ME[A) -

(c) Revenue from major customers (c) REFXFEEFEFWH
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for EHHFEMAER R 10%0A
10% or more of the Group's revenue for each of the ZREZSEFERFP ZWEHIAT

financial years is set out below:

2023 2022
—_E_-= —_F_—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Customer A BEFEA 203,252 N/ATEM*
Customer B ZFB 174,833 230,599
Customer C =PC 144,234 N/ATEF *
Customer D EFD 142,254 N/ATNEA*
Customer E ZFE 108,722 N/ATEMA*
Customer F EFF N/A T 3iE A * 105,876
Customer G BEG N/A & A * 100,877
* Represent less than 10% of revenue for the respective year. * EIEEEFEWZET 2 10% °
(d) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (d) HEEYEBEERNERIARE
liabilities
The following table shows the revenue recognised during TRITHREEZZTZ=FR=ZF
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 related to ::¢+ “A=+—HILFEANER
carried-forward contract liabilities. HAgELNBEREBHKE -

134

2023
———

—_

HK$'000
FHET

Revenue recognised that was included s+ ABIHI & A& BEEHH

in the contract liability balance [T
at the beginning of the period
— Fitting-out services — RKERY 42,967

2022
—E-F
HK$'000
FTAT

11,539

Superland Group Holdings Limited e {4 =B i A R A 7
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REVENUE (continued) 5 W=
(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts (e) KREITRHILKLEN
The following table shows unsatisfied performance TRINTEBENOTEENREXE

obligations resulting from fitting-out contracts. HEME -

2023
—m— =

—= =

HK$'000
FTERT

2022
—_E-—

HK$'000
TAET

Aggregate amount of the transaction W+ Z—A=+—HHEZ=
price allocated to long term Moz REITRE
construction contracts that are BESANTZEREE
partially or fully unsatisfied

as at 31 December 764,568 1,182,547
Management expects that the transaction prices EREE  RERIRERETE
regarding the unsatisfied contracts at the end of year will HMRZZERBE2ENTRERER
be recognised as revenue by referencing to the schedule R
below:

2023 2022

—E-= g
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FAIT
Within 1 year 1FR 561,568 848,510
Over 1 year B F 203,000 334,037
764,568 1,182,547

FIEEMABHNNERS—FHUT -
BEREBVHHRELENFISHAA
A WARBKEIETZERAETALN
MR 5B

All other contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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5 REVENUE (continued)

136

(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts

(continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for services rendered in the normal
course of business.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected cost
plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach,
depending on the availability of observable information.

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the
good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the good or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over time if
the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset. Specific criteria where revenue is
recognised are described below.

Superland Group Holdings Limited e & & £ EZ i H R A 7

5
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5 REVENUE (continued)

(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts
(continued)
Accounting policies of revenue recognition
(continued)
The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group’s
performance in satisfying the performance obligation:

o direct measurements of the value transferred by
the Group to the customer; or

o the Group'’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation relative to the total
expected efforts or inputs.

(@  Fitting-out services and repair and maintenance

services

Revenue from the construction services is
recognised over time as the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset or work in progress
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced. The Group has applied the input
method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time by reference to
the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction on a
performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

For fitting-out contracts with fixed price, the Group
recognises the revenue in accordance with the
contract price on the basis of the Group's efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation. The Group considers the input method
better depicts the Group's performance in
transferring control of services to its customers.

For fitting-out contracts that contain variable
consideration such as variations in contract work,
the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount. The estimated amount of variable
consideration is included in the fitting-out contract
only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such as inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

fReMBERERME

5 W)
(e) RXBIEHEBEYN (&)

W 2K (E)

BHETNEREZTDRIBEATES
—@7AFE - ARERRAKRERE
TREAEENENRR

s HEFEARBERKEETFPH
BE %

. AEEARGEMNRETMAH
P55 D AR A (R TE Bk
fHHHRBA) -

@ REREREERRERE

RAKENENEZIBRE
PR EN AR izl
MEESEZIRENBERT -
BRERBKEMBERERER A
SECRABRAZLZSRAE
B EK BTN HK
BARERFEHHERBEOE
EHRITRA) BEREEREES
#IW s o

REEEBRNEREAHMS
AEBERRAEBREITED
BEEMERHSEEA RES
WEREARS AEERR
BAEZENEESTAFARE
B R EH R P B R g 1 R
JEHIER

HREEAEREWMANTIER
F)MEEAOME  ARER
AERBAENEBETEEE
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023 ® 2023 £F £ 5} 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

5 REVENUE (continued)

(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts

(continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

(continued)

138

@)

®)

Superland Group Holdings Limited

Fitting-out services and repair and maintenance
services (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

For warranty embedded to the fitting-out contracts,
the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance
with HKAS 37, “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” as the warranty provides the
customer with assurance that the contracting work
complies with the agreed-upon specifications.
Since the Group's subcontractors are contractually
obligated to rectify the defects at their costs, the
provision for warranty is insignificant to the Group.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customers or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer or
services to the customers. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may
exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed by the parties
of the contracts.

Notwithstanding the above, a contract does not
have a significant financing component in
circumstances where payments are in accordance
with the typical payment terms of the relevant
industry, which has a primary purpose other than
financing.
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=8 MB B RME

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES, NET 6 HMWARHEMEEFEEE

2022
HK$'000
T
Other income Hg A
Innovation and Technology Commission’s — AIFT BRI B S E L IET 2
Enterprise Support Scheme (Note a) (Mgsta) 2,295 -
Employment Support Scheme (Note b) [MRpt 2150 & (F1aED) - 12,178
Others Hfb - 227
2,295 12,405
Other losses, net Hit &8 FE
Exchange loss, net [ 5 E 1 F (3) (22)
Changes in surrender values of investments R & #7318 & B EREEE
in insurance contracts (Note 16) (MF5E16) (675) (2,444)
Others HAh 89 -
(589) (2,466)

(@ Amount represents wage subsidy granted under the @ SBECEIERTENFEITEEK
Enterprise Support Scheme for the research and BT EMAL o AL AR A REST
development work. Subsidies are offered to local N EBAR 3 TVEM 30k - ASREN AL & R
companies to conduct in-house research and R & B o
development work with a view to encouraging the private
sector to invest in research and development.

(b) Amount represents wage subsidy granted under the ) STEEREHERNEES THMRE
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-Epidemic FIFE BRI AR - ERARH
Fund. Subsidies are offered to employers who have EEIWAEMNEH M RESHERD
employed regular employees and paid contributions to 1B E ]S AL -

the Mandatory Provident Fund for them.
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& MBS R aE

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BRHEBEEINRX

Sub-contracting fees NEEBHR 440,229 347,253
Materials costs MR AR 334,653 268,914
Consultation services 4 7R AR 7% 817 787
Depreciation on plant and equipment N R ETE 986 1,606
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ERAREENE 4,860 5472

Employee benefit expenses (including EEBAMFAZ (BEEES)

directors’ emoluments) (Note 8) (PfF5E8) 119,216 116,827
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z BN BN &

— audit services — ZER 1,449 1,498
Donation =l 38 59
Entertainment expenses FEBH 7 2 2,000 1,831
Legal and professional fee FERRBEMAX 3,621 5,971
Transportation expenses RiBFAE 1,572 1,215
Office expenses BN 7,233 5,243
Insurance R 3,790 5,251
Research and development ff 8% - 390
Other expenses E i 18,979 17,564
Total cost of services and BR 75 K AR R 17 BB S 4258

administrative expenses 949,559 779,881
Representing: Rk -

Cost of services PR 7 P, 2R 878,536 705,279
Administrative expenses 1TEAX 71,023 74,602
949,559 779,881
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

=8 MB B RME

8 EERIFEX (BREEME)

2022

— T —F

HK$'000

FHEIT

Salaries, allowances and bonus e RMRES 110,346 108,508

Pension costs — defined contribution plan  BARE kA — R EH-RETE 5,831 3,821
Other staff welfare and benefit: HMETHEF :

— Depreciation on plant and equipment  — i KRBT E - 1,566

— Depreciation on right-of-use assets —(EREEERE 1,131 1,117

— Provision for long service payment — REIRTS B BB 702 -

— Others — HAh 1,206 1,815

119,216 116,827

Five highest paid individuals TEBREFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include 2 directors (Mr. Ng Chi Chiu and Ms. Zhao
Haiyan Chloe) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: The
five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include 3 directors (Mr. Ng Chi Chiu, Ms. Zhao Haiyan
Chloe, and Ms. Ho Nga Ling)). Their emoluments were reflected
in Note 9(a). The emoluments paid to the remaining 3 highest
paid individuals who are not directors of the Company (2022 2)
are as follow:

BE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—RBItEE "
AEBAEAGRFMALTRERGES (R
EBEERBESELZL) (ZE-F K
EERIEARFHALTEBE=ZR2EE (2T
FBACE  HERLLRMAEEZELZT)) o #
EMHFMEM %) - BENTFHRT=R (=
T ZF WMA)BEaHF AT (LIHFEARF
BER)NFEMAT :

2022

—_E-
HK$'000
THT
Salaries, allowances and bonus o R RIEA 4,222 3,433
Pension costs — defined contribution plan  BARE kA — R EHRETE 50 36
4,272 3,469
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& MBS R aE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EEEFFEX(BRESM<) @
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
(continued)
The emoluments of the remaining 3 highest paid individuals BT —E2ReFALT(WLIES) (ZE==
who are not Directors (2022: 2) fell within the following bands: F:MB)OHFHMNF TSR -

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
—E_=F —_E-—
Emolument band N E
From HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T 2 2
From HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 -
3 2
During the financial year, no amounts were paid by the Group RAFRFE  NEBBEREAILIER
to any of the highest paid individuals who are not a director of RAEENESFATIFREBEERMA
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the REBEFMAZ B ZE S ERBEREE -

Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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=8 MB B RME

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EEEMRER

(a) Directors’ emoluments and retirement (@) EEMEREKER
benefits
The remuneration and retirement benefits of the EEFHMRBRRERET 0T

directors is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_ZE_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
AARERES (FRAXATZANELR) NEBEZAAEKGHS

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director's other

services in

connection

with the

management of

Employer's  the affairs of

Allowances  contributionto the Company or
Discretionary and benefits aretirement  its subsidiary

Fees honuses inkinds benefitscheme  undertaking
ESRERALT
FENBARER
BIHRA NEtREEXS
ik ¢ Bt 2ERENEN  BAHEMR  SELNHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n Tz THRL THT THT TH
Executive Directors EKiy £
Mr.Ng Chi Chiu REdrE
(Chief Executive Officer () - 3,018 37 1131 18 - 4,544
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chlog fc)zt 3 - 1,380 150 - 18 - 1,548
Non-executive Director 48R
Mr. Chan Ming Yim (Note &) R AE (ta) 196 - - - - - 196
Independent non-executive  BIEHFES
Directors
Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (Note &) 158 £ (Fza) 32 - - - - - 326
Mr. Yip Chun On (Note b) EfEREE (D) 238 - - - - - 238
Prof. Chaukwong Wing Note )~ R (Kt c) 300 - - - - - 300
Mr. Ip Sz Ching (Note ) AR 55 - - - - - 55
Mr. YipKit Chatl (Note ¢) EAMEE (Hite) 2 - - - - - 2
Mr. Law Hung Wai (Note BRERE (W) - - - - - - -
1,140 4,398 521 1131 36 - 7232
Note a: Resigned on 17 July 2023 WiZa R=—BE=-_=Ft A+t BEE
Note b:  Resigned on 17 October 2023 b R=ZZ=_=F+A+tHET
Note ¢:  Resigned on 17 January 2024 MiEc R=F=-MF— A+t BEE
Note d:  Appointed on 17 July 2023 MaFdR=—ZT_=FtA+tHEEFE
Note e: appointed on 17 October 2023 e RZEZ=F+AT+LHAEEE
Note f: appointed on 17 January 2024 il R=Z-—mF—A++tABEE
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& MBS R aE

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EZEfEMREZR @)

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments and retirement (@) EEMEREKRERZ)
benefits (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BT —F+_A=1+—HIFE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its Suibsidiary Undertaking
HH

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivablein

respect of

director's other

Senvicesin

connection

with the

management of

Employer's the affairs of

Allowances contributionto~ the Company or

Discretionary and benefits aretirement its subsicliary
Salary honuses inkinds ~ benefit scheme undertaking

we ¢ METEL FEELD STEIEH g |
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'00 HK$'000
TR Thr THL B BT TR
Executive Directors ki £
Mr.Ng Chi Chiu REdrE
(Chief Executive Officer) (freast) - 3018 30 268 1 - 6,068
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chlog FHTEE - 1380 150 - 18 - 1508
Ms. Ho Nga Ling (Note @ kALt (Hig) - 1,040 578 - 12 68 1498
Non-executive Director ForEs
Mr. Chan Ming Yim (Note &) RAELE 30 - - - - - 30
Independent non-executive  BuFHTES
Directors
Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (Note o) %5 1 (Kizta) 600 - - - - - 60
Mr. Yip Chun On (Note b) Eert (i) 30 - - - - - 30
Prof. Chati kwong Wing (Note ¢~ BB AHR (Rfz£c) 30 - - - - - 30
1,560 5438 1,078 2682 I} 68 10874
Note g:Resigned on 31 August 2022 Mg R-E-—F N \A=+—HEE-
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9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(@)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments and retirement
benefits (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the
directors of the Company waived their emoluments nor
agreed to waive their emoluments for the year (2022: nil).
During the financial year, no amounts were paid by the
Group to any of the directors of the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

Save as disclosed in Note 9(a), the directors did not
receive any other retirement benefits or termination
benefits during the year (2022: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of the
directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, there are no loans,
quasi loans and other dealing in favour of directors,
controlling bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors during the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those in Note 28, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Group was a party and in which
directors of the Group had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022 nil).

fReMBERERME

9 EETIRER®)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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FANAB K SR A E BB E -

EERABARKLER
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£ (A U B ] H AR PR AE A S 4R 1 FR
A(ZBEZ=F8|,) o
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RE
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FRNES HIXEZERBEE
ERASZSHEANER  BUER
REAXZHNER

BrRERE B ISR B D T B E S -
REBEE_T-_=F+-_A=+—H01
FE BENES BT EEKB
HBERBATTANER  BUERK
EMZ G (ZT_F : #|\) -

EENRE ZHEIEGHNEK
=

BREfFFE28FTIR R E AN - B AEE A
AT MASBEESERSEERE
FBAEEAND BEEAEEEKS
FANEARRS THREHNRFEL
et SEaap s BI=qr—El lle42
EEAEEEFE(ZE_—_F : #) -
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& MBS R aE

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 B RAFEE
2023 2022
—E_= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Finance income EUp L N
— Bank interest income — RITA BUA 92 59
Finance costs B 7 B AN
— Interest expenses on borrowings — [EFEF B 30,869 16,323
— Interest elements of lease liabilities —HEBENNESS 548 150
31,417 16,473
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FBHEX
2023 2022
—ZE_= =~
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T T
Current tax expense BIVEA 5 78 5 S
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEFEH 4,996 4,961
(Over)/under provision in prior year BEFE (BEEE) BETZE (894) 325
Deferred income tax (Note 17) BEIEATER (HEE17) (337) (497)
Income tax expense FriSfiAx 3,765 4,789

In accordance with the two-tiered profits tax regime, Hong
Kong profits tax was calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million and 16.5% on the remaining balance of the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong
profits tax rate as follows:

=8 MB B RME

FrEHExX®)
AEBMOBRAEHASHNOHERRASE
ENERMREEELCNERSEANT
=8

2023 2022
—E-= g

HK$°'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Profit before income tax B P 15 25 AT & 25,933 32,854
Tax calculated at applicable tax rates REAMEFTENBIE 4,114 5,256
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7~ A 0 52 367 309
Income not subject to taxation HARBUA (379) (2,009)

Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERABARBEBENRGEZE

recognised 560 918
(Over)/under provision in prior year BEFE (BERE), BETR (894) 325
Tax concession MG EE (3) (10)
Income tax expense PRSI X 3,765 4,789

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.19,
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of approximately HK$21,285,000 (2022:
HK$17,891,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

BEMRF 29BN STHR  AEEL
B3 #421,285,0008 7 (ZE = =
17,891,000 7T ) #) R 5T 7% 5 18 R R T
RBEE BEAATKAEAAKERT
A AR RS R AR R E S A AR
THETIE ©
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& MBS R aE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributables to owners of the Company and on
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
800,000,000 in issue during the year.

12

BREF

(@ BREXER
BREARBN RN REHEE ARG
S M) Ko 70 4 ) %17 800,000,000 A & 58
Bz i P HEtE -

Profit attributable to owners of REEER ABEGEEF
the Group (HK$) (FIT) 22,168,000 28,065,000
Weighted average number of EEITERRINE TS
ordinary shares in issue 800,000,000 800,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share ERERREERF
(HK cents per share) (FREN) 2.77 3.57
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREERERR

Diluted earnings per share for the year is the same as
basic earnings per share as there was no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year (2022: same).

13 DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company does not recommend
the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil).
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=8 MB B RME

14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 W RRE

Leasehold Office Motor
improvements Machinery equipment vehicles Total
HEEE 20 BAEREG AE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT T FTHT BT
Cost D%
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F—-F—H 14,108 3,018 2,490 3,269 22,385
Additions for the year FARE - - - 40 40
At 31 December 2022 RZZ--#+-A=1+—AH 14,108 3,018 2,490 3,309 22,925
At 1 January 2023 “E-=Zf—R—H 14,108 3,018 2,490 3,309 22,925
Additions for the year i NARE - - - 568 568
Disposal for the year FALE - - - (40) (40)
At 31 December 2023 ZZZ=F+ZA=+—H 14,108 3018 2,490 3,837 23453
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE
At 1 January 2022 RZE-—F—F—H 12,542 2,561 962 2,348 18,413
Charge for the year FRME 1,566 453 316 837 3,172
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZ5+-R=+—H 14,108 3014 1,278 3,185 21,585
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=F—H—H 14,108 3014 1,278 3,185 21,585
Charge for the year FRNK - 4 717 265 986
Disposal for the year FRLE - - - @ (@)
At 31 December 2023 —T-=%+-A=1+—H 14,108 3,018 1,995 3,446 22,567
Carrying values BEHE
At 31 December 2023 RZB-Z=f+=ZA=+-H - - 495 391 886
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-Z&+-A=1+—H - 4 1,212 124 1,340

During the year ended 31 December 2023, depreciation of
HK$227,000 (2022: HK$453,000) and HK$759,000 (2022:
HK$2,719,000) were charged to “cost of services” and
“administrative expenses” in the statement of comprehensive

income, respectively.

HE-_ZTZ-_=F+-_A=+—HIFEX
PrE 227,000 7L (= F = = : 453,000/
70) %.759,000/8 7T (=& = =4 : 2,719,000

/%713)
[T R > 1 4Bk -
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& MBS R aE

15 LEASES

(@) Balances recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

15 HE

(@) RESMBRRARPEINEHE

2023 2022
—_E-= —E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT

Right-of-use assets FREEE
Office premises MAEWE 6,165 228

Lease liabilities HEAE

Current portion Bl ERE6 5 6,135 237
Non-current portion JERNEREL & 214 .
6,349 237

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
HK$11,928,000 (2022: HKS$NIil).

(b) Amount recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

BHE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HI#F
ERNEF AREEE#11,928000% T
(ZF_—%F :FHT) °

(b) REE2EBERTEINEHE

2023 2022
—E-= g
HK$°000 HK$'000
FaxT FHET
Depreciation charge of EREEENEX N
right-of-use assets 5,991 6,589
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGEMNEX N
(included in finance costs) (Note 10) GF AR A) (F7E10) 548 150

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended
31 December 2023 was approximately HK$6,364,000
(2022: approximately HK$6,912,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 LEASES (continued)

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these

are accounted for

The Group leases 2 premises. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed period of 2 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
pUrposes.

The interest rate of each lease contracts is fixed at its
contract date, and the interest rates of all the lease
liabilities were 5.8% (2022: 4%) per annum as at 31
December 2023.

16 INVESTMENTS IN INSURANCE CONTRACTS

=8 MB B RME

15 #HE#»)
() XEENHESIHREAESR

AEEBEE2@EYE - HEANBR
B2 EE BRI - A EZ AR
EREETER  BEaXETRAK
RGN - HEBE TR S MR
5% - 1BTHE B E TSR RE A
AR

FEHEAHNNFERNEGHBEBHET
mATBEREEER _E-_=F+_A4
=+ —HHFERNE RN (T ==
F 1 4%) o

16 REBENRE

At the beginning of year REH 35,429 18,180
Addition for the year FARE 15,058 19,693
Charged to the consolidated statement of B4R & 2 E R R -
comprehensive income:
— Changes in surrender values, —RIRBEZEFE
net (Note 6) (M5 6) (675) (2,444)
At the end of year RER 49,812 35,429

Investments in insurance contracts represented key
management life insurance policies (the “Insurance
Policies”). The Group is the beneficiary of the Insurance
Policies. The Insurance Policies were pledged to the bank as
securities for certain facilities granted to the Group. Changes in
value of the investment in insurance contracts are recorded in
“other losses, net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

RERAHVNREEIEEEEASRE (R
Bl AEERRENISA-REDK
BYRTERETETASENRENK
o - RBREVKRENEEZINES R
mi R A AR R AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 o 2023 &£ £ 3R 151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MBS R aE

17 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 17 BEEFEHEE
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there EAEEAURNTENBGRNEFSHEENR
is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets BEmEMEaEERE ABREMGHEE
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred MeEPrRhHE—HBERAHERT 8
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income tax levied by HARERREREEERFEEEL
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or BREHERE AR BECHESHEE
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle HEEEL AEH -

the balances on a net basis.

The followings are the deferred income tax assets recognised LTAFRANEBRAECEMEREERE
and movements thereon during the year: FH

Decelerated

Provision depreciation Total
BE WEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHETT FET
At 1 January 2022 WZZE-_—_%—A—H 22 916 938
Credited to consolidated FABHLREEEKER
statements of comprehensive (BF3E11)
income (Note 11) 15 482 497
At 31 December 2022 and RZZE-—F+-A=+—H
1 January 2023 N—FE-=F—H—H 37 1,398 1,435
Credited to consolidated HABGEEEWESR
statements of comprehensive (B5E11)
income (Note 11) 493 (156) 337
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H 530 1,242 1,772

152 Superland Group Holdings Limited e & =@ E R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 MB B RME

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 18 #ZHEBIEoMWEmM I A

2022

— = — —
=
— P ——

HK$'000
THT

Assets as per consolidated statement #HFEFBRAERZFIINEE
of financial position

Financial assets subsequently measured ~ HEIREHEA A ENSRMEE
at amortised cost

— Trade receivables (Note 19(a)) — B S EWFIE (K 19a) 114,855 187,491
— Other receivables and deposits — HEM W HIERIES
(excluding prepayments) (Note 19(b)) (TBIEFEMZE)
(3 5E19(b)) 38,923 35,460
— Cash and cash equivalents and —RekReEEBWAK
pledged time deposits (Note 21) B E BfE sk (B aE21) 45,518 53,590
Total #et 199,296 276,541
Liabilities as per consolidated HEMBRREREINAE
statement of financial position
Other financial liabilities subsequently Hg RS HEKATTEN
measured at amortised cost Hivemas
— Trade payables (Note 24) — B S EiTixmE (KE24) 75,689 52,706
— Accruals, retention payables and other — BT8R - BNREE R
liabilities excluding non-financial HtaE (T eiEEemas)
liabilities (Note 24) (Fft5E24) 98,548 90,208
— Borrowings (Note 25) — &k (P51 25) 437,992 413,159
— Lease liabilities (Note 15) —HEaE (MiE15) 6,349 237
618,578 556,310
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& MBS R aE

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 EFRHMERFIE
(a) Trade receivables (a) BEZEWFE

2023 2022

—ZE_= B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Trade receivables B 5 W IE 117,899 187,633
Less: provision for impairment B ORE R (3,044) (142)

Trade receivables, net B 5 R IR F 114,855 187,491
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of RZEZ=FR_FT__F+=A
the trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows: —+—H BB RFIELREZEAH

HRREDITAT -
2023 2022
—E-= g

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

1to 30 days 1£230H 82,301 122,351

31-60 days 31260H 10,104 58,773

61-90 days 61290H 11,288 4,624

Over 90 days 90 HIA 14,206 1,885

117,899 187,633
Trade receivables are due from 30 days to 90 days after Ao RWFENAAEE%R30BZ290
invoicing depending on the nature of services. The BAZE  RERBEEME - &

Group's trade receivables are mainly denominated in BME ZEUGIBEEENEITFE

Hong Kong Dollars.

154 Superland Group Holdings Limited e & =@ E R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=8 MB B RME

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 19 B 5 R Hth W KIE (4)
(b) Other receivables, deposits and prepayments (b) HitEWANIE EHERENKE

Prepayments for fitting-out works EETRBNHIA 97,066 63,268
Prepayments for insurance RERTE KB 1,540 1,094
Deposits (Note) e (MisE) 37,127 35,253
Advances to employees B2XTEE 1,796 207
137,529 99,822
Less: Non-current portion B FERNERED (35,822) (29,715)
Current portion BVEA &L 5 101,707 70,107
Note: Deposits represent surety bonds purchased from insurance Wi : ZeEMRBARBENEBEHNRE M
companies, rental and utility deposits. They are expected to be S RKEERS - ZEFHEEHGREME
released in accordance with the term of the respective contracts. EAEIEFURE -
The Group's other receivables and deposits are mainly NEE A H A U GRIE ik = ZE A
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. None of the other BITEHE c I EEMERRIBRIRS
receivables and deposits was impaired. BAERE °
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables B hAEMERFIENEREEREAR
approximate to their fair values. The maximum exposure FEBAE RERESEHERMEIH
to credit risk at the end of each reporting period is EANEERRALLMSEE S LEM
carrying amount of each class of trade and other FEWGRIEHERTE B ©

receivables mentioned above.
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& MBS R aE

20 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 20 EHEEREHNERE
LIABILITIES
Included in contract assets/(liabilities) are the following: UTEHAGHNEE (AfF)

Contract assets EHNEE
Unbilled revenue RFEBE W 429,064 340,597
Retention receivables (Note) FEBRE & (&) 84,809 79,276
513,873 419,873
Less: provision for impairment W R ERE (170) (82)
Contract assets, net EHNEEFHE 513,703 419,791
Contract liabilities eHNEaE (35,172) (42,967)
Note: Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the terms of the MIGE : FEWIREE @ JHVIRIEME A HMIERE T « #HUR
respective contracts. The terms and conditions in relation to the release BeMBERLEHERETREGOMBMER 8B
of retention vary from contract to contract, which is subject to practical BEBRET - RESTHNELOENEME /ﬁ
completion, the expiry of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed time BH SR - EUIRE & RERE ISR KR NIZ
period. In the consolidated statement of financial position, retention KEPHRDERBRBEAE
receivables were classified as current assets based on operating cycle.
The settlement analysis of these retention receivables based AR A Y FEHE D I EEWRE S W
on the terms of related contracts was as follows: SNBSS
2023 2022
—E_= —_E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Within one year —FR 57,449 18,924
Between one to two years —EZMF 27,360 60,352
84,809 79,276
The Group expects that contract assets have the same risk NEBBHANEERGSEKRSEES
characters as trade receivables. The impairment of contract HERBRES - & 48 ERERIES. 1( )(ii)
assets is disclosed in Note 3.1(a)(i)). As at 31 December 2023, WE RN E-—=F+—-F=+—8 4
the provision for impairment of contract assets is 494 7B 1Y R {8 1B 18 49 5 88,000 % 7T © E/\\;
approximately HK$88,000. As at 31 December 2022, the T - —FE+—-F=4+—H8 AHEELRHE
provision for impairment of contract assets is approximately B8 495 63,0005 7T
HK$63,000.
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21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS

=8 MB B RME

E%&ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%&&ﬁ#iﬁﬁﬁ

FA

2023 2022

—E_-= B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHEIT

Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEY 42,391 50,463
Pledged time deposits (Note) BEHEE BE R () 3,127 3,127
45,518 53,590

Note: Restricted deposits are funds which are pledged as security for the
banking facilities of the Group. Interest rates of restricted deposits are
approximately 0.001% (2022: same) per annum.

The Group's cash and bank balances and pledged time
deposits are mainly denominated in the following currencies:

FE + SZPR AT AR HE B AR R AN SR AR TT RS B MO 47
B B FRIE o B BRI T 3R 4F R B #90.001% (=
ToF HERA) -

AEENRE RBITEBIDEREYRE
REBUTIEREFHE

2022

—E-=
HK$'000
FET
HK$ BT 45,505 53,577
United Stated dollars E 13 13
42,518 53,590
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22 SHARE CAPITAL

22 A

Number of
ordinary Share
shares Capital
ZEREE B 2<
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T T T
Authorised: EIE
As at 31 December 2022 and 2023 A ——— —E=F
+=-A=+—8H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITROHRE
As at 31 December 2022 and 2023 RIZEZZFRZFT=F
+-—A=+—H 800,000,000 8,000
23 RESERVES 23 f#1E
The reserves movement of the Group is as follows: AEEBNREEZEBHUOT -

Share-
Capital based
Share reserve  payments
premium (Note) reserve
BXGEE EBERARH
Bt 10 5 8 (B aE) e et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET THET
Balance as at 1 January 2022 RZZEZZF—-—HA—Bm&EH 86,006 2,500 530 89,036
Transfer upon forfeiture of BREREEEE
share options - - (530) (530)
Balance as at 31 December 2022, A—E-—F+-_A=+—H "
1 January 2023 and 31 —E-=5-HA-Bk
December 2023 —ZE-=%+=-R=+—H
) 4 53 86,006 2,500 - 88,506

Note: Capital reserve represents the combined paid-in capital of the group
companies and capital contribution to subsidiaries by equity holders of
subsidiaries upon completion of reorganisation.
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 EFRHEMENRIE
2023 2022
—E_-= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FET
Tredepayables EPEM¥E 75689 52,706
Accruals, retention payables and EEER -  ERNRE2R
other liabilities: HmaE:
Retention payables (Note) EARE S (M) 71,622 63,567
Accrued employee benefits expenses EETRERAMAX 14,718 18,954
Other accruals and payables E M pERTE A R ERRIE 1,926 1,641
Deposits from subcontractors KEDBEENZES 25,000 25,000
Provision for long service payments REIREERE 702
o 118968 109,162
189,657 161,868
The trade and other payables are mainly denominated in Hong B REMEBNRBEETZUNETFE M
Kong Dollars and the carrying amounts approximate their fair REERE N FEES -
values.
The ageing analysis of the trade payables by invoice date is as B o EMNFIBREZAMERSITIT ¢
follows:
2023 2022
—EB_-= g
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
1-30 days 1230H 20,688 31,258
31-60 days 31260H 18,540 7,702
61-90 days 61290H 12,306 3,870
Over 90 days 90H M £ 24,155 9,876
75,689 52,706
Note: The terms and conditions in relation to the release of retention vary from Bizy : BEHWERRAMBEZIRIEHEETRS OTE R
contract to contract. In the consolidated statement of financial position, EH o EARR S REA B EIRE RIRG 48

retention payables were classified as current liabilities based on operating
cycle. The settlement date of the retention payables based on terms of
related contracts is as follows:

HAERRBDEE - KRB HFRE DM EN
RESHENBHWT

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FrET

Will be paid within twelve months R+ @B AR 55,024 2,312
Will be paid more than twelve months after the end #5774 K14 838+ — 18 A

of the year 16,598 61,255

71,622 63,567
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25

160

BORROWINGS

BIH - 2
— RITER (MsEakb)

Current, secured
— Bank borrowings (Notes a and b)

25 f&

413,159

The bank borrowings bear interest at floating rates that are
market dependent.

(@) The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the
Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the year end to the contractual
maturity date without taking into consideration the effect
of repayment on demand clause.

RITER DRI T ST EN
E =
IJ-I—/;;,\

R E B FIE

@ TEREJAEEAFRHTHEES
SEE LR EEEEE POk
ERIN -k 10 5 TR R 18

B EROTE

Bank borrowings repayable: JE(EEMIRITHER :

Within one year —F R 428,357 400,657

More than one year but not exceeding —F X F{EMF R
two years 2,691 2,893

More than two years but not exceeding FRFEI F{ERFR
five years 4,433 5,696
More than five years AFENE 2,511 3,913
437,992 413,159

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
obtained new bank borrowings of approximately
HK$1,447,915,000 (2022: HK$1,148,075,000) and repaid
bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,423,082,000
(2022: HK$1,000,102,000).

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate
their fair values. The weighted average interest rates are
7.0% per annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 4.9% per
annum).

Superland Group Holdings Limited e {4 =B i A R A 7

REBEE-_T-_=F+=-_A=+—H1t
FEOAEBDSHERITERY
1,447,915,000 T (=T = — 4 :
11480750005%7_5) MIEERITE
TR#1,423,082,0008 7T (ZE ==
1,000,102,000/%71)
EBRNEEEEEAFEES - K=
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FHMERTIO (ZEZZF : FH=E
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25 BORROWINGS (continued) 25 BER#E)

(b) As at 31 December 2023, borrowings of the Group are b RZZBEZ=F+=ZA=+—H K&
secured/guaranteed by: E (8RB LA TS BRI, ER
()  Personal guarantee provided by Mr. Ng; iy MBREERENEAER:
(i)  Corporate guarantees provided by the Company; (i) BARAREHNATER
(i) Properties held by two directors and the related (i) BAMBEEREHBARFED
companies; S E
(iv) Investments in insurance contracts and pledged (iv) AIRTHIESE TRITHRENEK

time deposit of approximately HK$49,812,000 (2022:
HK$35,429,000) and HK$3,127,000 (2022:
HK$3,127,000) were held at bank as security for
certain banking facilities respectively.

1 5 H 5 B £949,812,000% JT
(ZZ = — 4 : 35,429,000 jT)
3,127,000 0 (ZE ==
3,127,000/ 70) MR & HIEE
MEEEEESER -

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: REBHRIZIERBRERNT

2023 2022
—E_=F —=FE-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET

Floating rate IR 60,308 67,016

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are mainly EBRNEEEZZNU T EEE :

denominated in the following currencies.

HK$

2023
———

—_—

HK$'000
FHERT

437,992

2022
= —

=

HK$'000
THT

413,159
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 26 HEBERERMTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (used (@) BETBFATEFELE (FTA) /B
in)/generated from operations: IR & AR
2023 2022
—E-= —_E-—
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FHExT TET
Profit before income tax bR PTAS 0 A 5 25,933 32,854
Adjustments for: AT HIBFEE -
Interest income (Note 10) B A (BFfEE10) (92) (59)
Interest expenses (Note 10) B (MFE10) 31,417 16,473

Losses on changes in surrender values R A& LR EHRIREBE
of investments in insurance contracts, B EEE (FisT6)

net (Note 6) 675 2,444
Depreciation of plant and equipment — #4% & R &I E (F:E14)

(Note 14) 986 3,172
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FAEEENE (KM3E15)

(Note 15) 5,991 6,589
Impairment loss on trade receivables ESERKBRANEE

and contract assets, net A E 18R 5 (M5 3.1(a)i)

(Note 3.1(a)ii) 2,990 92
Provision for long service payments RHRE ERE 702 -~
Changes in working capital LEESEE:

Trade receivables B 5 WA 69,734 (95,461)
Other receivables, deposits and HipfE I IE - Re &k

prepayments TEfT 3RIE (37,707) (59,582)
Contract assets BHEE (94,000) (2,674)
Contract liabilities aHEaE (7,795) 31,428
Trade payables S EM A 22,983 (55,963)
Accruals, retention payables [BETER  ENRE:2K

and other liabilities HEihBE 4,104 4,593
Cash generated from/(used in) KERR/(FTR) R e

operations 25,921 (116,094)
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation
The following table provides a reconciliation for the
movements of net debt arising from financing activities
during financial year 2022 and 2023.

26

=8 MB B RME

HERERERMTE ®

FEBEHER
B B 4 R R R B A ORI B B
AR -

(b)

Liabilities from financing activities

BETHELNER
Cash and cash  Pledged time
equivalents deposits Borrowings Lease liabilities Interest payable Total
AeR S A
BEEEY EHEX fi%  HERE EMFE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT THL BT TET TR
As at 1 January 2022 s e = 62,317 6,611 (265,186) (6,999) - (203,257)
Cash flows: Reng: (11,854) (3,484) - - - (15,338)
Drawdown of borrowings REER - - (1,148,075) - - (1,148,075)
Repayments of borrowings EEER - - 1,000,102 - - 1,000,102
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEARE - - - 6,762 - 6,762
Interest paid BFIE - - - - 16,473 16,473
Non-cash movements: FELED:
Interest expense FER% - - - - (16,473) (16,473)
Net cash as at 31 December 2022 WZE-—F+-F
ST-BMREFE 50,463 3127 (413,159) (237) - (359,806)
As at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=5-f—-H 50,463 3,127 (413,159) (237) - (359,806)
Cash flows: Reng: (8,072) - - = = (8,072)
Drawdown of borrowings REER - - (1,447,915) - - (1,447,915)
Repayments of borrowings EEER - - 1,423,082 - - 1,423,082
Repayments of lease liabilities BERERE - - - 5,816 - 5,816
Interest paid BFIE - - - - 31,417 31,417
Non-cash movements: FELED:
Addition of lease liabilities MERESRE - - - (11,928) - (11,928)
Interest expense FEHR% - - - - (31,417) (31,417)
Net cash as at 31 December 2023 W-E-=&E+-R 42,391 3,127 (437,992) (6,349) - (398,823)
“t-BNREFE
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party, has joint control
over the party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operation decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions
carried out between the Group and its related parties in the
ordinary course of business and balances arising from related
party transactions as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(a) The Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties during the financial years.

27 BEBERS

W—HAENEEIEEEHNS—F

RZEH — e H S — Hﬁéf’ﬁﬂjﬂﬁﬁ“&ﬁ
REEHBMERNTE - A€ 5 R 5B
T oo & KRS - IR BB o

MTAAEEEABBIEREETBE
FETHNEARG  URRZT_=FK
TR CE+ A=t -HEBAIRSE
EREHTE -

(a) AEERFHREERNLABEHHTNEKR
ZTHWTE o

Lease payments paid to directors MARRESZAMEERE

of the Company 600 600
Lease payments paid to a related MR A B A ERIE

company 600 600

Note: These transactions were conducted in the normal course of
business at prices and terms mutually agreed among the parties.

(b) Balances with related parties
In relation to the leased properties from a director (2022:
same) and a related company, the corresponding rental
deposits paid by the Group as at 31 December 2023 are
HK$200,000 (2022: HK$200,000).

In relation to the leased properties from a director (2022:
same) and a related company, no corresponding lease
liabilities payable to a director (2022: same) and a related
company as at 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$Nil).

In relation to the leased properties from a director (2022:
same) and a related company, no corresponding
remaining balances of right-of-use assets acquired from
a director (2022: same) and a related company as at 31
December 2023 (2022: HK$NIil).
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M RERXZTDRET KR HENBER &G
HREBEBBIZPAET -

(b) EEEREES WA ER
RRKE—REE(ZZTE=__F : HR)
F—HEBRARNEENEmNS A
EER-_ZE-=F+_-A=+—8E
=+ K9 8 FE T & 32 & 4 200,000 7T
(ZZ——4F : 200,0007T) °

REKE—REE (T - _F: HR)
R—HEBARNEEMERS RN
“ERC=Ft+t-A=t—BHEREN
EX(CT-—F R KA AR
MEHEERE(ZT__F &) -

MKE—ZEFE(ZTE-_—F:HR)
F—HEBARMNEERENS B
TE =+ A=t+t—HEERE
F(ZE-_—F : HR) kB AR
BNERAEEERESE (2=
FomE) o
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Banking facilities/Guarantees

The Group's banking facilities, surety bonds and office
rental agreement were secured by properties, corporate
and personal guarantees given by related parties/
companies as below:

Name of related parties/companies

RS REKEEB

=8 MB B RME

27 AR SZ B)

(c)

RITEME R

AEBEMRTRE  BORIEMA
ERE WA AEET R ERMENN
THE AR REAERELR

Relationship with the Group
R 7 £ B Y A 1R

Mr. Ng Chi Chiu Director and the ultimate controlling party
REHBEE EEREEERA
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Director and spouse of the ultimate controlling party
[izNsE- g B RREES T HELE
Success Land Global Group Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
RITEZEARRA] AR % A A
Fullmax Resources Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
BRARRDF F R 5 A A A
Nice Dragon International Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
R AR QA F R % A A5
One Studio Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
RELLEBR A B R 5 A S A 1
Sky Range Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng
Sky Range Limited R ST HEEE

(d) Key management compensation (d) ZEEABRMH

The directors consider the key management personnel to
be the members of the Board of Directors of the Group
who have responsibilities for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group. Their
compensations are disclosed in Note 9.

EERRIZEBABRAEEES
GXRE AEAE  BERESLAE
EH)EE) o RFHRBMAMI EORE -

28 CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's contingent liabilities
were as follow:

28 HARERE

RZBZ=F+ZA=1+—0 XKEH
HRAB/HAT

2023
—— =

—r ==

2022
=

=

HK$'000
TATT

HK$'000
FERT

Surety bonds (Note) BAIREE (B FE) 93,225 90,222

Note: As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided corporate guarantee (2022: Mtz : R=ZB=_=F+=-A=+—8 ' BxKERHE—

same) of surety bonds in respect of 10 (2022: 11) fitting-out contracts of
the Group in its ordinary course of business respectively. The surety
bonds are expected to be released in accordance with the terms of the
respective fitting-out contracts.
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29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29 KA TRIBMBRREREFHESE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company RQ BB AR R FR
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—=E2-= g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries (Note a) I E A AR A (Mizka) 151,752 151,752
~ Deposits Be 1428 -
... 153180 151,752
Current assets REBEE
Deposits A - 1,428
Amount due from a subsidiary JiE Wy — FEI BT BB A B 318 74,996 77,136
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEFED 251 347
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 75247 78911
Total assets BEE 228,427 230,663
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERkBE
Equity attributable to owners of AATREEAELER
the Company
Share capital (Note 22) f&AS (B 5 22) 8,000 8,000
Reserves (Note b) f# % (M3Eb) 201,011 204,402
_Totalequity @@= 00000 209011 212402
LIABILITIES =N
current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H M E A FRIE 256 222
Bank borrowings HRITIEK 18,000 18,000
Amount due to a subsidiary FE — M B A R FUE 1,159 39
Total liabilites ~ #&8® 19415 18,261
Total equity and liabilities ERRABEEH 228,426 230,663
The statement of financial position of the Company was AR ERRAERBAEETER _ZE_UF
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2024 and was —AZ+tBiE URAEE -
signed on its behalf.
Mr. Ng Chi Chui Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe
REBLEE HERKzt
Director Director
E EF
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29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29 EKATBMBMRRAREEEES &)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Note: PR3 -
(a) Particulars of principal subsidiaries (a) FEMBABFE
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Principal activities and
Company name establishment fully paid up place of operation Interest held (%)
ARARB HAMRL/RIBE EBERTREBZRE IEEBREELE B IR (%)
2023
—B-=fF
Directly held by the Company
ANAEERT
Team World Company Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding, Hong Kong 100 100
HBERARED 1€ REER B8
Indirectly held by the Company
ANABERE
Success Base Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 Provision of fitting-out Services and 100 100

repair and maintenance services
to residential and commercial
properties, Hong Kong
BIETRBRAR A 2,500,000 7T REERBEDERURERSE
PAR#E RIRERS - BE

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ANRIFEES
Share-
Capital based
Share reserve payments Accumulated
premium (Note) reserve losses
BRAH
EXfFE ERGRMW
R EE ((i=3) ke RitER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR oy
At 1 January 2022 W-Z-—%—HF—H 86,006 151,752 530 (28,168) 210,120
Loss for the year FREE - - - (5,718) (5,718)
Transaction with owners in their LEBEASREETA
capacity as owners ETRS
Transfer upon forfeiture of share options ~ BE RIS 14 85 - - (530) 530 -

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R=-ZE-—F+-A=+—H
—H

k-_Z-_=%—AH 86,006 151,752 = (33,356) 204,402
Loss for the year FAEE = = = (3,391) (3,391)
At 31 December 2023 RZTZ=F+=-A=+—H 86,006 151,752 = (36,747) 201,011
Note: Capital reserve represents the combined paid-in capital of the Mzt : BARBEBEEEQRRAAHEREARK
group companies and capital contribution to subsidiaries by equity BARKREREEACEHETRKEEWE
holders of subsidiaries upon completion of reorganisation. ARIKHERE o
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30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

30.1 Subsidiaries
30.1.1 Consolidation

168

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

30.1.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Group on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

30.2 Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the chairman of the Group that makes
strategic decisions.

30.3 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
which is the Group’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or l0ss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a net basis within
other losses, net.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

30.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances (continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

30.4 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs net of their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Shorter of lease
term or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Machinery 3years
Office equipment 3-5years
Motor vehicles 5years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

30.4

30.5

30.6

Plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and depreciation rates are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.5).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as at
amortised cost only if both of the following criteria
are:

() The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows; and

(i) The contractual terms give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest.
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30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

30.6 Financial assets (continued)

172

(@

(b)

(c)

Superland Group Holdings Limited

Classification (continued)

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. The Group
reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing the assets
changes.

If collection of the amounts is expected in one year
or less they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets. The
Group’s financial assets comprise trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and pledged time deposits.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

30.6 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or 10ss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and presented
in “other losses, net” together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that their credit risks have
not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical default
rate and current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the 12-month
expected credit losses (Note 3.1(a)(ii)).
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REMBERRME

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

30.6 Financial assets (continued)

174

(e)

Superland Group Holdings Limited

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial assets, if the
part being considered for derecognition meets one
of the following conditions: (i) the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset
expire; or (i) the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of the financial asset have been
transferred, and the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset; or (iii) the Group retains the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the
financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to the eventual
recipient in an agreement that meets all the
conditions of de-recognition of transfer of cash
flows (“pass through” requirements) and transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income:

. the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred; and

o the sum of the consideration received from
the transfer and any cumulative gain or 10ss
that has been recognised directly in equity.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the
extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

30.7 Financial liabilities

(@

(b)

Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Financial liabilities at
amortised cost are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the financial liabilities using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less. If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such as exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

176

30.8

30.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group does not have any offsetting
arrangements at the end of each reporting period.

Investments in insurance contracts

The Group acquired management life insurance
contracts, which include both investment and insurance
elements. The investment insurance contracts are initially
recognised at the amount of the premium paid and
subsequently carried at the amount that could be
realised under the insurance contract (cash surrender
value) at the end of each reporting period, with changes
in value recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

30.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables are expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL 30 HBEEASTHERE &)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

30.11 Contract assets and contract liabilities NMNENEERECHNERS

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration from customers in exchange for the
provision of fitting-out services that the Group has
transferred to the customers that is not yet
unconditional. Contract assets arise when the Group has
provided the fitting-out services under the relevant
contracts but the works have yet to be certified by
architects, quantity surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers and/or the Group'’s right to
payment is still conditional on factors other than passage
of time. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point
when the Group’'s right to payment becomes
unconditional other than passage of time.

In accordance with the terms of the contracts entered
into with customers, the Group are required to submit to
customers’ payment applications for the value of work
done under the contracts along with any variation orders
performed. Customers will settle normally in 30-90 days
after invoicing depending on the nature of services.
Customers usually retain an amount up to 10% of the
value of work done, subject to a maximum limit of 5% of
the original contract sum as retention money for the
contract. The terms and conditions in relation to the
release of retention vary from contract to contract, which
is subject to practical completion, the expiry of the defect
liability period and the discussion of final accounts.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the
same approach adopted for impairment assessment of
financial assets carried at amortised cost.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer the aforesaid services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL

178

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

30.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, bank deposits with financial institutions
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities.

30.13 Pledged time deposits

Pledged time deposits represent fixed deposits pledged
to the banks for issuance of bank facilities and bank
borrowings. Such pledged time deposits can be released
when the Group repays the bank borrowings or
withdrawn at any time if other qualified securities are
placed as alternative.

30.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

30.15 Trade payables, other payables and accruals

Trade payables are obligations to pay for materials or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables, other
payables and accruals are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, other payables and accruals are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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fReMBERERME

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL 30 HBEEASTHERE &)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
30.16 Borrowings 30.16 & &

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

30.17 Borrowing costs

General borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
year in which they are incurred.
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REMBERRME

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

30.18 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax
payable on the current year's taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

180

(@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the consolidated statement
of financial position in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

30.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

()

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred income tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

30.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

30.20 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the historical financial information. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

30.21 Employee benefits

(@

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) which is a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the employer
and employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employee’s monthly salaries (capped at HK$30,000).
Contributions from the employer equivalent to the
contribution as specified at the rules of the MPF
Scheme are 100% vested as soon as they are paid to
the relevant MPF Scheme but all benefits derived
from the mandatory contributions must be
preserved until the employee reaches the age of 65,
subject to a few exceptions.

The contributions to the MPF Scheme is not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the fund prior to vesting fully
in the contributions.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contribution has been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Group’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the date of consolidated
statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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184

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
30.22 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included
in the other (losses)/gains on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

30.23 Government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised within “Other income” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate. Government grants relating to
plant and equipment are offset against the costs of the
related assets.

A government grant relating to the purchase of plant and
equipment for the cost of an office equipment is
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the assets by way of reduced
depreciation expenses. For further details, please refer to
Note 14.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBERERME

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

30.24 Earnings per share

30 HBEEXRSTHERME )

3024 BREF|

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

. the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

. the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

30.25 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Such determination is
made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement, regardless of whether the arrangements
take the legal form of a lease.

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessee with
respect to certain premises.

Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use asset and
corresponding liability at the date of which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

30.25 Leases (continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index
or arate;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
iS reasonably certain to exercise that option;

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option; and

lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received;

any initial direct costs; and

restoration costs, if any.
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fReMBERERME

30 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIAL 30 HBEEASTHERE &)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

30.25 Leases (continued) 3025 fHE (&)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices and accounts
for separately.

Some of the property leases include extension options.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing contracts. The extension options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. The Group considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option in determining the lease
term. The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or
a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects the assessment.

30.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders or
directors.
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Financial Summary

MEBER

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the S EHERER LTI EEXMERREBE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the FHAEMBFEE 2 AEEEENLEE  BERER
Prospectus and the published audited consolidated financial I E2&E 5T o Z o EH 2 W T EK S B 15
statements, is set out below. This financial summary does not form  #REXA—2EH °

part of the audited financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=1+—HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—EB_= - “ET-—F —E-FT —ZE-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER T FHET THET FAET

Revenue Wz 1,008,101 819,302 798,108 680,212 879,401
Gross profit EF 129,565 114,023 102,298 93,197 119,726
Profit before income tax expense B BT {554 59 S A& 7 25,933 32,854 16,360 20,399 41816

Profit and total comprehensive R AR AEEER
income for the year attributable & 71| & 2 [ UK &5 10 58
to owners of the Company 22,168 28,065 12,597 18,049 33,675

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —F-- —E-—F —TE-TFE —FE-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET FET FTET FBT
Total assets BEE 870,322 799,126 648,814 514,000 710,430
Total liabilities maff 669,170 620,142 497,895 376,208 554,693
Net assets EEFE 201,152 178,984 150,919 137,792 155,737
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